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NOTICE OF 37TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
    (Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013) 

 
SHORTER NOTICE is hereby given that the 37th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the 
Members of GB GLOBAL LIMITED (‘the Company’) will be held on Wednesday, 28th Day 
of September, 2022 at 02.00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conference (‘VC’) / Other Audio-
Visual Means (‘OAVM’) (“hereinafter referred to as ‘electronic mode’) and in accordance 
with the relevant circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs (‘MCA’), to transact 
the following business as mentioned below. 

 
The Members to take note of the Final Order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law 
Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (‘NCLT’) for the approval of the Resolution Plan pursuant to the 
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (‘Code’): 

 
The Members of the Company are hereby informed that the Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 19th 
May, 2021 approved the Resolution Plan (‘Approved Resolution Plan’) submitted by Dev Land & 
Housing Private Limited (‘DLH’/ ‘Successful Resolution Applicant’), pursuant to the applicable 
provisions of the Code. 

 
In terms of Section 31(1) of the Code, the Approved Resolution Plan is binding on the Company 
and its employees, members, creditors, stakeholders including the Central Government, any State 
Government or any local authority to whom a debt in respect of the payment of dues arising under 
any law for the time being in force.  
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Further, pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the paid-up share capital of the Company is 
reduced from ₹3,31,42,950/- (Indian Rupees Three Crores Thirty-One Lakhs Forty-Two Thousand 
Nine Hundred and Fifty only) in the ratio of 100:1 to ₹3,31,430/- (Indian Rupees Three Lakh Thirty-
One Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty only) and further issue and allotment of 5,00,00,000 (Five 
Crores) equity shares of ₹10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each amounting to ₹50,00,00,000/- (Indian 
Rupees Fifty Crore only). 

 
Therefore, the paid-up share capital of the Company stands at ₹50,03,31,430 (Indian Rupees Fifty 
Crore Three Lakhs Thirty-One Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty only) consisting of 5,00,33,143 
(Five Crores Thirty-Three Thousand One Hundred and Forty-Three) equity shares of face Value of 
₹10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each fully paid. 

 
Thereafter, the Indian Bank (one of the members of the CoC) filed an appeal before the Hon’ble 
National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (‘NCLAT’) against the order of the Hon’ble NCLT. The 
Hon’ble NCLAT vide order dated 20th September, 2021 passed an interim order of status quo 
(‘NCLAT Status Quo Order’) on the implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan and as a result 
of the same, the Company was unable to conduct its 37th AGM of the Company for the Financial 
Year (‘F. Y.’) 2020-21 within the stipulated time period. 

 
The Hon’ble NCLAT vide final order dated 06th May, 2022 (‘NCLAT Final Order’) dismissed the said 
appeal filed by the Indian Bank and the interim order of status quo on the implementation of the 
Approved Resolution Plan stands cancelled. Therefore, in connection with the same, the Company 
is conducting its 37th AGM of the Company for the F. Y. 2020-21 on 28th September, 2022.  

 
  

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company 
for the FY ended 31st March, 2021, together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon: 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution: - 

 
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2021 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as 
circulated to the members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 
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2. To Appoint M/s. Bhuta Shah & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors 
of the Company and fix their remuneration: 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution: - 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory enactment or modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, 
for the time being in force) and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee,  
M/s. Bhuta  Shah & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No. 
101474W/W100100 be and is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for 
a term of 5 (five) consecutive years starting from financial year 2021-22 until the conclusion 
of the 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company, to examine and audit the accounts of 
the Company at such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors in 
consultation with the Statutory Auditors plus applicable Taxes and re-imbursement of 
travelling and out of pocket expenses, if any, incurred by them for audit purpose.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized for and on behalf of the Company to take all necessary steps and to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things which may deem necessary in this behalf.” 

 
  

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 

3. Appointment of Mr. Dev Thakkar (DIN: 07698270) as a Non-Executive & Non-Independent 
Director, liable to retire by rotation: 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

  
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and any other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory 
modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Dev Thakkar (DIN: 
07698270), who was appointed by the Board of Directors, as an Additional Director of the 
Company with effect from 05th June, 2021 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual 
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General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) and any other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force) and the applicable Article of the Articles of Association of 
the Company and who is eligible for appointment and has consented to act as a Director of 
the Company;// and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 
Member under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director 
of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director 
of the Company and Chairman of the Company liable to retire by rotation. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized for and on behalf of the Company to take all necessary steps and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be required to give effect of the 
resolution including filings of requisite e-forms with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”  

 
4. Appointment of Mr. Vijay Thakkar (DIN: 00189355) as an Executive & Non-Independent 

Director and Managing Director, liable to retire by rotation: 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

  
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Securities Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any 
statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Vijay 
Thakkar (DIN: 00189355), who was appointed by the Board of Directors, as an Additional 
Director of the Company with effect from 05th June, 2021 and who holds office up to the date 
of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) and any other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and the applicable Article of the Articles of 
Association of the Company and who is eligible for appointment and has consented to act as 
a Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in 
writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature for the 
office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Executive & Non-
Independent Director of the Company and Managing Director of the Company for a period of 
5 (Five) years upon such terms & conditions of appointment including the payment of 
remuneration, perquisites & other benefits and including the remuneration to be paid in the 
event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure of his 
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appointment, as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this 
Meeting, with liberty to the Board of Directors (including its Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee of the Board) to alter and vary the terms & conditions of the said Appointment in 
such manner as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. Vijay Thakkar. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee and Audit Committee of the Board) be and is hereby authorized to vary the 
remuneration of Mr. Vijay Thakkar from time to time to the extent the Board of Directors may 
deem appropriate, provided that such revision is within the overall limits of the managerial 
remuneration as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereto, 
and/or any guidelines prescribed by the Government from time to time.  

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized for and on behalf of the Company to take all necessary steps and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be required to give effect of the 
resolution including filings of requisite e-forms with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”  

 
5. Appointment of Mr. Paresh Jain (DIN: 05159799) as an Independent Director: 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution       as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152  read with Schedule IV 
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) (including any statutory modifications or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Paresh Jain (DIN: 05159799), who was 
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 05th June, 2021 and who 
holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 
161(1) and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and the applicable 
Article of the Articles of Association of the Company and who meets the criteria for 
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing 
Regulations and who has submitted a declaration to that effect, and who is eligible for 
appointment as an Independent Director and in respect of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing his candidature for 
the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, 
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not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of five years, i.e., from 05th June, 2021 
to 04th June, 2026 (both days inclusive). 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized for and on behalf of the Company to take all necessary steps and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be required to give effect of the 
resolution including filings of requisite e-forms with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”  

  
6. Appointment of Mr. Shailesh Vora (DIN: 01381931) as an Independent Director: 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152  read with Schedule IV 
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) (including any statutory modifications or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Shailesh Vora (DIN: 01381931), who was 
appointed by the Board of Directors, as an Additional Director of the Company with effect 
from 05th June, 2021 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of 
the Company in terms of Section 161(1) and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) 
and the applicable Article of the Articles of Association of the Company and who meets the 
criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of 
the Listing Regulations and who has submitted a declaration to that effect, and who is eligible 
for appointment as an Independent Director and in respect of whom the Company has 
received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing his 
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director 
of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of five years, i.e., 
from 05th June, 2021 to 04th June, 2026 (both days inclusive). 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized for and on behalf of the Company to take all necessary steps and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be required to give effect of the 
resolution including filings of requisite e-forms with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”  
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7. Appointment of Mrs. Tanam Thakkar (DIN: 00284512) as Non-Executive & Non-Independent 
Woman Director, liable to retire by rotation: 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

  
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and any other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory 
modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mrs. Tanam Thakkar (DIN: 
00284512), who was appointed by the Board of Directors, as an Additional Director of the 
Company with effect from 05th June, 2021 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual 
General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) and any other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force) and the applicable Article of the Articles of Association of 
the Company and who is eligible for appointment and has consented to act as a Director of 
the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 
Member under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing her candidature for the office of Director 
of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive & Non-Independent Woman 
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized for and on behalf of the Company to take all necessary steps and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be required to give effect of the 
resolution including filings of requisite e-forms with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”  

 
8. Appointment of Mr. Harsh Somaiya (DIN: 06360600) as an Executive & Non-Independent 

Director and Chief Executive Officer, liable to retire by rotation: 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

  
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 203 and any other 
applicable provisions, if any, and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
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(including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), 
Mr. Harsh Somaiya (DIN: 06360600), who was appointed by the Board of Directors, as an 
Additional Director of the Company with effect from 05th June, 2021 and who holds office up 
to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) and any 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and the applicable Article of the Articles of 
Association of the Company and who is eligible for appointment and has consented to act as 
a Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in 
writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature for the 
office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as Executive & Non-
Independent Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized for and on behalf of the Company to take all necessary steps and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be required to give effect of the 
resolution including filings of requisite e-forms with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”  

  
9. Shifting of Registered Office of the Company: 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution: 

  
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 and any other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 
2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force), the consent of members be and is hereby accorded for shifting of registered office of 
the Company from its present location at Plot No.C-3, M.I.D.C, Tarapur Industrial Area, Boisar 
– 401506 to 10th Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station S. V. Road, Andheri (West), 
Mumbai – 400 058  which is under the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized for and on behalf of the Company to take all necessary steps and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be required to give effect of the 
resolution including filings of requisite e-forms with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”  
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10. Change in place of keeping registers and records of the Company: 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution: 

  
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 94 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force), consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to keep and maintain the Registers as prescribed under Section 88 of the Act and 
copies of Annual Returns as required under Section 92 of the Act, together with the copies of 
certificates and documents required to be annexed thereto or any other documents as may 
be required, at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 10th Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. 
Andheri Fire Station S. V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai – 400 058. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized for and on behalf of the Company to take all necessary steps and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be required to give effect of the 
resolution including filings of requisite e-forms with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”  

 
 

For GB GLOBAL LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Mandhana Industries Limited) 

 
 

 
Date: 19th September, 2022 
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Membership No.: A59271
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NOTES: 
 
1. Pursuant to the applicable Regulation of the Listing Regulations, the Members are informed 

that the related party transactions were made pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan.  
 

2. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be 
followed and pursuant to the MCA General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 05th May, 2020 in 
relation to clarification on holding of AGM through electronic mode read with General 
Circulars Nos. 14/2020 dated 08th April, 2020, 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020, 22/2020 dated 
15th June, 2020, 33/2020 dated 28th September, 2020, 39/2020 dated 31st December, 2020, 
10/2021 dated 23rd June, 2021, 19/2021 dated 08th December, 2021 and Circular No. 2/2022 
dated 05th May, 2022 in relation to ‘Clarification on passing of ordinary and special 
resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder on 
account of the threat posed by COVID-19’ and General Circular No.02/2021 dated 13th 
January, 2021 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and all other relevant circulars 
issued from time to time and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide its 
circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 in relation to 
‘Additional relaxation in relation to compliance with certain provisions of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 - COVID-19 pandemic’ and 
Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 2021 and 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated 13th May, 2022 (collectively referred to as ‘SEBI 
Circulars’) permitted that the physical attendance of the Members to the Annual General 
Meeting (‘AGM’/‘the Meeting’) venue is not required and the AGM be held through video 
conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM) (“together referred as electronic 
mode”). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. 
Hence, the 37th AGM of the Company is being convened and conducted through electronic 
mode on Wednesday, 28th September, 2022 at 02:00 p.m. IST.  
 

3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be 
a member of the Company. Since, this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circular No. 
14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 through VC/OAVM, the requirement of physical attendance of 
members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by 
the members will not be available for this AGM and hence the proxy form, attendance slip 
and route map of AGM are not annexed to this Notice. However, the Body Corporates are 
entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and 
participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting. 
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4. The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Act in respect of the 
business under Item Nos. 3 to 10 of the Notice set out above and the relevant details of the 
Directors seeking appointment at this AGM as required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing 
Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (‘SS-2’) are annexed hereto. Requisite declarations have been 
received from the Directors seeking appointment and the relevant details as required under 
Listing Regulations, of persons seeking appointment as Director’s forms part of this notice.  

 
5. The Members can join the AGM through electronic mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through electronic mode 
will be made available to at least 1,000 Members on a first come first served basis. This will 
not include large shareholders (shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoter/ 
Promoter Group, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 
without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
6. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through electronic mode will be 

counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 

7. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 
Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, and the MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 
13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its 
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the 
Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
for facilitating voting through electronic means system from a place other than venue of the 
AGM (‘remote e-voting’), as the authorized agency. In addition, the facility   for voting 
through electronic voting system will also be made available at the Meeting (‘e-voting 
at the AGM”) and members attending the Meeting who have not cast their vote(s) by 
remote e-voting will be able to vote at the Meeting through e-voting facility. The manner 
of voting remotely by members holding shares in dematerialized mode, physical mode 
and for members who have not registered their email addresses is provided in the 
instructions given below. 

 

8. The process and instructions for remote e-voting are provided in the subsequent pages. Such 
remote e-voting facility is in addition to voting that will take place at the AGM being held 
through electronic mode.  
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9. Members joining the meeting through electronic mode, who have not already cast their vote 
by means of remote e-voting, shall be able to exercise their right to vote through e-voting at 
the AGM. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may 
also join the AGM through electronic mode but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 
10. The Company has appointed Jigna Chabhadia, Practicing Company Secretary, as the 

Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

11. Institutional investors and corporate members are encouraged to attend and vote at the 
AGM through electronic mode. Institutional investors and corporate Members (i.e., other 
than individuals, HUF’s, NRI’s etc.) intending to appoint their authorized representatives 
pursuant to Sections 112 and 113 of the Act, as the case maybe, to attend the AGM through 
electronic mode or to vote through remote e-voting are requested to send a certified copy 
of the Board Resolution to the Scrutinizer by email at cajignaparekh@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e., other than individuals, HUF’s, 
NRI’s etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution /Power of Attorney/Authority Letter etc. 
by clicking on ‘Upload Board Resolution/Authority Letter’ displayed under ‘e-Voting’ tab in 
their login. 

 
12. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the 

order of names will be entitled to vote.  
 

13. The Register of Members and Share Transfer books will remain closed from Thursday, 22nd 
September, 2022 to Wednesday, 28th September, 2022 (both days inclusive). 

 
14. In line with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the Integrated 

Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent only by electronic mode to those Members whose e-
mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories/ Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent, M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited (‘RTA’ / ‘LIIPL’ / ‘Link Intime’). Members may 
please note that this Notice and Annual Report 2020-21 will be available on the Company’s 
website viz. www.gbglobal.in and may also be accessed from the relevant section of the 
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively. The 
AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-
Voting facility) i.e., www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

15. The Members are informed that the List of Shareholders is considered as per the Approved 
Resolution Plan i.e., taking into account of Reduction of Share Capital and Preferential 
Allotment. 
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16. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not registered their e-mail address are 
requested to register the same in respect of shares held in electronic form with the 
Depository through their Depository Participant(s) and in respect of shares held in physical 
form by writing to the Company’s RTA at C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai – 400 083 or at rnt.helpdesk@ linkintime.co.in. 

 
17. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all other 

changes pertaining to their bank details, National Electronic Clearing Service (‘NECS’), 
Electronic Clearing Service (‘ECS’), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change 
of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their Depository 
Participant (‘DP’). Changes intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected in 
the Company’s records which will help the Company and the Company’s RTA to provide 
efficient and better services. The Company will not entertain any direct request from such 
Members for change of address, transposition of names, deletion of name of deceased joint 
holder and change in the bank account details.  

 
18. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (‘PAN’) by every 

participant in securities market. Members holding shares in physical form are requested 
to submit        their PAN details to the RTA. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit        their PAN details to their DP. 

 
19. Members who are holding shares in physical form are advised to submit particulars of their 

bank account, viz. name and address of the branch of the bank, MICR code of the branch, 
type of account and account number to our RTA.  

 
20. The following documents will be available for inspection by the Members electronically 

during the AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to 
cs@gbglobal.in. 

 
a. Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained 

under Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which 
the Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act.  

b. All such documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of the AGM and the 
Explanatory Statement. 

 
21. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act read with the Rule 19(1) of the Companies 

(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and SEBI Circulars, the facility for making 
nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members 
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who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by 
submitting Form No. SH-13 which can be obtained from the RTA or the Secretarial 
Department of the Company at its Corporate office. If a Member desires to opt out or cancel 
the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same in ISR-3 
or SH-14 as the case may be. Members are requested to submit the said details to their 
Depository Participants in case the shares are held by them in dematerialized form and to 
the Company’s RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical form, quoting their folio 
number. 

 
22. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names in more than one folio 

are requested to send to the Company or its RTA, the details of such folios together with the 
share certificates along with the requisite KYC details for consolidating their holdings in one 
folio. Requests for consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in dematerialized 
form. The share certificates will be returned to the Members after making requisite changes, 
thereon. Members are requested to use the share transfer Form SH-4 for this purpose. 

 
23. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and 

notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. 
Members are also advised to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic 
statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and 
holdings should be verified from time to time. 

 
24. Non-resident Indian shareholders are requested to inform about the following immediately 

to the Company or its RTA or the concerned Depository Participant(s), as the case may be: 
 

a. the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement, and  
b. the particulars of the NRE account with a Bank in India, if not furnished earlier. 

 
25. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, 

e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, mandates, nominations, power of 
attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, 
MICR code, IFSC code, etc., 

 
a. For shares held in electronic form: to their Depository Participant only and not to 

the Company’s RTA. Changes intimated to the Depository Participant will then be 
automatically reflected in the Company’s records which will help the Company and 
its RTA provide efficient and better service to the Members. 
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b. For shares held in physical form: to the Company’s RTA in prescribed Form ISR -1 
and other forms pursuant to SEBI circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ 
CIR/2021/655 dated 03rd November, 2021, as per instructions mentioned in the 
form. 
 

26. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January, 2022 has mandated the 
listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing service 
requests, viz., Issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense 
account; renewal/ exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of 
securities certificate; consolidation of securities certificates/folios; transmission and 
transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting 
a duly filled and signed Form ISR-4. The said form is available on the website of the RTA. It 
may be noted that any service request can be processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant. 

 
27. SEBI vide its notification dated 24th January, 2022 has amended Regulation 40 of the Listing 

Regulations and has mandated that all requests for transfer of securities including 
transmission and transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialised form. In 
view of the same and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and avail various 
benefits of dematerialization, Members are advised to dematerialize the shares held by 
them in physical form. Members can contact the Company or RTA, for assistance in this 
regard. Accordingly, shareholders holding equity shares in physical form are urged to have 
their shares dematerialized so as to be able to freely transfer them.  

 
28. Members are requested to note that, dividends if not encashed for a consecutive period of 

7 (seven) years from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are 
liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (‘IEPF’). The shares in 
respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be transferred to the demat account 
of the IEPF Authority. In view of this, Members are requested to claim their dividends from 
the Company, within the stipulated timeline. The Members, whose unclaimed dividends/ 
shares have been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by making an online application 
to the IEPF Authority in web Form No. IEPF-5 available on www.iepf.gov.in and send a 
physical copy of the same duly signed to the Company along with the requisite documents 
enumerated in Form IEPF-5.  

  
29. In case of any queries regarding the Annual Report 2020-21, the Members may write to 

cs@gbglobal.in to receive an email response. 
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30. Any Member desirous of getting any information on the accounts or operations of the 
Company is requested to forward his/her/its queries to the Company at least seven working 
days prior to the Meeting, so that the required information can be made available at the 
Meeting. 

 
31. Based on the shareholding of the Members, whose names appear in the Register of 

Members/ List of beneficial owners, received from National Securities Depository 
Limited (‘NSDL’) / Central Depository Services Limited (‘CDSL’) as on close of the 
business hours on Wednesday, 21st September, 2022 (‘cut- off date’), a member shall be 
entitled to vote by way of remote voting or during the AGM. However, a person who is not 
a member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purpose only. 
The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up 
equity share capital of the Company. 

 
32. The remote e-voting period commences on Sunday, 25 th September, 2022 (9.00 a.m.) 

(IST) and ends on Tuesday, 27th September, 2022 (5.00 p.m.) (IST). 
 

33. During this period, Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or 
in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date may cast their vote by remote e-voting. 
The remote e- voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Those 
Members, who will be present in the AGM through electric mode facility and have not 
cast their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e- voting at the AGM. Once the vote on 
a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently. 

 
34. The EVEN number for voting on AGM is 122572. 

 
35. Instructions for shareholders to vote electronically: 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER: - 

 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 
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Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 

A. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to 
vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given 
below: 
 
Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL. 

i. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click 
on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is 
available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter 
your existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
 

ii. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

 
iii. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
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“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.  

 
iv. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 

“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can 
login through their user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also 
able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of 
e-Voting service provider i.e., NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast 
your vote. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistr
ation 
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4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link 
in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile 
& Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able 
to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to 
use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 
 
Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43  

 
B. Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other 

than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and 
shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
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1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile.  

 
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 

which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to 
NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can 
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

 
4. Your User ID details are given below: 

 
Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 
Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given 
below:  
 
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 
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b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 
retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password. 

 
c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace 
the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and 
open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to 
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits 
of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical 
form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 
in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 
5. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 
 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical 
mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can 
send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account 
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address 
etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting 
the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
6. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by 

selecting on the check box. 
 

7. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
 

8. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 
system. 
 
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 
system? 
 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in 
active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining 
virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General 
Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” 
and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print 
option on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 
 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required 

to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
cajignaparekh@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In 
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such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 
reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 
22 44 30  or send a request at pallavid@nsdl.co.in. 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the 
depositories for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-
voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) by email to cs@gbglobal.in. 
 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + 
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@gbglobal.in. If you are an Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the 
login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining 
virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 
 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned 
documents. 
 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number 
and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS 
UNDER: - 

 
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions 

mentioned above for remote e-voting. 
 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through 
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through 
remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to 
vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 
 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with 
the facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned 
for Remote e-voting. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM 
ARE AS UNDER: 

 
1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM 

through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps 
mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you 
can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu 
against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under 
Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please 
note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting 
or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following 
the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute 
rush. 

  
2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better 

experience. 
 
3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good 

speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or 
through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss 
due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to 
use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
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5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send 

their questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio 
number, email id, mobile number at cs@gbglobal.in. The same will be replied by 
the company suitably. 

 
6. Members who may want to express their views or ask questions at the AGM may 

mail the Company at cs@gbglobal.in to register as speakers, by mentioning their 
name, demat account number/folio number, email ID and mobile number. The 
Company will subsequently communicate the link for participation at the AGM to 
all such registered members. 

 
For GB GLOBAL LIMITED 

 
Date: 19th September, 2022 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESSES 
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013) 

 
The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, given hereunder sets out all 
material facts relating to the special business mentioned at Item Nos. 3 to 9 of the accompanying 
Notice.  
 
IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 1 -  
 
Pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the office of the Erstwhile Directors on the Board of 
the Company deemed to be resigned and consequently the new Board was reconstituted. 
 
The Monitoring Committee (constituted as per the terms of the Approved Resolution Plan) in their 
meeting held on 05th June, 2021 appointed Mr. Dev Thakkar (DIN: 07698270) as an Additional 
Director in the capacity of Non-Executive & Non - Independent Director and Chairman of the 
Company, liable to retire by rotation, subject to approval of the Members.  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act and the applicable Article of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Dev Thakkar shall hold office up to the date of this AGM and is 
eligible to be appointed as a Director. The Company has, in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act, 
received a notice in writing from a Member, proposing his candidature for the office of Director. 
Mr. Dev Thakkar, once appointed will be liable to retire by rotation. The profile and specific areas 
of expertise of Mr. Dev Thakkar are provided as Annexure to this Notice. 

 
Mr. Dev Thakkar has given his declaration to the Board that he is not restrained from acting as a 
Director by virtue of any Order passed by the SEBI or any such authority and is eligible to be 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. He has also given his consent to act as 
a Director. 
 
Given his experience, the Board considers it desirable and in the interest of the Company to have 
Mr. Dev Thakkar on the Board of the Company and accordingly the Board recommends the 
appointment of Mr. Dev Thakkar as a Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director and Chairman 
of the Company set forth at Item No. 1 of the accompanying Notice for approval by the Members. 
 
Except Mr. Vijay Thakkar, Mrs. Tanam Thakkar and Mr. Harsh Somaiya, none of the other Directors 
/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 
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IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 2 – 
 

Pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the office of the Erstwhile Directors on the Board of 
the Company deemed to be resigned and consequently the new Board was reconstituted. 
 
The Monitoring Committee (constituted as per the terms of the Approved Resolution Plan) in their 
meeting held on 05th June, 2021 appointed Mr. Vijay Thakkar (DIN: 00189355) as an Additional 
Director in the capacity of Executive Director and Managing Director of the Company, liable to 
retire by rotation, subject to approval of the Members for a period of 5 years on the terms and 
conditions including remuneration as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Audit Committee of the Board. 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act and the applicable Article of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Vijay Thakkar shall hold office up to the date of this AGM and is 
eligible to be appointed as a Director and Managing Director. The Company has, in terms of Section 
160(1) of the Act, received a notice in writing from a Member, proposing his candidature for the 
office of Director. Mr. Vijay Thakkar, once appointed will be liable to retire by rotation. The profile 
and specific areas of expertise of Mr. Vijay Thakkar are provided as Annexure to this Notice. 
 
The said appointment is done in accordance with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and 
provisions contained under Article of Association of the Company. 
 
The statement as required under Section II, Part II of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 
with reference to Special Resolutions is annexed hereto as “Annexure-A”. 
 
The Company has received consent in writing to act as a Managing Director from Mr. Vijay Thakkar 
that he satisfies all the conditions set out in Schedule V to the Act and as also conditions set out 
under Section 196 of the Act for being eligible for his appointment. He is also eligible to be 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act.  
 
Given his experience, the Board considers it desirable and in the interest of the Company to have 
Mr. Vijay Thakkar on the Board of the Company and accordingly the Board recommends the 
appointment of Mr. Vijay Thakkar as a Managing Director of the Company set forth at Item No. 2 
of the accompanying Notice for approval by the Members. 
 
Except Mr. Harsh Somaiya, Mrs. Tanam Thakkar and Mr. Dev Thakkar, none of the other Directors 
/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 
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IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 3 & 4 – 
 

Pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the office of the Erstwhile Directors on the Board of 
the Company deemed to be resigned and consequently the new Board was reconstituted. 
 
Pursuant to Section 149 of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Board of a listed entity is required 
to appoint prescribed number of Independent Directors.  
 
Accordingly, the Monitoring Committee (constituted as per the terms of the Approved Resolution 
Plan) in their meeting held on 05th June, 2021 appointed Mr. Paresh Jain (DIN: 05159799) and Mr. 
Shailesh Vora (DIN: 01381931) as Additional Directors to hold office as Independent Directors of 
the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of five years i.e., from 05th June, 2021 to 
04th June, 2026 subject to approval of the Members.  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act and applicable Article of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Paresh Jain and Mr. Shailesh Vora shall hold office up to the date 
of this AGM and are eligible to be appointed as Directors. The Company has in terms of Section 
160(1) of the Act, received in writing notices from a Member, proposing their candidature for the 
office of Director. The profile and specific areas of expertise of Mr. Paresh Jain and Mr. Shailesh 
Vora are provided as Annexure to this Notice. 
 
Mr. Paresh Jain and Mr. Shailesh Vora has given their declaration to the Board that they meets the 
criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) read with read with Schedule IV of the 
Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, is not restrained from acting as a Director 
by virtue of any Order passed by SEBI or any such authority and is eligible to be appointed as a 
Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and have given their consent to act a director.  

 
In line with the Company’s remuneration policy for Independent Directors, Mr. Paresh Jain and Mr. 
Shailesh Vora will be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending meetings 
of the Board and Committees thereof as approved by the Board of Directors, reimbursement of 
expenses for participating in the Board and other meetings and such other remuneration as may be 
approved by the Board from time to time, subject to applicable taxes, if any.  
 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Paresh Jain and Mr. Shailesh Vora are persons of integrity, possesses 
the relevant expertise / experience and fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and the Listing 
Regulations for appointment as Independent Directors. 
 
Given their experience, the Board considers it desirable and in the interest of the Company to have 
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Mr. Paresh Jain and Mr. Shailesh Vora on the Board of the Company and accordingly the Board 
recommends the appointment of Mr. Paresh Jain and Mr. Shailesh Vora as Independent Directors as 
set forth at Item Nos. 3 and 4 of the accompanying Notice for approval by the Members. 
 
None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

 
IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 5 -  

 
Pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the office of the Erstwhile Directors on the Board of 
the Company deemed to be resigned and consequently the new Board was reconstituted. 
 
The Monitoring Committee (constituted as per the terms of the Approved Resolution Plan) in their 
meeting held on 05th June, 2021 appointed Mrs. Tanam Thakkar (DIN: 00284512) as an Additional 
Director in the capacity of Non-Executive & Non - Independent Director of the Company, liable to 
retire by rotation, subject to approval of the Members.  

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act and the applicable Article of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mrs. Tanam Thakkar shall hold office up to the date of this AGM and 
is eligible to be appointed as a Director. The Company has, in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act, 
received a notice in writing from a Member, proposing her candidature for the office of Director. 
Mrs. Tanam Thakkar, once appointed will be liable to retire by rotation. The profile and specific 
areas of expertise of Mrs. Tanam Thakkar are provided as Annexure to this Notice. 

 
Mrs. Tanam Thakkar has given her declaration to the Board that she is not restrained from acting 
as a Director by virtue of any Order passed by the SEBI or any such authority and is eligible to be 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. She has also given her consent to act as 
a Director. 

 
Given her experience, the Board considers it desirable and in the interest of the Company to have 
Mrs. Tanam Thakkar on the Board of the Company and accordingly the Board recommends the 
appointment of Mrs. Tanam Thakkar as a Non-Executive & Non-Independent Woman Director of 
the Company as proposed in Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice for approval by the Members. 
 
Except Mr. Vijay Thakkar, Mr. Dev Thakkar and Mr. Harsh Somaiya, none of the other Directors / 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise, in the said resolution. 
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IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 6 -  

 
Pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the office of the Erstwhile Directors on the Board of 
the Company deemed to be resigned and consequently the new Board was reconstituted. 

 
The Monitoring Committee (constituted as per the terms of the Approved Resolution Plan) in their 
meeting held on 05th June, 2021 appointed Mr. Harsh Somaiya (DIN: 06360600) as an Additional 
Director in the capacity of Executive & Non - Independent Director and Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company, liable to retire by rotation, subject to approval of the Members.  

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act and the applicable Article of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Harsh Somaiya shall hold office up to the date of this AGM and is 
eligible to be appointed as a Director. The Company has, in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act, 
received a notice in writing from a Member, proposing his candidature for the office of Director. 
Mr. Harsh Somaiya, once appointed will be liable to retire by rotation. The profile and specific 
areas of expertise of Mr. Harsh Somaiya are provided as Annexure to this Notice. 

 
Mr. Harsh Somaiya has given his declaration to the Board that he is not restrained from acting as 
a Director by virtue of any Order passed by the SEBI or any such authority and is eligible to be 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. He has also given his consent to act as 
a Director. 

 
Given his experience, the Board considers it desirable and in the interest of the Company to have 
Mr. Harsh Somaiya on the Board of the Company and accordingly the Board recommends the 
appointment of Mr. Harsh Somaiya as Executive & Non - Independent Director and Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company proposed in Item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice for approval by the 
Members. 
 
Except Mr. Vijay Thakkar, Mrs. Tanam Thakkar and Mr. Dev Thakkar, none of the other Directors / 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 
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IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 7 – 
 

The Registered office address of the Company is presently situated at Plot No.C-3, M.I.D.C, Tarapur 
Industrial Area, Boisar – 401 506. With a view to improve the operational efficiency of the Company, 
the Board of Directors is proposing for shifting of registered office of the Company at 10th Floor, Dev 
Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station S. V. Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai – 400 058.  
 
In accordance with the provisions of section 12 of the Companies Act, 2013 except on the authority 
of a special resolution passed by the members of the Company, the registered office address of the 
Company shall not be changed, outside the local limits of the city, town or village where such office 
is situated.   
 
The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth at Item No. 7 of the accompanying Notice for 
approval by the Members. 

 
Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said 
resolution. 

 
IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 8 – 

 
Pursuant to Section 94 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act read with the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, certain documents such as the Registers prescribed 
under Section 88 of the Act and copies of Annual Returns as required under Section 92 of the Act, 
together with the copies of certain other registers, certificates, documents, etc. are required to be 
kept and maintained at the Registered Office of the Company. However, these documents can be 
kept at any other place in India in which more than one-tenth of the total Members entered in the 
Register of Members reside, if approved by a Special Resolution passed at a general meeting of the 
Company. 
 
Pursuant to the shifting of the registered office from Plot No.C-3, M.I.D.C, Tarapur Industrial Area, 
Boisar – 401 506 to 10th Floor, Dev Plaza, Opp. Andheri Fire Station S. V. Road, Andheri (West), 
Mumbai – 400 058, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in the ensuing AGM, 
approval of the Members is sought by way of a Special Resolution for keeping and maintaining the 
Registers as mentioned above together with the copies of certificates and documents required to be 
annexed thereto or any other documents as may be required, at the Registered Office of the 
Company. 
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The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth at Item No. 9 of the accompanying Notice for 
approval by the Members. 
 
Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said 
resolution. 

 
Note: Brief profiles of the aforesaid directors, who are proposed to be appointed or regularized as 
Directors, as required under Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (‘SS-2’) issued by the Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India and applicable regulation of Listing Regulations is provided in the 
“Annexure-B” to the Notice. 
 
 

Date: 19th September, 2022 
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(Formerly known as Mandhana Industries Limited) 
 
 
Komal Jhawar 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Membership No.: A59271

 
Registered Office: 
Plot No. C-3, M.I.D.C.  
Tarapur Industrial Area,  
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Annexure - A 
 

THE STATEMENT CONTAINING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED IN SCHEDULE V OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IS AS UNDER: 

 

a. General Information 
 

1.  Nature of Industry: Textile & Garments 
2. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: The Company is in operation 

since 1984. 
3.  In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved 

by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus: Not Applicable 
4. Financial performance based on given indicators: 

(Rs in Lakh) 
Particulars Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
Year ended 31st 
March, 2020 

Income from Operations and other Income 6,909.26 26,687.70 
Operating Profit  
(before interest, depreciation and tax) 

(5,914.08) (2,036.07) 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (10,609.33) (6,217.55) 
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (inclusive of other 
Comprehensive Income) 

(9,983.72) (4,356.54) 

(Note: Figures have been regrouped/recast wherever necessary) 
 

5.  Foreign investments or collaborations, if any: The Company has not made any Foreign Investments 
and neither entered into any collaborations during the last year. 

b. Information about the appointee 
 

Name Mr. Vijay Thakkar 

Background details Mr. Vijay Thakkar has been long engaged in the business of real 
estate and construction. He bears the torch of thought-leadership 
for the entire organization through his dynamic personality that 
resonates through various levels, spanning across all departments. 
He continuously strives to improve on projects, processes and 
structures, while personally overseeing all the construction sites to 
find out areas of improvement that would add value to the final 
product and the satisfaction quotient for customers. Further, Mr. 
Vijay Thakkar was appointed on the Board of the Company with 
effect from 05th June, 2021. 

Past Remuneration  First appointment in the Company with effect from 05th June, 2021 
and hence not applicable. 
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Recognition or Awards Not Available  
Job profile and his suitability  Mr. Vijay Thakkar is entrusted with substantial powers of the 

management and is responsible for the general conduct and 
management of the business and affairs of the Company, subject 
to the superintendence, control and supervision of the Board of 
Directors of the Company. Also, to perform the duties of directors 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
such other statues, rules and regulations as may be applicable to 
the Company. Further, the Company believes that the knowledge 
and experience of Mr. Vijay Thakkar will be of immense benefit to 
the Company.  

Remuneration proposed Mr. Vijay Thakkar has agreed to not take any remuneration from 
the Company for the said period of 5 years for which he is 
appointed.   

Comparative remuneration 
profile with respect to industry, 
size of the company, profile of 
the position and person 

Not Applicable 

Pecuniary relationship directly 
or indirectly with the Company 
or relationship with the 
Director, Manager and 
Managerial 
Personnel, if any 

He does not have any pecuniary relationship with the Company or 
relationships with any other managerial personnel and Directors 
except that with Mrs. Tanam Thakkar, Mr. Dev Thakkar and Mr. 
Harsh Somaiya. 

c. Other Information 
 

1. Reasons of loss or inadequacy of profits:  
 
The Company is passing a Special Resolution pursuant to the proviso to the sub-section (1) of Section 
197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act and inadequacy of profit is mainly due to lower 
manufacturing capacity utilization due to the stressed financial condition of the Company.  
 

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: 
 
Pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the Board has been re-constituted and accordingly, the 
Company is in the process of initiating various steps.  
 

3. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: 
 
The Company is very conscious about improvement in productivity and undertakes constant 
measures to improve it. However, it is extremely difficult to forecast the productivity and 
profitability in measurable terms. 
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d. Disclosures 
 

1. Remuneration package of the managerial person: 
 
Fully described in the proposed resolution of respective appointment as stated above. 
 

2. Disclosures in the Board of Directors’ report under the heading ‘Corporate Governance’ included 
in Annual Report 2020-21:  
 
The requisite details are included in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual 
Report 2020-21 of the Company. 
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Annexure B 
 

Profile of the Director seeking appointment at the Annual General Meeting 
 

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing of Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 along with Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-

2)] 
 

Name of the 
Director 

Mr. Paresh Jain Mr. Shailesh Vora 

DIN 05159799 01381931 
Date of Birth  14/09/1984 25/09/1967 
Age 36 Years  53 Years  
Qualifications Bachelor’s degree in commerce and a 

Chartered Accountant 
Bachelor’s degree in commerce and a 
Chartered Accountant 

Experience and  
Expertise 

Mr. Paresh Jain holds an experience 
of more than 10 years in handling 
direct and indirect taxes of domestic 
and Multinational companies. He has 
worked with Ernst and Young, TR 
Chadha and Company and Dalal and 
Shah (now PWC) as part of their tax 
and regulatory practices. He has an 
extensive experience in providing 
corporate tax advisory and litigation 
services to various domestic and 
multinational companies. 

A Senior Professional with more than 3 
decades of expertise across almost all 
spectrum of Corporate & Retail Finance 
including Debt & Equity, Restructuring 
apart from Due Diligence & Audit, MIS, 
Budgeting & System Implementations 
etc. A qualified Independent Director 
and Resolution Professional. Result-
oriented focusing on quality, costs, 
people and ethics. A strong team player 
with a strategic bent of mind and the 
ability to plan, execute & build. 

Date of first 
appointment on 
the Board 

05/06/2021 05/06/2021 

Shareholding Nil Nil 
Relationship with 
other Directors, 
Manager and KMP 

Not Related to any Director, 
Manager or KMP 

Not Related to any Director, Manager 
or KMP 

Number of Board 
meetings attended 
during the 
financial year 
(2020-21) 

Not Applicable  Not Applicable  

Directorship held 
in other 
Companies 

Public Companies:  
1. Manas Properties Limited 
 
Private Companies:  
1. Ariona Impex Private Limited 
 
 
 

NIL 
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Chairmanships 
/Membership of 
Committees in 
other Companies* 
 
*Membership/Chai
rmanship of Audit 
and Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee only is 
provided 

Chairmanship / Membership of 
Committees of other Board: 

1. Chairman – Audit Committee – 
Manas Properties Limited 

2. Chairman – Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee – Manas 
Properties Limited 

 

NIL 
 

Terms and 
Conditions of 
appointment/re-
appointment 
along with details 
of remuneration 
sought to be paid 
and remuneration 
last drawn by such 
person 
 

Terms and Conditions of 
appointment is as per the Approved 
Resolution Plan to perform the 
duties of Directors in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and such other statues, 
rules and other statues, rules and 
regulations as may be applicable to 
the Company. 
 
The details of remuneration sought 
to be paid is given in the explanatory 
statement annexed to this Notice. 

Terms and Conditions of appointment is 
as per the Approved Resolution Plan to 
perform the duties of Directors in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and such other 
statues, rules and other statues, rules 
and regulations as may be applicable to 
the Company. 
 
The details of remuneration sought to 
be paid is given in the explanatory 
statement annexed to this Notice. 

Justification for 
choosing the 
appointees for 
appointment as 
Independent 
Directors 

NA  NA 

Name of the 
Director 

Mr. Vijay Thakkar Mrs. Tanam Thakkar 

DIN 00189355 00284512 
Date of Birth  19-11-1969 25-12-1970 
Age  52 Years 50 Years  
Qualifications B.Com 

 
 

BA 

Experience and  
Expertise 

Mr. Vijay Thakkar has been long 
engaged in the business of real 
estate and construction. He bears 
the torch of thought-leadership for 
the entire organization through his 
dynamic personality that resonates 
through various levels, spanning 
across all departments. He 
continuously strives to improve on 
projects, processes and structures, 
while personally overseeing all the 
construction sites to find out areas 
of improvement that would add 

Mrs. Tanam Thakkar, has joined hands 
with her husband Mr. Vijay Thakkar, 
founder of   Dev Land & Housing Private 
Limited (DLH) and has played a vital 
role in laying the foundation of DLH. 
She has been instrumental in 
establishing the Company and bringing 
it to the position it is today. She 
overlooks design and interiors and all 
the projects and adds value to the final 
product and the satisfaction quotient 
for customers. Leading a group of 
skilled professionals, her flexible 
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value to the final product and the 
satisfaction quotient for customers. 
Further, Mr. Vijay Thakkar was 
appointed on the Board of the 
Company with effect from 05th 
June, 2021. 

attitude renders the momentum that 
percolates from the top to the roots 
earning DLH the trust, the credibility, 
and the brand status in the real estate 
industry it enjoys today. She is also 
involved in identifying and evaluating 
new business opportunities. 

Date of first 
appointment on 
the Board 

05/06/2021 05/06/2021 

Shareholding Nil Nil 
Relationship with 
other Directors, 
Manager and KMP 

Related to Mr. Dev Thakkar, Mrs. 
Tanam Thakkar and Mr. Harsh 
Somaiya 

Related to Mr. Vijay Thakkar, Mr. Dev 
Thakkar and Mr. Harsh Somaiya  

Number of Board 
meetings 
attended during 
the financial year 
(2020-21) 

Not Applicable  Not Applicable  

Directorship held 
in other 
Companies 

Public Companies:  
1. Manas Properties Limited 
 
Private Companies:  
1. Videv Realtors Private Limited 
2. Bloomcraft Apparels Private 
Limited 
3. Florita Buildcon Private Limited 
4. Mars Realtors Private Limited 
5.Flamingo Realtors Private Limited 
6. Antique Realtors Private Limited 
7.Dev Land & Housing Private 
Limited 
8. Bluerays Realtors Private Limited 
9. Bluepearl Homes Private Limited 
10. Devland Infracon Private Limited 
11. Growassests Estate Private 
Limited 
12. Clear Vision Publicity Private 
Limited 
13. Seven Hills Private Limited 
14. Veera Desai Real Estate Private 
Limited  
15. Bluepearl Structure Private 
Limited 
16. Rosestate Real Estate Private 
Limited 
17. Flowline Developers Private 
Limited 
 

Public Companies:  
1. Manas Properties Limited 
 
Private Companies:  
1. Flamingo Realtors Private Limited 
2. Antique Realtors Private Limited 
3. Dev Land & Housing Private Limited 
4. Bluepearl Structure Private Limited 
5. Clear Vision Publicity Private Limited 
 

Chairmanships 
/Membership of 
Committees in 
other Companies* 

NIL 

 

Chairmanship / Membership of 
Committees of other Board: 

1. Membership – Audit Committee – 
Manas Properties Limited 
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*Membership/Chai
rmanship of Audit 
and Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee only is 
provided 

2. Membership – Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee – Manas 
Properties Limited 

 

Terms and 
Conditions of 
appointment/re-
appointment 
along with details 
of remuneration 
sought to be paid 
and remuneration 
last drawn by such 
person 
 

Terms and Conditions of 
appointment is as per the Approved 
Resolution Plan to perform the 
duties of Directors in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and such other statues, 
rules and other statues, rules and 
regulations as may be applicable to 
the Company. 

Terms and Conditions of appointment is 
as per the Approved Resolution Plan to 
perform the duties of Directors in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and such other 
statues, rules and other statues, rules 
and regulations as may be applicable to 
the Company. 

Name of the 
Director 

Mr. Dev Thakkar Mr. Harsh Somaiya 

DIN 07698270 06360600 
Date of Birth  08-05-1994 03-04-1990 
Age  27 Years 31 Years 
Qualifications Bachelor’s Degree in Business 

Management and a degree in Real 
Estate Business Management from 
University of Westminster, London.  

Bachelor’s degree in Management 
Studies (BMS).  International 
Baccalaureate 

Experience and  
Expertise 

Mr. Dev Thakkar is a real estate 
developer and an entrepreneur 
with vast experience and 
knowledge of the industry. He has 
coupled business acumen with 
international exposure to put to 
use powerful and very successful 
strategies. He brings to the 
Company a variety of construction 
site experience, including insights 
of inspection codes and standards, 
identifying and developing new 
strategies to leverage new 
construction innovations.  

Mr. Harsh has a vast experience in 
textile and he is the key person 
responsible for looking after the 
operations of Bloom craft Apparels Pvt 
Ltd (started in 2014). He has worked for 
expansion of menswear brand online 
through e-commerce platforms like 
amazon, flipkart etc. He has also looked 
after recruitment of staff and labour 
and has technical knowledge of design 
of line plan, utilities & floor plan of the 
factories. 

Date of first 
appointment on 
the Board 

05/06/2021 05/06/2021 

Shareholding Nil Nil 
Relationship with 
other Directors, 
Manager and KMP 

Related to Mr. Vijay Thakkar, Mrs. 
Tanam Thakkar and Mr. Harsh 
Somaiya 

Related to Mr. Vijay Thakkar, Mr. Dev 
Thakkar and Mrs. Tanam Thakkar  
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Number of Board 
meetings 
attended during 
the financial year 
(2020-21) 

Not Applicable  Not Applicable  

Directorship held 
in other 
Companies 

Public Companies:  
1. Manas Properties Limited 
 
Private Companies:  
1. Palghar Rolling Mills Private 
Limited 
2. FLowline Developers Private 
Limited 

Public Companies:  
NIL 
 
Private Companies:  
1. King of Good Taste Private Limited 
2. Bloomcraft Apparels Private Limited 
3. Six Pack Packaging Private Limited 
4. Blue Door Kitchen Private Limited 
 

Chairmanships 
/Membership of 
Committees in 
other Companies* 
 
*Membership/Chai
rmanship of Audit 
and Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee only is 
provided 

Chairmanship / Membership of 
Committees of other Board: 

1. Membership – Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee – Manas 
Properties Limited 

 

NIL 

 

Terms and 
Conditions of 
appointment/re-
appointment 
along with details 
of remuneration 
sought to be paid 
and remuneration 
last drawn by such 
person 
 

Terms and Conditions of 
appointment is as per the Approved 
Resolution Plan to perform the 
duties of Directors in accordance 
with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and such 
other statues, rules and other 
statues, rules and regulations as 
may be applicable to the Company. 

Terms and Conditions of appointment is 
as per the Approved Resolution Plan to 
perform the duties of Directors in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and such other 
statues, rules and other statues, rules 
and regulations as may be applicable to 
the Company. 
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE 

 

Dear Shareholders,  
 
A very warm good afternoon to each and every one of you. 
 
It is a pleasure to connect with you all virtually. On behalf of GB Global Limited (formerly known 
as Mandhana Industries Limited) Reconstituted Board of Directors, I thank you for joining us 
today at the 37th AGM of your Company. The COVID-19 pandemic has touched every aspect of 
our lives across the world. It has altered mindsets, perceptions, and strategies for businesses and 
beyond. If there is one abiding lesson, it is that sustainable growth and development involves 
holistic nurturing of human, natural, and financial capital. Despite the external challenges around 
us, we are determined to deliver sustainable and profitable growth. 
 
Before I present the performance highlights and achievements of your Company during the 
Financial Year 2020-21 (“FY21”) and its future outlook, I would like to share key insights of the 
events that took place in the Company during the past financial year.  
 
Your Company was under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) vide the Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) order dated 05th December, 2019 under the provisions 
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. During the year under CIRP, the affairs of your 
Company were managed by the erstwhile Resolution Professional i.e. Mrs. Charu Desai as the 
powers of the Board of Directors were being suspended.  
 
The Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench vide its order dated 19th May, 2021 approved the Resolution 
Plan submitted for the Company by Dev Land & Housing Private Limited and in accordance with 
the same, the Monitoring Committee reconstituted the Board of Directors of your Company. 
 
The entire affairs of the Company for FY21 were managed by the erstwhile Resolution 
Professional Mrs. Charu Desai as the Resolution Plan was approved by the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai 
Bench vide its order dated 19th May, 2021.  
 
The Directors Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the financial Year ended 31st 
March, 2021, are already with you and with your kind permission, I take them as read.  
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Global Economy Overview 
 
The global economy contracted by 3.3% in the year FY21, much of which was concentrated in the 
first half of our fiscal year 2021. In response to the pandemic, central banks resorted to strongly 
supportive monetary policies in most developed economies, causing interest rates to go down to 
record lows. At the same time, another consequence of this policy has been a surfeit of liquidity. 
That has led to a strong rally in prices of many industrial commodities, which has also been 
supported by the evolving economic recovery, stimulus-related demand expectations and certain 
supply-side disruptions. This has caused inflationary pressures on the cost dynamic of several 
manufacturing industries. 
 
The latest IMF forecast suggests a strong 6% growth in global GDP in 2021. But the occurrence of 
second and third waves of COVID in different parts of the world and reports of virus mutations 
have created downside risks to the outlook of a strong growth rebound. Recovery remains 
uneven and uncertain, with the extent of fiscal support and level of vaccination being key 
differentiators of the short-term economic outlook across countries.  
 
As expected, Financial Year 2020-21 was a challenging year for our core textiles and garment 
business and was a highly unpredictable one and precisely the kind of market for which we were 
well prepared for. There was a sharp reduction in demand across all markets especially in the 
early part of the financial year. The longer-term prospects for the Indian economy continue to be 
robust. Various initiatives, including privatization of public sector enterprises, monetization of 
assets, implementation of National Infrastructure Pipeline, targeted investment incentives 
through the Production-Linked Incentives Scheme and the new Labour Code, are likely to spur a 
virtuous cycle of investments and growth in the medium-term. 
 
Looking ahead 
 
We primarily intend to stabilize the Company post taking over and focus on improving the 
revenue and profitability. The next fiscal is going to be a race to normalcy for the industry with 
re-invigorated market sentiments. We are looking at the new fiscal with a cautious optimism 
around markets and consumer preferences. The Indian economy is headed towards a steady 
recovery. As vaccination drives progress throughout the country, we expect consumers to get 
back to shopping with a renewed optimism, thereby giving us an opportunity to increase our 
revenue. 
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Acknowledgement  
 
Before I conclude, on behalf of the Reconstituted Board of Directors, I wish to convey our sincere 
regards and deep gratitude to our valued stakeholders for continued support and trust. I also put 
my heartfelt appreciation for all GB Global Limited’s ex-employees as they were the backbone of 
your Company and they have put their best efforts day after day to transform your Company and 
to make it more competitive even during the worst COVID19 situation. And last, but not least, I 
would like to thank you, our shareholders, for continuing to support us, in good times, and in 
difficult ones. 
 
I would like to conclude by saying that your Company will keep working to make a difference in 
your life and to enhance the quality of your life through clean energy and beyond.  
 
I urge every one of you to stay safe and take care of your loved ones. 
 
Thank you, esteemed Ladies and Gentlemen for your time and attention. 
 
Yours Sincerely, 
 
 
Dev Thakkar 
Chairman  
GB Global Limited  
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 

RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL 

MRS. CHARU DESAI 
IP Registration no. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00434/2017-18/10757 
 

(Appointed as Resolution Professional vide National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT”) 
order dated 05th December, 2019 and vacated the office with effect from 05th June, 2021 pursuant 
to the Approved Resolution Plan) 
 
SUSPENDED BOARD OF DIRECTORS* 

MR. PIYUSH VIRADIA    - Non-Executive Chairman 
          
MR. PIYUSH DOSHI    - Non-Executive Director 
          
MR. TODD ROBINSON   - Non-Executive & Independent Director 
       
RECONSITUTED BOARD OF DIRECTORS (WITH EFFECT FROM 05TH JUNE, 2021)** 

MR. VIJAY THAKKAR   - Executive & Managing Director 
          
MR. HARSH SOMAIYA   - Executive & CEO 
         
MR. DEV THAKKAR   - Non-Executive Chairman & Non-Independent Director 
        
MR. DEEPAK KUMAR***  - Non-Executive & Nominee Director (Representative of CoC)
       
MR. PARESH JAIN   - Non-Executive & Independent Director 
      
MR. SHAILESH VORA   - Non-Executive & Independent Director 
       
MRS. TANAM THAKKAR  - Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director 
 
MRS. KOMAL JHAWAR****  - Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 

 
*The powers of the aforesaid Board of Directors stood suspended pursuant to section 17 of Insolvency 
& Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”) and the said suspended Board of Directors deemed to be resigned 
with effect from 05th June, 2021 pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan. 
 
**The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated May 19th May, 2021(“NCLT Order”) approved the Resolution 
Plan submitted by the Dev Land & Housing Private Limited (“DLH”/ “Successful Resolution Applicant”), 
pursuant to the applicable provisions of IBC. As the effect of the said order, the reconstituted Board 
of Directors was inducted with effect from 05th June, 2021. 
 

*** Resigned with effect from 09th August, 2022. 
 

**** Appointed with effect from 01st August, 2022. 
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CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER   EQUITY ISIN  
 
L17120MH1984PLC033553     ISIN: INE087J01028 
 
 

45



         ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 

 
WORKS 

MANDHANA DYEING     MANDHANA WEAVING HOUSE 
(A Division of GB Global Limited)    (Shirting Division) 
Plot no. E-25, MIDC,      (A Division of GB Global Limited) 
Tarapur Industrial Area,     Plot No. C-2, MIDC, 
District Palghar – 401 506.    Tarapur Industrial Area,    

District Palghar – 401 506. 
 
 
MANDHANA WEAVING HOUSE    MANDHANA DYEING – UNIT II 
(A Division of GB Global Limited)    (A Division of GB Global Limited) 
Plot no. E-33, MIDC,      Plot No. C-3, MIDC, 
Tarapur Industrial Area,     Tarapur Industrial Area, 
District Palghar – 401 506.     District Palghar – 401 506. 
 
 
GB GLOBAL LIMITED      GB GLOBAL LIMITED 
(Garment Division)      (Garment Division) 
Plot no. E-132, MIDC,      26/A, Peenya ll Phase, 
Tarapur Industrial Area,     Peenya Industrial Area, 
District Palghar – 401 506.     Near NTTF Bus Stop, 

Bengaluru – 560 058. 
 

NOTES: 
 

1. The Indian Bank (the member of the CoC) filed an appeal before the Hon’ble National Company 
Law Appellate Tribunal (“NCLAT”) against the NCLT Order. The Hon’ble NCLAT vide order 
dated 20th September, 2021 passed an interim order of status quo (“NCLAT Status Que Order”) 
on the implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan and as a result of the same, the Company 
was unable to conduct the 37th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) for the financial year 2020-
21 within the stipulated time period. 
 

2. Thereafter, the Hon’ble NCLAT vide final order dated 06th May, 2022 (“NCLAT Final Order”) 
dismissed the said appeal filed by the Indian Bank and the interim order of status quo on the 
implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan stands cancelled. Therefore, in connection with 
the same, the Company is conducting its 37th AGM of the Company for the F.Y. 2020-21 on 
28th September, 2022. 
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT 

 
In this Annual Report, we might have disclosed forward-looking statements that set out 
anticipated results based on the management’s plans and assumptions. We cannot 
guarantee that these forward–looking statements will be realised, although we believe we 
have been prudent in our assumptions. The achievements of results are subject to risks, 
uncertainties, and even inaccurate assumptions. We undertake no obligation to publicly 
update any forward–looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future 
events or otherwise. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

Global Economy Overview 
 
According to the IMF’s April 2021 World Economic Outlook, the global economy is projected to 
grow 6% in 2021, up from its 5.5% forecast in January 2021. Similarly, as per OECD economic 
outlook global economic growth is now expected to be 5.8% this year, a sharp upwards revision 
from the December 2020 Economic Outlook projection of 4.2% for 2021. Differences in the 
strength of economic recovery across countries are being driven by the extent of government 
support towards public health and vaccination policies, along with coordinated multi-pronged 
aggressive monetary policy response across the world; given most of the economies were 
comfortable in terms of inflation prior to this pandemic. 
 
Indian Economy Overview 
 
The Indian economy is estimated to decline by 8% in FY 2020-21, the first year of contraction 
since 1980. India’s economic decline was sharper than other key economies due to strict and 
early lockdowns to control the spread of COVID-19. However, growth has continued to recover 
and was back in positive territory (+0.4%) in Q3 FY 2021 after a decline of 24.4% and 7.3% 
respectively in Q1 FY 2021 and Q2 FY 2021. India saw a V-shaped recovery as most consumption 
and industrial indicators were back in positive growth territory in the September-December 
quarter after being in deep negative in the June quarter.  
 
Industry Review 
 
The Indian textiles and apparel industry is the 6th most prominent globally, with an estimated size 
of USD 75 Billion, and contributing nearly 4% to the global pie. It employs over 45 million people 
and is the 5th largest exporter of textile and apparel in the world with exports worth USD 36.4 
billion. The pandemic has accelerated many trends in this space. 
The domestic textiles and apparel industry contributes 5% to India’s GDP, 7% of industry output 
in value terms and 12% of the country’s export earnings. The textile and apparel industry in India 
is the second largest employer in the country providing direct employment to 45 million people 
and 60 million people in allied industries.  
 
Indian domestic textile and apparel market is estimated at US $ 75 billion in 2020-21 and is 
expected to recover and reach to US $ 190 billion by 2025-26. Aided by an accommodative 
monetary policy, and a stable fiscal policy and outlook laid out in the budget, asset markets 
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continued to be strong as the fiscal 2021 drew to a close. Before the plunge of 2nd wave, it was 
widely estimated that the Indian economy will clock a strong 12%+ growth in FY22. The 
developments in April 2021 have created a huge uncertainty around this outlook, and most 
agencies have been revising down the growth expectations. 
 
Markets 
 
In the Indian markets, the Company faces competition from organised big players and the 
unorganised small & fragmented players. The Company has developed a good reputation 
amongst the domestic traders, garment manufacturers and brands due to its quality, design 
capabilities and cost. Further, the Company has now started building relationships with large 
retailers (physical and online) to supply fabrics and garments. Once the Company’s operations 
are scaled up, it would also be able to meet large volumes. The Company is confident that it 
would regain a preferred supplier status for big brands & retailers given the quality, design 
capability and the capacity available to provide large volumes on a consistent basis. 
 
The company is focused on realization of receivables and inventory management to unlock, to 
the extent possible, funds blocked in the current assets of the company thereby creating liquidity 
and making available of the working capital for the Company. 
 
Cautionary Statement 
 
The Company was under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) vide the Hon’ble NCLT 
order dated 05th December, 2019 under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016. The Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench vide its order dated 19th May, 2021 approved the 
Resolution Plan submitted for the Company by Dev Land & Housing Private Limited and in 
accordance with the same, the Monitoring Committee reconstituted the Board of Directors of 
your Company. 
 
The entire affairs of the Company for FY21 were managed by the erstwhile Resolution 
Professional Mrs. Charu Desai and hence the Reconstituted Board is not to be considered 
responsible to discharge fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight on financial and 
operational health of the Company and performance of the management for the period prior to 
its reconstitution.  
 
Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, 
projections, estimates and expectations may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning 
of applicable laws and regulations and based on the fact that the Resolution Plan for the Company 
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has been implemented. These statements have been based on current expectations and 
projections about future events. Wherever possible, all precautions have been taken to identify 
such statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, ‘expect’, ‘project’, ‘intend’, ‘plan’, 
‘believe’ and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future performance. 
Such statements, however, involve known and unknown risks, significant changes in political and 
economic environment in India or key markets abroad, tax laws, litigation, labour relations, 
exchange rate fluctuations, interest and other costs and may cause actual results to differ 
materially. There is no certainty that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although 
due care has been taken in making these assumptions. There is no obligation to publicly update 
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or 
otherwise. 
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BOARD’S REPORT 

 
TO THE MEMBERS OF GB GLOBAL LIMITED 
 
Your director’s take pleasure in presenting the 37th Annual Report on the business and 
operations of your Company, along with the summary of the Audited Financial Statements for 
the Financial Year (‘FY’) ended 31st March, 2021. 

 
The Members of the Company are informed that in accordance with the application made to 
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (‘NCLT’), vide its order dated 05th 
December, 2019 had ordered the commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution 
Process (‘CIRP’) in respect of the corporate debtor, i.e., GB Global Limited (formerly known as 
Mandhana Industries Limited) (‘the Company’) under the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (‘Code’). An Interim Resolution Professional was appointed by the 
Hon’ble NCLT to manage the affairs of the Company who was later appointed as the Resolution 
Professional (‘RP’) by the Committee of Creditors (‘CoC’). Upon admission in CIRP, the powers 
of the Board of Directors were suspended pursuant to Section 17 of the Code, and such powers 
were vested with the RP.  

 
The Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 19th May, 2021 approved the Resolution Plan (‘Approved 
Resolution Plan’) submitted for the Company by Dev Land & Housing Private Limited (‘DLH’/ 
‘Successful Resolution Applicant’), pursuant to the provisions of the Code. In accordance with 
the provisions of the Code and the order of the Hon’ble NCLT, the Approved Resolution Plan is 
binding on the Company and its employees, members, creditors, guarantors and other 
stakeholders involved in the Approved Resolution Plan. 

 
As per the Approved Resolution Plan, a Monitoring Committee was constituted comprising of 
2 (Two) representatives of DLH, 2 (Two) representatives of the Financial Creditors and 1 (One) 
reputed textile expert to manage the affairs of the Company as a going concern. The 
Monitoring Committee was entrusted with the management of the affairs of the Company as 
a going concern and supervision of the implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan. 
Thereafter, pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the Monitoring Committee, at their 
Meeting held on 05th June, 2021, inter-alia, reconstituted the Board of Directors of the 
Company (‘Reconstituted Board’). 
 
The Reconstituted Board of the Company is submitting this Annual Report in compliance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules framed thereunder (‘Act’) and the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). The Reconstituted Board is not to be considered 
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responsible to discharge fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight on financial and 
operational health of the Company and performance of the management for the period prior 
to its reconstitution. 
 
The financial results presented herein should be read in the above context. 

 
1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS: 
                                  (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the F.Y. 
2020-21 

For the F.Y. 
2019-20 

Revenue from Operations 6,710.33 25,978.34 
Other Income 198.93 709.36 
Profit/loss before Depreciation, Finance Costs, Exceptional 
items and Tax Expense (5914.08) (2036.07) 

Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 4093.14 4089.28 
Profit /loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional items and Tax 
Expense   

Less: Finance Cost 75.70 92.20 
Less: Exceptional Item (Impairment on Property, Plant & 
Equipment) 526.41 - 

Profit/ (Loss) Before Taxation (10,609.33) (6217.55) 
Less: Provision for Taxation 
 Current Tax 
             Deferred Tax  

 
- 

(424.17) 

 
- 

(1886.63) 
Net Profit/(Loss) for the Year (1) (10,185.16) (4,330.92) 
Total Comprehensive Income/(Expense) (2) 201.44 (25.62) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (1+2) (9,983.72) (4,356.54) 
EPS - - 
Basic (after exceptional item) (301.23) (131.45) 
Diluted (after exceptional item) (301.23) (131.45) 

 
Notes:  
 

1. Previous years’ figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary, to 
correspond with those of the current year. 

2. The exceptional item include impairment on certain items of Property, Plant & Equipment 
at its Bangalore plant amounting to ₹526.41 lakhs. 
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2. COMPANY PERFORMANCE AND THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 
 

The Highlights of the Company’s Performance for the FY ended 31st March, 2021 are as under: 
 

 The total revenue from operations including other income have decreased from 
₹26,687.70 lakhs to ₹6,909.26 lakhs.  

 The total loss before tax is ₹10,609.33 lakhs against last year’s loss of ₹6217.55 lakhs.  
 The total loss after tax is ₹10,185.16 lakhs against last year’s loss of ₹4,330.92 lakhs.  

 
Segment Reporting 

 
Your Company operates in two primary business segments, namely “Textile" and "Garment", 
which constitutes a reportable segment in the context of Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segments”. 
Therefore, the total loss before tax is ₹7,661.69 lakhs against last year’s loss of ₹6,032.78 lakhs 
under textile segment reporting and the total loss before tax is ₹2,214.48 lakhs against last 
year’s profit of ₹911.53 lakhs under garment segment. 

 
Also, the performance of the Company for the FY ended 31st March, 2021 is provided in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which is presented in a separate section forming 
part of this Annual Report. 

 
3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

 
During the year under review, the complete details on movement in Reserves and Surplus is 
mentioned in Note No. 13 in respect to Other Equity of the Standalone financial statements. 
 
4. DIVIDEND: 

 
The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant 
circumstances and losses, has decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any 
Dividend for the year under reviews. 
 
5. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS 
IN FUTURE: 

 
During the year under review, no significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators 
or Courts or Tribunals which impacted the going concern status and Company’s operations in 
the future. 
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However, the Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 19th May, 2021 approved the Resolution Plan 
submitted for the Company by DLH. In accordance with the provisions of the Code and the 
order of Hon’ble NCLT, the Approved Resolution Plan is binding on the Company and its 
employees, members, creditors, guarantors and other stakeholders involved in the Approved 
Resolution Plan and shall affect the Company’s operations in future. As the effect of the said 
order, the reconstituted Board was inducted with effect from 05th June, 2021. 
 
Thereafter, the Indian Bank (the member of the CoC) filed an appeal before the Hon’ble 
National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (‘NCLAT’) against the order of the Hon’ble NCLT. The 
Hon’ble NCLAT vide order dated 20th September, 2021 passed an interim order of status quo 
(‘NCLAT Status Quo Order’) on the implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan.  
 
The Hon’ble NCLAT vide order dated 06th May, 2022 (‘NCLAT Final Order’) dismissed the said 
appeal filed by the Indian Bank and the NCLAT Status Quo Order on the implementation of the 
Approved Resolution Plan stood cancelled. Therefore, in connection with the same, the 
Company is conducting its 37th AGM of the Company for the FY 2020-21 on 28th September, 
2022.  

 
6. MATERIAL CHANGES/DEVELOPMENTS PURSUANT TO THE APPROVED RESOLUTION 

PLAN: 
 
Pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the following key changes have taken place post 
closure of the FY and till as on date: 

 
 Constitution of the Monitoring Committee to oversee the implementation of the 
Approved Resolution Plan –  
To oversee the implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan, a Monitoring Committee, 
comprising of the following personnel’s were appointed– 

a. Two representatives of the Resolution Applicant;  
b. Two representatives of the Financial Creditors and 
c. One reputed textile expert 

 
In view of the same, the Monitoring Committee was formed on 28th May, 2021 and its 
Meeting was held to appoint the Erstwhile RP as a consultant to the Monitoring Committee 
to comply with the applicable provisions of the Acts and Regulations. The details of 
Monitoring Committee are provided in detail later in this Report.  
 
The powers of the Board of Directors of the Company continued to remain suspended and 
all the powers of the Board of Directors was exercised by the Monitoring Committee, until 
the Board of Directors was reconstituted.  
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 Reduction of existing paid-up share capital –  
The existing equity paid-up share capital of the Company stand reduced from 33,14,295 to 
33,145 shares of ₹10 each. The Monitoring Committee in its meeting held on 28th May, 2021 
fixed 05th June, 2021 as the record date for the purpose of reduction of the equity share 
capital of the Company and the same was intimated to the stock exchanges. As a result of 
the said intimation, trading of the equity shares stood suspended. 

 
 Infusion of Share Application Money and Unsecured Loan by the Resolution Applicant – 
DLH infused funds amounting to ₹50 Crores in the Company as a share application money 
and ₹5 Crores as unsecured loan into the Company. In view of the same, the Monitoring 
Committee in its meeting held on 05th June, 2021, allotted 5 Cores equity shares such that 
DLH holds 99.94% of the share capital of the Company, becoming the holding Company.  
 

 Taking over of management –  
The management and control of the Company from the Infusion Date i.e., 05th June, 2022 
vested with DLH.  

 
 Reconstituted Board and Committees -  
At the 03rd Monitoring Committee Meeting held on 05th June, 2021, the Committee 
Members approved the reconstitution of the Board of the Company by appointing new 
Directors and taking note of the deemed resignation of the suspended Board. The details of 
the reconstituted Board are given in detail in the said report. 

 
 Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) –  
Mr. Harsh Somaiya has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer (‘CEO’) of the 
Company and later the management on 09th August, 2022 appointed Mrs. Komal Jhawar as 
the Whole Time Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company. 

 
 Change in Statutory Auditor –  
In terms of the Approved Resolution Plan, M/s. CNK & Associates LLP, the Statutory Auditors 
vacated their office after completing their audit for the FY ended on 31st March, 2021. 
Thereafter, M/s. Bhuta Shah & CO. LLP was appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the 
Company till the ensuing Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Company.  The Details of 
the same are provided later in the said Report. 

 
 Appeal filed with the Hon’ble NCLAT –  
The Indian Bank (the member of the CoC) filed an appeal before the Hon’ble NCLAT against 
the order of the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai. The Hon’ble NCLAT vide order dated 20th 
September, 2021 passed an interim order of status quo on the implementation of the 
Approved Resolution Plan. Thereafter, the Hon’ble NCLAT vide final order dated 06th May, 
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2022 dismissed the said appeal filed by the Indian Bank and the interim order of status quo 
on the implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan stands cancelled.  
 

 Payments to Creditors – 
Pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan and applicable provisions of the Code and 
Regulations, the full and final payment was made towards repayment of CIRP cost, 
operational creditors and financial creditors. Further, as stated above, the payment was 
made to the FC as on the discharge date viz. 06th June, 2022. 
 

 Redemption of Non-Convertible Debentures (‘NCDs) of the Company –  
Pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the reconstituted Board has done all formailities 
and Corporate Action for the Redemption of NCDs.  
 

 Delisting of NCDs –  
The Company has applied for delisting of NCDs from BSE Limited and the said application is 
under process with the stock exchange. 
 

 Satisfaction of Charges –  
Pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the discharge date for the full and final payment 
of Financial Creditors (‘FC’) Discharge Amount as committed by DLH was 06th June, 2022 and 
on the same date, DLH paid the FC Discharge Amount. In connection with the same, the 
Charges are satisfied by the Company from whom the Company have received No Dues 
Certificate.  
 

 Resignation of Mr. Deepak Kumar, Nominee Director of the Company –  
Mr. Deepak Kumar, Nominee Director of the Company have tendered his resignation letter 
dated 10th August, 2022 pursuant to the approved Resolution Plan. 

 
7. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
 
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of the business of the 
Company. 
 
8. CHANGE IN THE NAME OF THE COMPANY: 
 
During the year under review, there was no change in the name of the Company. 
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9. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FY OF THE 
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 
REPORT: 

 
There have been no material changes and commitments which affect the financial position of 
the Company which have occurred between the end of the FY to which the financial statements 
relate i.e., 31st March, 2021 and the date of this Report expect as stated in the said Report. 
 
10. SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE: 

 
There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company during the year. Therefore, 
the Paid-Up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2021 was Rs. 3,31,42,950/- and Rs. 
5,70,00,000/- as NCDs. 
 
Further, no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as they were 
not applicable or there were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 
 

 Details relating to reduction or issue of equity shares including sweat equity shares, bonus 
shares stock options, and shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise, 
since there was no such issue of shares. 
 

11. IMPACT OF COVID-19: 
 

The outbreak of Coronavirus (‘COVID-19’) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant 
disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. In many countries, businesses are being forced 
to cease or limit their operations for long or indefinite periods of time. Measures taken to 
contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing, and 
closures of non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses 
worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown. 
 
The lockdown and restrictions due to COVID -19 pandemic have posed various challenges to 
the operations and business of the Company. The Company’s manufacturing facilities at all 
locations and offices has partially resumed its manufacturing operation in some of its units in 
April - 20 (Bangalore) and May - 20 (Tarapur) after taking all the necessary precautions on safety 
of its employees and other parameters as stipulated in the government directives. 
 
The Company has considered internal and external information while finalizing various 
estimates and recoverability of assets in relation to its financial statement captions upto the 
date of approval of the financial results by the Board of Directors. The impact of COVID-19 may 
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be different from what is estimated as at such date of approval of the financial results and the 
Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. 
 
The Second wave of the pandemic has also pose a downside risk to the industry and economy 
as well and impact the profitability of the FY 2021-22, In view of the prevailing uncertainty in 
the future, the full extent of the impact of COVID - 19 pandemic on the Company cannot be 
accurately ascertained at this juncture. 
 
12. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, read with Investor Education Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘IEPF Rules’) as amended from time to 
time, the shares pertaining to which dividend remains unclaimed/unpaid for a period of 7 
(seven) years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account is mandatorily required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (‘IEPF’) established by the 
Central Government. 
 
The reconstituted Board complied with the applicable provisions of the Act and Rules related 
to IEPF.  
 
Any person whose unclaimed dividend and shares pertaining thereto has been transferred to 
the IEPF can claim their due amount from the IEPF Authority by making an electronic 
application in e-Form IEPF-5. Upon submitting a duly completed form, shareholders are 
required to take a print of the same and send physical copy duly signed along with requisite 
documents as specified in the form to the Nodal Officer, at the Registered Office of the 
Company. The form can be downloaded from the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
at www.iepf.gov.in. 
 
13. MANAGEMENT  

 
a. Monitoring Committee: 
 
As per the Approved Resolution Plan, the Monitoring Committee was constituted on 28th 
May, 2021 for running the operations of the Company and for monitoring the implementation 
of the Approved Resolution Plan. 
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The Monitoring Committee comprised of the following personnel’s:  
 

Sr. No.  Name of Member Designation 
1 Mr. Prashant Agarwal Textile Expert 
2 Mr. Bhupendra Singh  Representative of State Bank of India 
3 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Tiwari  Representative of Bank of Baroda 
4 Mr. Raghunath Chavan Representative of DLH 
5 Mrs. Henna Garodia Representative of DLH 

 
b. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel  
 
Pursuant to the commencement of CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors were 
suspended and were exercised by the Erstwhile RP till the final order was passed by the 
Hon’ble NCLT. After the final order was passed on 19th May, 2021 by the Hon’ble NCLT, the 
powers were vested with the Monitoring Committee till the new Board was reconstituted. 
Therefore, there was no change in the Board of Directors during the year under review. 
 
As per the Approved Resolution Plan, the Monitoring Committee at their meeting held on 05th 
June, 2021 reconstituted the Board and accordingly the following Directors were appointed 
as Additional Directors who shall hold office until the ensuing AGM. 
 
Details of Reconstituted Board of Directors 
 

Sr. No. Director Details Designation DIN 

1 Mr. Dev Thakkar 
Chairman – Non-Executive Non-

Independent Director 
07698270 

2 Mr. Vijay Thakkar Managing Director 00189355 
3 Mr. Harsh Somaiya Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer 06360600 

4 
*Mr. Deepak 

Kumar 
Nominee Director (Non-Executive Director) 

Representing Lending Bankers 
07656062 

5 Mr. Paresh Jain Independent Director 05159799 
6 Mr. Shailesh Vora Independent Director 01381931 

7 
Mrs. Tanam 

Thakkar 
Non-Executive Non- Independent Woman 

Director 
00284512 

*Mr. Deepak Kumar, Nominee Director of the Company resigned vide his resignation letter 
dated 10th August, 2022.  
 
The Board of Directors recommends their appointment as the Directors at the ensuing AGM. 
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Further, pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the below mentioned suspended Board 
of Directors deemed to resign from the Board of the Company with effect from 05th June, 
2021: 
 

Sr. No. Director Details Designation DIN 

1 
Mr. Piyush Vrajlal 

Doshi 
Non-Executive - Non-Independent 

Director 07597924 

2 
Mr. Piyush 

Bavanjibhai Viradia 
Non-Executive - Non-Independent 

Director, Chairperson 08234863  

3 
Mr. Todd Nicholas 

Robinson 
Non-Executive - Independent Director 

08306844 

 
KMP 
 

Sr. No. Director Details Designation DIN/PAN 
1 Mr. Harsh Somaiya Chief Executive Officer 06360600 

2 *Mrs. Komal Jhawar  
Company Secretary & Compliance 

Officer 
ATAPJ5249H 

*Mrs. Komal Jhawar is appointed as the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 
Company with effect from 09th August, 2022.   
 

14. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
 

Pursuant to commencement of the CIRP, Mr. Todd Nicholas Robinson was the Independent 
Director of the Company. However, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the IBC, the powers 
of the Board were suspended during the CIRP and had continued to remain suspended during 
the entire FY under review. In view of the same, there was no change in the Independent 
Directors on the Board of the Company.  
 
As per the Reconstituted Board, Mr. Paresh Jain and Mr. Shailesh Vora are the Independent 
Directors on the Board with effect from 05th June, 2021. The Company has received 
declarations from them confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed 
both under the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Act and in terms of Regulation 25 of the 
Listing Regulations and that they have registered their names in the Independent Directors’ 
Databank. Also, a statement from them that have complied with the Code for Independent 
Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations, the Independent 
Directors also confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist 
or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact his ability to discharge their 
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duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence and that 
they are independent of the management. 

 

15. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD: 
 
As the powers of the Board of Directors were suspended, no meetings of the Board were held 
during the year under review. However, during the year under review, 11 meetings of the CoC 
were held in accordance with the provisions of the Code. 
 
16. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: 
 
Prior to the commencement of CIRP, the Company had constituted/reconstituted various 
Board level committees in accordance with the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations.  
The following Committees of the Board was there during the year under review: 
 
1. Audit Committee –  

Sr. No.  Name of the Member Designation 
1 Mr. Todd Robinson  Member 
2 Mr. Piyush Doshi  Member 

 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee -  

Sr. No.  Name of the Member Designation 
1 Mr. Piyush Viradia  Member 

 
3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee -  

Sr. No.  Name of the Member Designation 
1 Mr. Piyush Doshi  Member 

 
4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee - 

Sr. No.  Name of the Member Designation 
1 Mr. Piyush Viradia Chairman 
2 Mr. Todd Robinson Member 

 
As the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended post commencement of the CIRP and 
continued to remain suspended during the year under review, therefore no meetings were 
held of the above-mentioned Committees.  
 
Further, pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, the Board was reconstituted and 
subsequently the various Committees were also reconstituted by the Monitoring Committee 
at their meeting held on 05th June, 2021. Thereafter, the Board approved the charter for the 
functioning of the Committees. 
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The following Committees were reconstituted:  
 
1. Audit Committee –  

As per the Approved Resolution Plan, the Audit Committee has been reconstituted in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, with effect from 05th 
June, 2021 as detailed below: 
 

Sr. No.  Name of the Member Designation 
1 Mr. Paresh Jain Chairman 
2 Mr. Shailesh Vora Member 
3 Mr. Dev Thakkar Member 

Recommendations of Audit Committee 
The Board has not accepted any recommendation of the Audit Committee during the year 
under review as the power of the Board was suspended pursuant to the applicable 
provisions of the Code and Regulations thereunder.  

 
2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee -  

Post implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee has been reconstituted in accordance with the provision of the Act and Listing 
Regulations, with effect from 05th June, 2021, as detailed below: 

 
Sr. No.  Name of the Member Designation 

1 Mr. Paresh Jain Chairman 
2 Mr. Shailesh Vora Member 
3 Mr. Dev Thakkar Member 

 
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee –  

Post implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan, the Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee has been reconstituted in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Listing 
Regulations, with effect from 05th June, 2021, as detailed below: 

 
Sr. No.  Name of the Member Designation 

1 Mr. Paresh Jain Chairman 
2 Mr. Shailesh Vora Member 
3 Mr. Dev Thakkar Member 
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4. Risk Management Committee –  
Post implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan, the Risk Management Committee 
has been reconstituted in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Listing 
Regulations, with effect from 05th June, 2021, as detailed below: 
 

Sr. No.  Name of the Member Designation 
1 Mr. Dev Thakkar Chairman 
2 Mr. Vijay Thakkar Member 
3 Mr. Paresh Jain Member 

 
17. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION: 
 
Prior to the commencement of CIRP, the Company had in place the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP’s”) and Senior 
Management Personnel to align with the requirements of the Act and the Listing Regulations.  
 
The said policy laid down the parameters on appointment and evaluation of Board of Directors, 
KMP’s and Senior Management Personnel setting out the guiding principles for the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee for identifying the individuals who are qualified to become 
Directors and to determine the independence of Directors, in case of their appointment as 
Independent Directors of the Company and other matters provided under sub-section (3) 
of section 178 of the Act.  
 
The said Policy is available on the website of the Company at www.gbglobal.in. The web link of 
the same is https://www.gbglobal.in/codes-of-conduct-policies.php. 
 
18. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Board is required to carry an 
annual evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually including Independent 
Directors as well as the evaluation of the working of various committees. 
 
The annual performance evaluation of the Board including Independent Directors and its 
committees thereof was not undertaken since the powers of the Board of Directors were 
suspended for the entire year under review.  
 
19. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR: 

 
Prior to the commencement of CIRP, the Company had in place a familiarization program for 
the Independent Directors to familiarize them with their role, rights and Responsibilities as 
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Directors, the working of the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, 
business model etc. in compliance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations 
 
The said Policy is available on the website of the Company at www.gbglobal.in. The web link of 
the same is https://www.gbglobal.in/codes-of-conduct-policies.php. 
 

20. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
 

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 (1), 5(2) and 5(3) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a 
statement showing the names of top 10 (ten) employees in terms of remuneration drawn and 
names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set 
out in the said Rules forms part of this report as “Annexure – I”. 
 
Disclosures relating to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of 
the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this report as “Annexure – I”. 

 
However, according to the information and explanations given to us by erstwhile RP and based 
on our examination of the available records, we hereby report that the Company has not paid 
or provided managerial remuneration during the year. 

 
Further, this report is being sent to the Members excluding the said statement. The said 
statement is available for inspection of members at the Registered/Corporate Office of the 
Company during working hours upto the date of the AGM and shall be made available to any 
shareholder on request.  

 
21. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (‘CEO’) AND 

TAKEN ON RECORD BY THE RECONSTITUTED BOARD: 
 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind 
AS’) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial 
instruments, which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Act (to the extent 
notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’). The Ind 
AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2016. The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried 
out in accordance with applicable transition guidance. Accounting policies have been 
consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy thereto 
in use.  
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However, the Reconstituted Board is not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary 
duties with respect to the oversight on financial and operational health of the Company and 
performance of the management for the period prior to its reconstitution. 

 

In light of the aforesaid and pursuant to the requirements under sub section (3)(c) and (5) of 
Section 134 of the Act, with respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, your management 
state that: 

 

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the FY ended 31st March, 2021, the applicable 
Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures;  

 

ii. Accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and 
estimates made that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the FY and of the profit of the Company for 
the year under review; 

 
iii. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

iv. The annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
 

v. Internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid down and 
ensured that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and  

 
vi. Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 

22. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 
 
The Company has in place policies and procedures to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business including adherence to Company policies, safeguarding its assets, prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and timely 
preparation of reliable financial information. Your Company, with respect to all material 
aspects, has adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls were operating effectively during the period under review.  
 
The internal financial controls are continually reviewed by the Company to strengthen the 
same wherever required. The internal control systems are supplemented by internal audit 
carried out by an independent firm of Chartered Accountants and periodical review by the 
management.  

65



         ANNUAL REPORT 2020 - 21 

Further, the reconstituted Board was appointed on 05th June, 2021 and the new management 
has on best effort basis and considering the complexity of the operations, including challenges 
in implementing the Resolution Plan, put in place a framework for Internal Financial Controls.  

 
23. FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITOR: 
 
The Auditors of your Company have not reported any frauds to the Erstwhile RP or COC as 
mentioned under Section 143 (12) of the Act, during the period under review.  

 
24. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES: 
 
The Company has no subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company as on 31st March, 2021. 
However, post the closure of the FY 2020-21 and pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, 
DLH became the Holding Company by holding 99.94% shares in the Company.  
 
Further, there are no Companies/Body Corporate which have become/ceased to be subsidiary/ 
Joint Venture / Associate during the year under review.  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient features of financial statements of subsidiaries and 
joint venture companies in Form AOC- 1 is not applicable to the Company.  
 
The policy for determining Material Subsidiaries as approved by the Board of Directors prior to 
the commencement of the CIRP is available on the website of the Company at www.gbglobal.in 
and the web link of the same is https://www.gbglobal.in/codes-of-conduct-policies.php. 
 
25. PUBLIC DEPOSIT: 

 
Your Company has not accepted any public deposits under Chapter V of the Act for the FY 
under review. 
 
26. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 

 
Particulars of loans, guarantees given and investments made during the FY, as required under 
Section 186 of the Act and Listing Regulations are provided in Notes to the financial statements 
of the Company for the FY ended 31st March, 2021 and the said notes are self-explanatory in 
nature. 
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 
 
As per the records provided by the Erstwhile RP to the Reconstituted Board, there were no 
materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with its related parties 
which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large or which warrants 
the approval of the shareholders during the year under review. 
 
As the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement /transaction with related 
parties which could be considered material in accordance with the Policy of the Company on 
materiality of related party transactions which is required to be reported in Form No. AOC-2 in 
terms of the provisions of Section 134(3)(h), Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Act read with the relevant Rules made thereunder is not applicable to the Company. 
 
The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors prior to the 
commencement of the CIRP is available on the website of the Company at www.gbglobal.in 
and the web link of the same is https://www.gbglobal.in/codes-of-conduct-policies.php. 
 
28. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 
 
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act, the Company is required to spend 2 (two) percent of the 
average net profit of the Company for three immediately preceding FYs. As the average net 
profit of the Company during previous three FYs was negative, the Company was not required 
to spend any amount for the CSR purpose during the year under review. However, the 
Company does not fall under any of the applicability criteria of CSR as mentioned under the 
provisions of Section 135 of the Act.  
 
The Annual Report on CSR activities for the FY 2020-21 as required under the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, is not applicable to the 
Company. Hence, the Annual Report on CSR activities for the FY 2020-21 is annexed as 
Annexure – ‘II’ and forms an integral part of this report. 
 
The policy on Corporate Social Responsibility as approved by the Board of Directors prior to 
the commencement of the CIRP is available on the website of the Company at www.gbglobal.in 
and the web link of the same is https://www.gbglobal.in/codes-of-conduct-policies.php. 
 
29. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo, as required under Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the 
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Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31st March, 2021 is annexed as Annexure 
– ‘III’ and forms an integral part of this report. 
 
30. ENVIRONMENT: 

 
The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. 
The Company’s policy requires conduct of operations in such a manner so as to ensure safety 
of all concerned and preservation of natural resources. 

 
31. RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
The Company has in place a Risk Management framework to identify, measure and mitigate 
business risks and threats. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse 
impact on the business objective and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage.  
 
This risk framework thus helps in managing market, credit and operations risks and quantifies 
exposure and potential impact at a Company level. 
 
32. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 
 
The Company had, prior to the commencement of the CIRP, put in place a Vigil Mechanism/ 
Whistle Blower Policy (“the policy”). The said policy was established effectively for the 
Directors and employees of the Company, to provide a framework to facilitate responsible and 
secure reporting of concerns of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of 
the Company’s Code of Conduct & Ethics.  
 
The said policy as approved by the Board of Directors prior to the commencement of the CIRP 
is available on the website of the Company at www.gbglobal.in and the web link of the same 
is https://www.gbglobal.in/codes-of-conduct-policies.php. 
 
No employee has been denied access to the erstwhile RP as the Board of Directors were 
suspended during the year under review.  
 
33. AUDITORS: 
 
a. Statutory Auditors:  

 
In accordance with Section 139 of the Act, the Members of the Company in its 35th AGM, held 
on 26th September, 2019, have appointed M/s. CNK & Associates LLP., Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration Number: 101961W/W-100036) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to 
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hold office till the conclusion of the 40th AGM of the Company. M/s. CNK & Associates LLP., 
Chartered Accountants has furnished the financial results and independent auditor’s report for 
the FY ended 31st March, 2021. 
 
However, as per the Approved Resolution Plan, M/s. CNK & Associates LLP., Chartered 
Accountants have vacated their office by tendering their resignation letter dated 09th 
September, 2021 from the position of the Statutory Auditors of the Company effective from 
19th May, 2021. 
 
In connection with same and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the                            
Reconstituted Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 30th September, 2021, 
took a note of the said resignation and approved the appointment of M/s. Bhuta Shah & Co. 
LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101474W/ W100100) as Statutory Auditors of the Company 
to fill the casual vacancy caused due to the resignation of M/s. CNK & Associates LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold the office till the conclusion of the 
ensuing AGM of the Company.  
 
Further, upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board recommends the 
appointment of M/s. Bhuta Shah & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the statutory auditors 
of the Company for a term of 5 (five) years in the ensuing AGM in the light of confirmation 
received by the auditors of their eligibility and qualification under the Act. 
 
b. Secretarial Auditors:  
 
The Reconstituted Board in their meeting held on 21st August, 2021 appointed Ms. Vyoma 
Desai & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 11166) as Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company for conducting Secretarial Audit for the FY 2020-21 pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 204 of the Act, Rule 9 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and pursuant to Listing Regulations. 
 
The Secretarial Audit Report in MR – 3 is annexed as Annexure- ‘IV’ and forms an integral part 
of this Report. 
 
c. Cost Auditors:  
 
As per the requirement of Central Government and pursuant to Section 148 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the 
Company has maintained cost accounts and records. 
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M/s. C.B. Modh & Co., Cost Accountants was appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company 
for conducting Cost Audit in respect of products manufactured by the Company which are 
covered under the Cost Audit Rules for the FY ending 31st March, 2021.  
 
The Company is in the process of filing the Cost Audit Report, for the FY ended 31st March, 
2021 with the Central Government. 
 
d. Internal Auditors:  
 
Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Reconstituted Board in their meeting 
held on 21st August, 2021 appointed J. A. S. N. & Co. LLP, Practicing Chartered Accountant Firm 
(Firm Registration Number W100635) as Internal Auditor of the Company for conducting 
Internal Audit for the F.Y. 2020-21 and F.Y. 2021-22 pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 
of the Act. 
 
34. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE 

REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORTS: 
 

A. Statutory Auditor’s Qualification 
 

i. Auditor’s Qualification:  
The NCLT vide its order dated 19th May, 2021 has approved the Resolution Plan submitted 
by the successful resolution applicant. However, effects of all the relief and modification 
provided in the same has not been considered in Note 1 and Note 5 (b) to the said financial 
results. The events or conditions as mentioned in the said note indicate that till the time 
the final outcome and all approvals are in place and the relief that has been sought from 
various authorities are received by the Company the resolution plan cannot be successfully 
implemented. This indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast a significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
Management explanation: 
The Reconstituted Board is under obligation to successfully implement the Approved 
Resolution Plan and therefore has made its best efforts to implement the same to reduce 
the adverse effect on the functioning and operations of the Company.  
 
Further, the Auditors’ Report and notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors 
Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments under 
Section 134 of the Act. The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial statements in 
this Annual Report.  
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B. Secretarial Auditor’s Qualification 
 
i. Auditor’s Qualification: 

The Company was unable to file the Financial Results as per the Regulation 33(3)(d) of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulation 2015, for the year ended 31st March, 2021 within sixty days from the 
end of financial year. 
 
Management explanation: 
The Company was unable to file the Financial Results as per the Regulation 33(3)(d) of 
Listing Regulations, for the year ended 31st March, 2021 within sixty days from the end of 
financial year as the Company on 23rd June, 2021, filed an application with the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), inter alia, seeking an extension of time for 
submission of Financial results of the Company for the quarter and year ended 31st March 
2021 in terms of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, for the reasons as further 
detailed in the said intimation to stock exchanges.  
 

ii. Auditor’s Qualification: 
The total outstanding loans including the NCDs stood suspended due to above mentioned 
process explained hereto. Hence during the year under review, the Company have not filed 
the relevant documents to the statutory authorities pertaining to the debt (including 
NCDs), if any. 
 
Management explanation: 
The Company was not under obligation to file the relevant documents to the statutory 
authorities pertaining to the debt (including NCDs) as the total outstanding loans including 
the NCDs stood suspended.  
 

iii. Auditor’s Qualification: 
The Company has duly filed relevant forms and returns with the Registrar of Companies, 
Regional Director, Central Government or other authorities within the time prescribed 
under the Act and the rules made there under and with additional fees wherever there has 
been a delay in filing forms/returns except the required E - Forms as per Section 124 and 
125 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
 
Management explanation: 
The reconstituted Board took note of the same and has adhered the requirement of filing 
the requisite E-Forms with the statutory Authorities.  
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iv. Auditor’s Qualification: 
The Company is yet to file the Cost Audit Report, for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2021 with the Central Government. 
 
Management explanation: 
The Reconstituted Board is putting its best efforts to file the said Cost Audit Report and 
will adhere the same at the earliest. 
 

v. Auditor’s Qualification: 
Since the Powers of Board of Directors stand suspended on account of hon NCLT order for 
restoration of CIRP in the Company, no separate meeting of Independent Directors was 
held during the Financial Year 2020-21 and consequently, the evaluation of the 
performance of Board of Directors and of its committee and individual directors were also 
not undertaken during the year under review. 
 
Management explanation: 
The same is self-explanatory in nature.   
 

vi. Auditor’s Qualification: 
The Company was unable to conduct its Annual General Meeting (AGM) for the Financial 
Year 2020-21 within the prescribed timeline pursuant to Status Quo Order imposed by the 
NCLAT. However, the extension for holding AGM for the Financial Year 2020-21 was 
granted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its order dated 08.09.2020 till 31.12.2020. 
 
Management explanation: 
The same is self-explanatory in nature.   
 

vii. Auditor’s Qualification: 
During the financial year 2020-21, the Company was levied fines by BSE Limited (BSE) and 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) for not appointing Company Secretary as 
Compliance Officer of the Company, Non filing of Financial Results and Non filing of 
Secretarial Compliance Report under Regulation 6 (1), Regulation 33 and Regulation 24A 
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 respectively. Further, the Company has filed an 
Application with BSE and NSE for waiving of the amount of penalties imposed. 
 
Management explanation: 
The same is self-explanatory in nature.   
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35. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 
 
During the FY 2020-21, the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of Secretarial 
Standards i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General 
Meetings’ respectively issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. However, 
Secretarial Standard 1 is not applicable as no Board Meeting or Meeting of Committee of Board 
of Directors thereof were conducted during the period under review. 
 
36. CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 

AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016: 
 
During the period under review, the application under Section 31 of the Code, for approval of 
Resolution Plan were pending before the Hon’ble NCLT. As stated above, the final order in the 
said matter was passed by the Hon’ble NCLT in the hearing held on 19th May, 2021 which was 
received by DLH on 26th May, 2021. Therefore, as the effect of the said order passed by the 
Hon’ble NCLT, the Company is no longer under CIRP.  
However, the implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan is in the process by the 
management of the Company.  
 
37. ANNUAL RETURN: 

 
As required under Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return of the Company in prescribed 
Form MGT-7 as on 31st March, 2021 is available on the website of the Company at 
www.gbglobal.in and can be accessed at https://www.gbglobal.in. 
 
38. DEPOSITORY SYSTEMS: 
 
The members of the Company are informed that the Company’s shares are compulsorily 
tradable in electronic form. As on 31st March, 2021, 236 Equity Shares stands in physical form, 
23,6g4,522 Equity Shares stand with the NSDL Account and 9,49,537 Equity Shares stand with 
the CDSL. The Company had entered into agreements with both National Securities Depository 
Limited (‘NSDL’) and Central Depository services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’). Your Company had 
appointed Link Intime India Private Limited as its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 
 
39. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

 
The Corporate Governance Report and Management Discussion & Analysis, is presented in a 
separate section, forming part of the Annual Report together with the Certificate from the 
Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in Schedule V of Regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations. 
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40. CHANGE IN THE CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE COMPANY: 
 

The Reconstituted Board at their meeting held on 30th September, 2021 approved the shifting 
of the corporate office address from ‘MARATHON FUTUREX, UNIT A-2402, MAFATLAL MILLS 
COMPOUND, N.M. JOSHI MARG, LOWER PAREL MUMBAI – 400 013’ TO ‘10TH FLOOR, DEV 
PLAZA, OPP. ANDHERI FIRE STATION S. V. ROAD, ANDHERI (WEST), MUMBAI – 400 058’ for 
better convenience and ease of doing business. The said office has been shifted and all the 
books of account and papers are maintained in the said corporate office with effect from 30th 
September, 2021. 

 
41. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING: 
 
Prior to the commencement of CIRP, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in securities by the Directors and 
designated employees of the Company. The Code requires preclearance for dealing in the 
Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and 
the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in 
relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. All Board 
of Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.  
 
Therefore, the said code of conduct as approved by the Board of Directors prior to the 
commencement of the CIRP is available on the website of the Company at www.gbglobal.in 
and the web link of the same is https://www.gbglobal.in/codes-of-conduct-policies.php. 
 
42. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE: 
 
Your Company is committed to provide a work environment which ensures that every woman 
employee is treated with dignity, respect and equality. There is zero-tolerance towards sexual 
harassment and any act of sexual harassment invites serious disciplinary action.  
 
The company has adopted a Policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace in 
line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder prior to the commencement of 
the CIRP. The said policy allows every employee to freely report any such act and prompt action 
will be taken thereon and laid down severe punishment for any such act.  
 
The said policy as approved by the Board of Directors prior to the commencement of the CIRP 
is available on the website of the Company at www.gbglobal.in and the web link of the same 
is https://www.gbglobal.in/codes-of-conduct-policies.php. 
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As per the records shared by the erstwhile RP, there were no cases found in the nature of 
sexual harassment which were reported by the Company, during the year under review. 
 
Further, the Reconstituted board of your Company has complied with the provisions relating 
to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee (“ICC”) under the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, to redress complaints 
received regarding sexual harassment.  
 
43. OTHER DISCLOSURES: 
 
1. During the period under review, there is no subsidiary or associate Company, no 

consolidated financial statement is being presented in addition to the standalone financial 
statement of the Company. 
 

2. During the period under review, no postal ballot was conducted by the Company. 
 

3. During the period under review, no charge was created and satisfied. 
 

4. A general notification was issued by the concerned Registrar of Companies (“ROC”) dated 
23th September, 2021 for an extension of time for holding AGM for the FY ended on 31st 
March, 2021 in terms of third proviso to section 96(1) of the Act, for a period of Two months 
from the due date i.e., 30th November, 2021 was provided. Further, your Company also filed 
an application to ROC in Form GNL – 1 requesting them to grant an extension of time for 
the purpose of holding AGM by a period of 1 (one) month time beyond 30th November, 
2021 i.e., till 31st December, 2021. As the effect of the same, the ROC vide its order dated 
29th November, 2021 approved the said application. Also, the NCLAT Final Order dismissed 
the said appeal filed by the Indian Bank on 06th June, 2022,  your Company is conducting its 
37th AGM of the Company for the FY 2020-21 beyond the provisions of Section 92 of the 
Act.  

 
44. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 
 
Statements in this Directors’ Report and Management Discussion and Analysis describing the 
Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. 
 
Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that 
could make difference to the Company’s operations include raw material availability and its 
prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal markets, changes in Government 
regulations, Tax regimes, economic developments within India and other ancillary factors. 
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45. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
   

The Company wishes to place on record their appreciation for the sincere services rendered by 
employees of the Company at all levels. The Reconstituted Board acknowledges and thanks all 
the employees, customers, suppliers, investors, lenders, regulatory and government 
authorities, stock exchanges and other stakeholders and also the Monitoring Committee for 
their cooperation and support and look forward to their continued support in future.  
 
For & on behalf of the Board of 
GB GLOBAL LIMITED (Formerly Mandhana Industries Limited) 
 
 
Vijay Thakkar        Dev Thakkar 
Director        Chairman 
DIN: 00189355                                                                                  DIN: 07698270 
 
DATE: 19th September, 2022 
PLACE: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE - I 
 
Details of Remuneration as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 
 
 As stated in the report above and the records provided by the Erstwhile RP, the powers of 

the Board of Directors were suspended during the year under review and accordingly no 
managerial remuneration was provided to the suspended Board of Directors.  

 The reconstituted management was unable to derive the percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees for the FY 2021 as the Company was under CIRP.  

 On account of the COVID-19 pandemic, there was no increase in the remuneration of the 
employees, including managerial personnel, during FY21. 

 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on 31st March 2021 is 
70. 

 The average increase in the managerial remuneration for the F.Y. 2021 was NIL as they were 
not provided any managerial remuneration during the year under review due to their 
suspension.  

 Average percentile increase already made in salaries of employees other than managerial 
personnel in last FY and its comparison with the percentile increase in managerial 
remuneration 

  As mentioned above, there was no increase in the remuneration of the employees, including 
managerial personnel, during FY21. The remuneration of key managerial personnel is based 
on the overall performance of the Corporation. 

 The reconstituted management was unable to derive the average increase in the salary of 
employees other than managerial personnel for the F.Y. 2021 as the Company was under 
CIRP.  

 The remuneration stated above is in accordance with the remuneration policy of the 
Company. 
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ANNEXURE – II 

 
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES FOR THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21 
 
1. A brief outline of the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy, including 

overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the weblink to 
the CSR policy and projects or programs: 
 
Corporate Social Responsibility is a Company’s sense of responsibility towards the community 
and environment in which it operates. The Company is committed on remaining a responsible 
corporate entity mindful of its social responsibilities. 

 
Web link to the CSR policy of the Company at www.gbglobal.in 

 
2. Composition of the CSR Committee:  

 
The Committee of the directors titled ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Committee’ with the 
following members: 
 

Sr. 
No 

Name of Director Designation/Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 
attended during the 
year 

1 Mr. Piyush Viradia Non-Executive Director 1 1 
2 Mr. Todd Robinson Non-Executive & 

Independent Director 
1 1 

 
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: 
 
Details on composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board of 
Directors are available at www.gbglobal.in 
 

4. Provide the details of Impact Assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule 
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable:  
Not Applicable 
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5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the 
financial year, if any: Not Applicable 
                                                                                                                                                              

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) (calculated for 3 preceding financial 
years i.e., FY 2017-18, FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20):  
 
The Company does not fulfil the eligibility criteria of u/s 135 of Companies Act 2013. 

 
7. Details of CSR spent during the financial year: 
 

a) Two percent of average net profits of the company as per section 135(5): Nil 
 

b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: 
Nil 
 

c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year 2020-21, if any: Nil 
 

d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year 2020-21 (7a+7b-7c): Nil 
 
8.  

a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2020-21: Nil 
 

b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil 
 

c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil 
 

d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 
 

e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 
 

f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2020-21 (8b+8c+8d+8e): Nil 
 

g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil 
 

9.  
a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable 

 
b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 

financial year(s): Nil 
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so 

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): Not Applicable 
 

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 
 

b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 
 

c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is 
registered, their address etc. 
 

d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 
location of the capital asset). 

 
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit 

as per Section 135(5): Not Applicable 
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ANNEXURE – III 

 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGOING 
 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:  
 
The Company has always been conscious of the need for conservation of energy and has been 
sensitive in making progress towards this initiative. Adequate measures are always taken to 
ensure optimum utilisation and maximum possible saving of energy at the offices and units of 
the Company. 
 
The Company constantly improves on and installs various energy saving devises. The Company 
replaces old electrical drives and has been re-organizing production process by introducing 
improved systems which also conserves energy.  
 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:  
 

1. Research And Development  
 
Your Company, committing itself Research & Development activities, has always played an 
imperative role for cost-effective expansion of business development. Research & 
Development has been implemented with objectives like continual efficiency enhancement, 
reductions in material costs, improving speed and quality of processes and innovation. The 
Company has always been conscious of the need for conservation of energy and has been 
sensitive in making progress towards this initiative. 
 

2. Technology Absorption, Adaptation And Innovation 
 
The Company continues to integrate the latest proficient technology, innovations and 
improvement as introduced and suitable to the manufacturing operations carried out by the 
Company. It also adopts and up-grades its technology to sustain and presence in the 
domestic and international market.  

 
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 
Earnings  :  Rs. 1681.40/- Lakhs  
Out go   :  Rs. 159.34/- Lakhs  
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ANNEXURE- IV  

MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

  
To 
The Members,   
GB GLOBAL LIMITED  
(Formerly known as Mandhana Industries Limited) 
PLOT NO.C-3, M.I.D.C,  
TARAPUR INDUSTRIAL AREA,  
BOISAR 401506. 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by GB Global Limited (formerly known as 
Mandhana Industries Limited) (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, and in the manner reported hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ended on March, 31, 2021 according to the 
provisions of: 
 

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 
 

2) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made 
thereunder to the extent applicable to Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), Overseas Direct 
Investment (ODI) and External Commercial Borrowings (ECB); 
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3) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (‘SEBI’) Act, 1992: 

 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (SEBI (SAST) Regulations,2011) 
 
Mandhana Group were the erstwhile promoter of the Company. However as per the 
Resolution Plan submitted by M/s Formation Textile LLC (“FTL”) approved by the 
Honourable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide its Order dated 30.11.2018, 
the management of the Company has been taken over by FTL from Mandhana Group. 
FTL did not complete its resolution process as mandated and on 05.12.2019, NCLT 
restored the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and management of the 
Company has been handed over to the Committee of Creditors (CoC) and in turn the 
CoC handed the management of Company to Resolution Professional (RP) on 
08.01.2020. Hence, as of date Formation Textiles LLC do not have control over the 
Company, pursuant to NCLT Order dated 05.12.2019.  
 
Pursuant to this Tribunal vide order dated 05.02.2020, allowed the RP to invite fresh 
Resolution Plans and subsequently M/s Dev Land & Housing Pvt Ltd (“DLH”) filed the 
Resolution Plan on 10.09.2020. An addendum dated 11.12.2020 was issued by DLH, in 
response to the request raised by the members of the CoC. The e-Voting on the 
Resolution Plan was concluded on 31.12.2020 and the Resolution Plan stood approved 
with 67.01% voting share of the CoC. The Resolution Plan submitted by M/s Dev Land 
& Housing Pvt Ltd (“DLH”) was approved by the Honourable National Company Law 
Tribunal (NCLT) vide its Order dated 19.05.2021 and the said order was received by 
the concern parties on 26.05.2021. Subsequently, the management of the Company 
has been taken over by DLH. 
 

b) The Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (to the extent possible as some of the provisions are 
exempted to the Company as it is under Corporate Insolvency and Resolution Process. 
(CIRP) 
 

c) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made 
thereunder; 
 

d) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 
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f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 
 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 
 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 
 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) and 
 

k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 
 

4) As per the Documents and Information provided by the Management, they have 
identified and confirmed the following laws as specifically applicable to the Company: 

 
i) The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 
 
ii) The Trade Mark Act, 1999 
 

I further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and 
on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, the Company 
has complied with the above mentioned laws applicable specifically to the Company. 
 
I further report that for the compliance of Labour Laws and other General Laws, my 
examination and reporting is based on the documents, records as produced and shown to me 
and the information and explanation as provided to me, by the officers and management of 
the Company and to the best of my judgment and understanding of the applicability of the 
different enactments upon the Company, in my opinion there are adequate systems and 
processes exist in the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable General 
Laws and Labour Laws. 
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I further report that the Company has complied with the applicable clauses/regulations of 
the following: 
 
a. Applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India.; 
b. The Equity Listing Agreement, to the extent applicable, entered by Company with 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited; and Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
I further report that, as per the information provided to me, during audit period, Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 
(“IBC”) was commenced against GB Global Limited (formerly Mandhana Industries Limited) 
(“the Company / GBL”) pursuant to the order of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai 
Bench, (“NCLT”) dated 29.09.2017 and Mrs. Charu Desai IP Registration no. IBBI/IPA-001/IP- 
P00434/2017-18/10757, an insolvency professional was appointed by NCLT as the Resolution 
Professional (“RP”) for the Company as per the provisions of the IBC. 
 
Pursuant to the invitation published by the RP, Formation Textiles LLC (Resolution Applicant), 
a company incorporated in USA had submitted a resolution plan for the Company. The said 
resolution plan was thereafter submitted by the RP with the NCLT for its approval under the 
IBC. The NCLT as on 30th November, 2018, approved the resolution plan submitted by 
Resolution Applicant for the Company (“Resolution Plan”). 
 
FTL did not complete its resolution process as mandated and on 05.12.2019, NCLT restored 
the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and management of the Company has 
been handed over to the Committee of Creditors (CoC) and in turn the CoC handed the 
management of Company to Resolution Professional (RP) on 08.01.2020. Pursuant to this 
Tribunal vide order dated 05.02.2020, allowed the RP to invite fresh Resolution Plans and 
subsequently M/s Dev Land & Housing Pvt Ltd (“DLH”) filed the Resolution Plan on 
10.09.2020. An addendum dated 11.12.2020 was issued by DLH, in response to the request 
raised by the members of the CoC. The e-Voting on the Resolution Plan was concluded on 
31.12.2020 and the Resolution Plan stood approved with 67.01% voting share of the CoC. The 
Resolution Plan submitted by M/s Dev Land & Housing Pvt Ltd (“DLH”) was approved by the 
Honourable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide its Order dated 19.05.2021 and the 
said order was received by the concern parties on 26.05.2021. Subsequently, the 
management of the Company has been taken over by DLH. In view of the foregoing, no Board 
Meeting or any Committee Meetings of the Company were held during 1st April, 2020 to 31st 
March 2021.  
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During the period under review and as per the explanations and clarifications given to me and 
the representations made by the Management, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above subject to the 
following observations/non-compliances: 
 
A. The Company was unable to file the Financial Results as per the Regulation 33(3)(d) of 

SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, for the year ended March 31, 2021 within sixty days from 
the end of financial year. 
 

B. The total outstanding loans including the NCDs stood suspended due to above mentioned 
process explained hereto. Hence during the year under review, the Company have not 
filed the relevant documents to the statutory authorities pertaining to the debt (including 
NCDs), if any. 
 

C. The Company has duly filed relevant forms and returns with the Registrar of Companies, 
Regional Director, Central Government or other authorities within the time prescribed 
under the Act and the rules made there under and with additional fees wherever there 
has been a delay in filing forms/returns except the required E -forms as per Section 124 
and 125 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder.  

 
D. The Company is yet to file the Cost Audit Report, for the financial year ended 31st March, 

2021 with the Central Government. 
 

E. Since the Powers of Board of Directors stand suspended on account of hon NCLT order 
for restoration of CIRP in the Company, no separate meeting of Independent Directors 
was held during the Financial Year 2020-21 and consequently, the evaluation of the 
performance of Board of Directors and of its committee and individual directors were 
also not undertaken during the year under review. 

 
F. The Company was unable to conduct its Annual General Meeting (AGM) for the Financial 

Year 2020-21 within the prescribed timeline pursuant to Status Quo Order imposed by 
the NCLAT. However, the extension for holding AGM for the Financial Year 2020-21 was 
granted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its order dated 08.09.2020 till 31.12.2020. 

 
G. During the financial year 2020-21, the Company was levied fines by BSE Limited (BSE) and 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) for not appointing Company Secretary as 
Compliance Officer of the Company, Non filing of Financial Results and Non filing of 
Secretarial Compliance Report under Regulation 6 (1), Regulation 33 and Regulation 24A 
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 respectively. Further, the Company has filed an 
Application with BSE and NSE for waiving of the amount of penalties imposed. 
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I Further Report That as per the Statutory Auditors comments and notes to Financial Results 
an amount of Rs. 500 lakhs of Earnest Money Deposit given by the Resolution Applicant as 
per terms of the RFRP and is shown under current liabilities and the funds are still parked in 
fixed deposits with Bank of Baroda. Further the infusion of Rs.3,799.01 lac by the erstwhile 
Resolution Applicant toward share application money has also been shown under current 
liabilities and these funds are kept in escrow account with Bank of Baroda. 
 
I Further Report That the Company is not falling under any of the applicability criteria of CSR 
as mentioned under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended by 
the Companies Amendment Act, 2017. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  
 
As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from various 
statutory/regulatory authorities including initiating actions for corrective measures, 
wherever found necessary. 
 
I further report that during the audit period, as the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(“CIRP”) has been restored in respect of the Company under the provisions of “The Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code,2016” (‘IBC/ the Code’) by the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), 
Mumbai Bench, vide its order dated 05.12.2019, the powers of the Board of Directors of the 
Company stand suspended as per Section 17 of the Code and such powers are being exercised 
by the Resolution Professional appointed by the National Company Law Tribunal by the said 
order under the provisions of the Code having a major bearing on the Company's affairs. 
 
Sd/- 
CS VYOMA DESAI 
Practicing Company Secretary 
FCS No. 11166 C.P. No. 23010 
UDIN: F011166D000967462 
Date: 19th September 2022 
Place: Mumbai 
 
 
 
 
 
Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A 
and forms an integral part of this report. 
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‘ANNEXURE A’ 
 
To 
The Members, 
GB GLOBAL LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Mandhana Industries Limited) 
PLOT NO.C-3, M.I.D.C,  
TARAPUR INDUSTRIAL AREA,  
BOISAR 401 506. 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the company. 
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards are the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 
to the verification of procedures on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the company. 

 
S/d- 
CS VYOMA DESAI 
Practicing Company Secretary 
FCS No. 11166 C.P. No. 23010 
UDIN: F011166D000967462 
Date: 19th September 2022 
Place: Mumbai  
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP):  
 

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT”), admitted the petition 
for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Section 7 of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the Code”) filed by the Financial Creditor vide order 
dated 29.09.2017 (“Admission Order”) and appointed Mrs. Charu Desai as an Interim 
Resolution Professional (“IRP”) to manage the affairs of the Company in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the Code. Later, the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) of the Company, 
in its meeting appointed Mrs. Charu Desai as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the 
Company. Upon appointment of the RP, the powers of the Board of Directors were suspended 
pursuant to Section 17 of the Code, and such powers were vested with the RP.  
 
The Formation Textile LLC (“FTL”) submitted the Resolution Plan which was approved by the 
CoC after due deliberations and the same was filed with Hon’ble NCLT in application No.  MA 
No. 692 of 2018. The NCLT approved the said Resolution Plan vide order dated 30.11.2018 and 
pursuant to such approval, FTL took over the management and control of the affairs of the 
Company with effect from 31.01.2019. After taking over the management and control of the 
Company pursuant to the terms of the said approved Resolution Plan, the name of the 
Company was changed from Mandhana Industries Limited to GB Global Limited with effect 
from 20.08.2019. However, later on FTL was unable to adhere the other terms of the said 
approved Resolution Plan and as a result of the same, as an interim measure the NCLT directed 
the erstwhile RP for restoration of CIRP and instructed FTL to hand over the possession of the 
Company to the CoC and the erstwhile RP vide order dated 05th December, 2019.  
 
Accordingly, the CoC restated Mrs. Charu Desai as the RP and took the possession of the 
Company in its meeting held on 08.01.2020, which in turn was handed over to the RP. The 
NCLT vide order dated 05.02.2020 allowed the RP to invite fresh Resolution Plans from the 
Prospective Resolution Applicants (“PRA”) by providing additional period of 70 days to 
complete the resolution process. 
 
Later, in view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the CIRP was extended and as a result of the same, 
the last date for submission of Resolution Plan was further extended till 10.09.2020. On the 
last date of submission, a Resolution Plan was received from one PRA, viz. Dev Land & Housing 
Private Limited (“DLH”). Further, as a result of detailed deliberations between the CoC and 
DLH, the final resolution plan along with addendum dated 11.12.2020 was submitted for 
approval of the CoC. Pursuant to the provisions of the Code, the said Resolution Plan was 
approved with 67.01% vote as on 31.12.2020.  
 
The RP filed an application under Section 30(6) of the Code before Hon’ble NCLT for its 
consideration and approval of the said Resolution Plan. The Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 
19.05.2021 approved the said Resolution Plan (“Approved Resolution Plan”). The Approved 
Resolution Plan is binding on the Company and its employees, members, creditors, guarantors 
and other stakeholders involved therein, as per the provisions of the Code. 
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As per the Notification no. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/21 dated 31.05.2018, Regulations 17 to 
21 of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), related to Board of Directors, Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee and Risk Management Committee respectively, shall not be applicable during the 
CIRP in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing CIRP under the Code. In connection with 
same, the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors as specified under Regulation 17 
of the Listing Regulation shall be fulfilled by the RP in accordance with Sections 17 and 23 of 
the Code. 
 
As mentioned above, in terms of the Listing Regulations, a Company undergoing CIRP is not 
required to comply with various regulations hence other consequential requirements 
mentioned in regulations may not be complied with by the Company such as prior approval of 
related party transactions by audit committee, review of financial statements of the subsidiary 
companies by audit committee, obligations with respect to independent directors (regulations 
25), confirmation of compliances of code of conduct by Board members and senior 
management personnel, disclosures by senior management to board of directors relating to 
material, financial and commercial transactions, familiarization programme imparted to 
independent directors, etc. 
 
Further, the effects of the implementation of the Approved Resolution Plan have been 
enumerated in the Directors’ Report. 
 

I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 
GB Global Limited has a practice of fair, transparent and governance practices and we adhere 
to the fact that the Corporate Governance norms are dynamic in nature and the Company 
constantly endeavors to improve on these aspects. The core values of the Company’s 
governance process include independence, integrity, accountability, transparency, 
responsibility and fairness. 
 
The Company strives to maintain standards of Corporate Governance principles and best 
practices. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages the attainment to 
transparency, accountability, timely disclosures and equity, in all facets of its operations and in 
all interactions with its stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, the government, 
lenders and the society. 
 
In compliance with the applicable provisions of Listing Regulations, a report containing the 
details and information as required to be disclosed in the Report on Corporate Governance to 
the shareholders of the Company is provided hereunder. 
 

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
Since the powers of the Board of the Directors of the Company stood suspended with effect 
from 05.12.2019 i.e., the commencement of the insolvency proceedings and continued to 
remain suspended upon conclusion of the CIRP as per the Approved Resolution Plan, no Board 
meetings were held during the financial year under review. 
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During the year under review, the strength of the Board was three (3) Non-Executive Directors 
during the financial year 2020-21 as provided in the Directors’ Report, forming part of this 
Annual Report which was suspended as the Company went under CIRP. 
 

i. Details relating to the composition of the Board of Directors, number of Directorships, 
Memberships and Chairmanships of the Directors of the Company in other companies 
as on 31st March, 2021 are as follows: 
 

Name of the 
Director 

Category of 
Director 

Number of 
Other 

Directorship 
Held in Listed 

and other 
unlisted public 

Companies 
 

Number of Committee 
memberships in 

domestic Companies 
(including this 

Company) 
As 

Chairman 
As 

Member 
Mr. Piyush Doshi Non-Executive & 

Non-Independent 
1 0 2 

Mr. Piyush Viradia Non-Executive & 
Non-Independent 

1 0 0 

Mr. Todd Robinson Non-Executive & 
Independent 

1 0 1 

Note: 
  

Note:  
i. The Board of Directors were suspended pursuant to Corporate Insolvency Resolution 

Process (CIRP) from 05.12.2019. 
ii. Membership/Chairmanship relates to membership of Committees referred to in 

Regulation 26(1) of the Listing Regulations, viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee of all public limited companies, whether listed or not and 
excludes private limited companies, foreign companies and companies licensed under 
Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

iii. The number of Directorship(s) and Committee Membership(s) / Chairmanship(s) of all 
Directors is / are within the respective limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 
and Listing Regulations. 

iv. In terms of the Listing Regulations, a company undergoing CIRP is not required to 
comply with Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations dealing with the requirement of 
composition of the Board of Directors. Further, pursuant to the Approved Resolution 
Plan, the powers of the Board of Directors continued to stand suspended. Further, the 
existing Board ceased to exist and a new Board was reconstituted comprising of the 
following directors which are as follows:  
 
Details of Reconstituted Board of Directors as on the date of report: 

 
Sr. No. Director Details Designation DIN 

1 Mr. Dev Thakkar 
Chairman – Non-Executive, Non-

Independent Director 07698270 
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2 Mr. Vijay Thakkar Managing Director 00189355 

3 
Mr. Harsh 
Somaiya 

Executive Director & Chief Executive 
Officer 06360600 

4 
*Mr. Deepak 

Kumar 
Nominee Director (Non-Executive 

Director) Representing Lending Bankers 07656062 
5 Mr. Paresh Jain Independent Director 05159799 
6 Mr. Shailesh Vora Independent Director 01381931 

7 
Mrs. Tanam 

Thakkar 
Non-Executive Non- Independent 

Woman Director 00284512 
 
*Mr. Deepak Kumar resigned from the Board on 10th August 2022. 
 

ii. Details relating to the Board Meetings held during the Financial Year 2020-21 along 
with the attendance of each of the Director are as follows: 

 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, there were no board meetings held in 
view of the continued suspension of powers of the Board and the affairs of the Company 
were managed by the Monitoring Committee. The last AGM was held on 24th December, 
2020. The attendance of each Director at the AGM was as under: 
 
No board meetings were held during the year ended 31st March, 2021 since the powers 
of the Board of Directors were suspended due to commencement of corporate 
insolvency resolution process and the same vest in the Resolution Professional. 
However, 11 (Eleven) Committee of Creditors were called by Resolution Professional 
(RP) during the financial year 2020-21. The dates of Committee of Creditors meetings 
are 06.05.2020, 08.06.2020, 08.07.2020, 06.08.2020, 28.08.2020, 11.09.2020, 
22.09.2020, 07.10.2020, 20.10.2020, 10.11.2020 and 07.12.2020. 

 
Attendance: 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of the 
Director 

Number of 
meetings 

entitled to 
attend 

Number of 
Meetings 
attended 

Whether attended 
the last 

AGM 
(24.12.2020) 

1. Mr. Piyush Doshi NA 
 

NA 
 

NA 
 

2. Mr. Piyush Viradia NA NA NA 
3. Mr. Todd Robinson NA NA NA 

 
iii. Disclosure of Relationships between Directors inter-se: 

 
None of the other Director is related with each other as on 31st March, 2021. 
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iv. Number of Shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors: 
 

None of the other Non-Executive Director holds any equity shares or any convertible 
instruments of the Company. 

 
v. Details of the familiarization programme for the Independent Directors of the 

Company for enabling them to acquaint with the nature of business of the company: 
 
Since the powers of the Board of Directors were suspended due to commencement of 
corporate insolvency resolution process and the same vest in the Resolution 
Professional. During the year under review, there was no new appointment of 
Independent Directors on the board and hence the requirement of the familiarization 
programme for the Independent Directors was not applicable to the Company.  
 

vi. Chart or a Matrix setting out the skills/expertise/ competence of Board of Directors:  
 

The following skills/expertise/ competencies have been identified for the effective 
functioning of the Company:  
• Leadership / Operational experience  
• Strategic Planning  
• Industry Experience, Research &Development and Innovation  
• Global Business  
• Financial, Regulatory / Legal & Risk Management 
• Corporate Governance 
 

The Board of Directors as mentioned in Point No. A above was appointed prior to the 
commencement of CIRP i.e., 05.12.2019 and since then their powers stood suspended 
and continued to remain suspended during the year under review.  

 
vii. Confirmation that in the opinion of the board, the Independent Directors fulfill the 

conditions specified in these regulations and are independent of the management. 
 
Since the powers of the Board of Directors were suspended due to commencement of 
corporate insolvency resolution process and the same vest in the Resolution Professional  
Hence, the powers of the Independent Directors were suspended. 

 
viii. Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before 

the expiry of his /her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are 
no other material reasons other than those provided.   
 
During the year under review, there was no resignation of Independent Directors. 
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III. COMMITTEES 
 

The provisions as specified in regulations 18, 19, 20 and 21 were not applicable during the 
insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing CIRP 
under the Code provided that the roles and responsibilities of the committees specified in the 
respective regulations shall be fulfilled by the IRP/RP.   

 
The Board had, prior to the commencement of the CIRP, constituted Board Committees to 
deal with specific areas and activities which concern the Company and requires a closer 
review. 
 
However, pursuant to initiation of CIRP, no committee Meeting was held after 09.12.2019, 
including during the year under review, as the powers of the Board and its committees were 
suspended. 
 
The Board had established the following Committees: 
 

A. Audit Committee: 
 

a. Composition 
 

Prior to restoration of the CIRP, Audit Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors 
in accordance with the requirement of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations as amended from time to time.  
 
For the year under review, the Audit Committee of the Company comprised of the following 
Board members, the details of which are given below: 

 
SR. NO. LIST OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION 

1 Mr. Todd Robinson - Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

Member 

2  Mr. Piyush Doshi - Non-Executive - Non 
Independent Director  

Member 

 
As per the provisions of the Approved Resolution Plan, the suspended Board of Directors 
deemed to resign from the Board and a new Board has been formed. Accordingly, as on the 
date of this report, the Audit Committee has also been reconstituted with the following 
directors as its members:  As on date 
 

SR. NO. LIST OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION 
1 Mr. Paresh Jain - Independent Director Chairman 
2 Mr. Shailesh Vora - Independent Director Member 

3 
Mr. Dev Thakkar - Non Executive Non -

Independent Director Member 
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b. Terms of Reference 

 
The terms of reference and scope of activities of the Audit Committee were in conformity 
with the Act and the Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee was responsible for 
overseeing the processes related to financial reporting and information dissemination. The 
primary objective of the Audit Committee was to monitor and effectively supervise the 
financial reporting process of the Company with a view to ensure accurate, timely and 
proper disclosures & transparency and integrity of financial reporting. 
 
The roles and responsibilities of Audit Committees as specified under Regulation 18 of 
Listing Regulations, are  being fulfilled by the RP after the restoration of CIRP of the 
Company, as  the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended and such powers 
vested with the RP in accordance with Sections 17 and 23 of the Code. 

 
Brief description of the terms of reference of the Audit committee inter alia included: 

 
A. Powers of the Audit Committee: 

 
1. To investigate any activity of within its terms of reference. 
2. To seek information from any employee 
3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice. 
4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 

 
B. Role of the Audit Committee: 

 
1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 
credible; 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of 
auditors of the Company; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors, including cost auditors, for any other 
services rendered by them; 

4. Review with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report 
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference  to: 
 

a. matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to 
be included in the Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

b. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the 
same; 

c. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of 
judgment by management; 

d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 
findings; 

e. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 
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statements; 
f. disclosure of any related party transactions; and  
g. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report 

 
5. Review with the management, the quarterly financial statements before  submission 

to the Board of Directors for approval; 
6. Review with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised 

through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement 
of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / 
prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring 
the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter; 
 

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and 
effectiveness of audit process; 

 
8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with 

related parties; 
 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary; 
 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
 

12. Review with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 
adequacy of the internal control systems; 

 
13. Review the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

 
14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

 
15. Review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 

matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board; 

 
16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature 

and  scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 
creditors; 

 
18. To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 
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19. Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, 

experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 
 

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit 
committee. 

The audit committee was also responsible for reviewing the following information: 
 

a) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
b) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit 

committee),  submitted by management; 
c) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the 

statutory                      Auditors; 
d) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
e) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor 

shall                           be subject to review by the audit committee. 
f) Statement of deviations: 

a. quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if 
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1). 

b. annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the 
offer  document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 

 
c. Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance: 

 
The powers of the Board of Directors and committees thereof were suspended from the 
date of restoration of CIRP i.e., with effect from 05.12.2019. Hence, no meetings of audit 
committee was held during the year under review. 

 
B. Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 
 

a. Composition 
 

Prior to the commencement of CIRP with effect from 05.12.2019, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) had been constituted by the Board of Directors in 
accordance with the requirement of section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing 
Regulations as amended from time to time. 
 
For the year under review, the NRC comprised of the following Board members, the details 
of which are given below: 

 
SR. NO. LIST OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION 

1 Mr. Piyush Viradia - Non-Executive Director Member 
 

As per the provisions of the Approved Resolution Plan, the suspended Board of Directors 
deemed to resign from the Board and a new Board has been formed. Accordingly, as on the 
date of this report, the NRC has also been reconstituted with the following directors as its 
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members: 
 

SR. NO. LIST OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION 
1 Mr. Paresh Jain - Independent Director Chairman 
2 Mr. Shailesh Vora - Independent Director Member 

3 
Mr. Dev Thakkar - Non Executive Non -

Independent Director Member 
 

b. Terms of Reference:  
 
The role and responsibilities of NRC as specified under  Regulation 19 of Listing  Regulations 
are being fulfilled by the RP, as the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended and 
such powers vest with the RP in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of the Code. 
 
The terms of reference and scope of activities (outlined herein below) of the NRC (prior to 
its suspension) were in conformity with the Act and the Listing Regulations: 

 
A. Brief description of the terms of reference of the NRC inter alia included: 

 
1) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating 
to, the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees; 

2) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and 
the Board of Directors; 

3) Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors; 
4) Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be 

appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and 
recommend to the Board       of Directors their appointment and removal; and 

5) Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent 
Director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent 
directors. 

 
c. Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meetings and Attendance: 

 
The powers of the Board of Directors and committees thereof were suspended from the date 
of restoration of CIRP with effect from 05.12.2019. Hence, no meeting of NRC was held 
during the year ended 31st March, 2021. 
 
d. Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors: 

 
The powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended on account of restoration of CIRP of 
the Company w.e.f. 05.12.2019 and continued to remain suspended during the year under 
review. In connection with the same, the evaluation of performance of Independent 
Directors was not undertaken during the financial year 2020 -21. 
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C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 
 

a. Composition 
 

Prior to commencement of CIRP with effect from 05.12.2019, the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee (“SRC”) had been constituted by the Board of Directors in accordance with the 
requirement of section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, as 
amended from time to time. 
 
For the year under review, the SRC comprised of the  following Board members, the details 
of which are given below: 
 

SR. NO. LIST OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION 
1 Mr. Piyush Doshi - Non-Executive Director Member 

 
As per the provisions of the Approved Resolution Plan, the suspended Board of Directors 
deemed to resign from the Board and a new Board has been formed. Accordingly, as on the 
date of this report, the SRC has also been reconstituted with the following directors as its 
members: 
 

SR. NO. LIST OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION 
1 Mr. Paresh Jain - Independent Director Chairman 
2 Mr. Shailesh Vora - Independent Director Member 

3 
Mr. Dev Thakkar - Non Executive Non -

Independent Director Member 
 

b. Name of the Compliance officer  
 
During the year under review, there was no Company Secretary on the Board. However, 
the required compliances were handled by the Erstwhile Resolution Professional. 
Further, CS Komal Jhawar was appointed as a Company Secretary of the Company from 
09.08.2022. 

 
c. Terms of Reference 

 
A. Brief description of terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

inter-alia includes: 
 

The terms of reference of the Committee were aligned with the terms of reference provided 
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, 
as stated below: 

 
1. Consider and resolve the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including 

complaints related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report and non-receipt 
of declared dividends. 

2. Issue of duplicate/split/consolidated share certificates; 
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3. Allotment and listing of shares; 
4. Reference to statutory and regulatory authorities regarding investor grievances; and 
5. Ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances. 

 
d. Shareholders’ Complaints during the financial year 2020-21: 

 
Number of shareholders’ complaints received 0 
Number complaints not solved to the satisfaction of 
shareholders 

0 

Number of pending complaints 0 
 

The SEBI Compliant Redress System (“SCORES”) website of SEBI for redressing of grievances 
of the investors is being visited at regular intervals and there are no pending complaints 
registered with SCORES as on 31st March, 2021. 

 
There are no pending cases of share transfer as on 31st March, 2021. 

 
IV. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS: 

 
A. Pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors vis-à-vis the 

Company: 
 

The powers of the Board of Directors were suspended due to commencement of corporate 
insolvency resolution process and the same vest in the Resolution Professional. In the view 
of the same, there was no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive 
Directors vis-à-vis the Company.  

 
B. Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors: 

 
The Criterial of making payments to Non-Executive Director were made as per the 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy which was approved by the Board prior to the 
commencement of CIRP. The said policy is available on the website of the Company at 
www.gbglobal.in and the same can be accessed at https://www.gbglobal.in/codes-of-
conduct-policies.php. 

 
Further, the powers of the Board of Directors and Committees thereof were suspended from 
the date of restoration of CIRP with effect from 05.12.2019. Hence, no Meetings of the Board 
of Directors and Committees were held during the year under review. Therefore, the Non-
Executive and Independent Directors were not paid any sitting fee for attending the Meetings 
of the Board and Meetings                of the Committees thereof. 

 
C. Disclosures with respect to remuneration in addition to disclosures required under the 

Companies Act, 2013: 
 

Details of sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors for the financial year 2020-21: 
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Sr. No. Name of the Non-
Executive Director 

Sitting fees paid (in ₹) 

1. Mr. Piyush Viradia NIL 
2. Mr. Todd Robinson NIL 

     3. Mr. Piyush Doshi NIL 
 

The Company has not provided any Stock Options to its Directors or employees during the 
financial year 2020-21. 

 
V. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 
A. Meeting of Independent Directors: 

 
Evaluation of performance of all Directors shall be undertaken annually in a separate 
meeting of Independent Directors. However, pursuant to the restoration of CIRP w.e.f. 
05.12.2019, the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended. 

 
Further, no separate meeting of Independent Directors was held during the financial 
year 2020- 21 and consequently, the evaluation of the performance of the Board of 
Directors and of its committees and individual Directors were also not undertaken 
during the year under review. 

 
VI. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

 
A. Particulars of the last 3 Annual General Meetings (AGM): 

 
Particulars Date and Time Venue Details of Special 

Resolutions passed 
36th AGM (FY 
2019-20) 

24th December, 
2020 at 11.30 am  

By Video Conferencing 
/or Other Audio-Visual 
Means 

Nil 

35th AGM (FY 
2018-19) 

26th September, 
2019 at 11.00 a.m. 

Plot No.  C-3, 
M.I.D.C., Tarapur 
Industrial Area, 
Boisar, District 
Palghar 401506 

 Appointment of Mr. 
Piyush Vrajlal Doshi (DIN 
07597924) as Managing 
Director of the Company 

 Appointment of Mr. Ashok 
Kumar Das (DIN 08419056) 
as Executive Director of 
the Company 

34th AGM (FY 
2017-18) 

28th December, 
2018 at 12.00 p.m. 

Plot No.  C-3, 
M.I.D.C., Tarapur 
Industrial Area, 
Boisar, District 
Palghar 401506 

Nil 
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B. Special Resolutions passed through Postal Ballot during the year under review: 
 
During the year under review, there were no Special Resolutions passed through Postal 
Ballot by the company. However, Special Resolution for the change of name of the Company 
from "Mandhana Industries Limited" to "GB Global Limited" was duly approved by the 
members of the Company by means of Postal Ballot including voting through electronic means 
on Thursday, 11.07.2019.  Consequently, Memorandum of Association and Articles of 
Association and other documents of the Company were accordingly altered. 

 
C. Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: 

 
Till the date of this report, the Company does not intend or propose to pass any Special 
Resolution through Postal Ballot. 

 
VII. MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS: 

 
A. Quarterly Results: 

 
The financial results are submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the 
Company are listed pursuant to the requirements of Listing Regulations and are also 
published in the newspapers. The financial results are also displayed on the Company’s 
website i.e., www.gbglobal.in.  
 
B. Newspapers wherein results normally published: 

 
During the year under review, the Company used to publish the requisite documents in 
Financial Express (English) Mumbai and Mahasagar (Marathi) Newspaper. 
 
However, from 23.08.2021 the Company started publishing its requisite documents in 
Lakshadeep (Marathi), Vartha Bharati (Kannada) and Navakal (Marathi) Newspapers. 
 
C. Website where the results are displayed: 

 
www.gbglobal.in 
 
D. Whether the website also displays official news releases: 

The Company has maintained a functional website i.e., www.gbglobal.in containing basic 
information about the Company such as the details of its business, financial information, 
shareholding pattern, codes and policies etc. The disclosures made by the Company to the 
Stock          Exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed are also hosted on the 
website of the  Company. 

E. Presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: 

There were no presentations made by the Company to institutional investors/ analysts 
during the year ended 31st March 2021. 

102



         ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 
 

 

 
VIII. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 

The Company was incorporated on 25.07.1984. The Company is registered in the state of 
Maharashtra, India. The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is L17120MH1984PLC033553. 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited (NSE). 

 
A. Annual General Meeting   

 - Day, Date and Time : 28.09.2022 at 02:00 pm  
 - Venue : Video Conferencing  

B. Financial Year : 1st April, 2020 to 31st March, 2021 
C. Dividend payment date : N.A. 
D. The name and address of Stock 

Exchange(s) at which the 
Company’s equity shares are 
listed and a confirmation about 
payment of annual listing fee to 
each of the stock exchange 

 BSE Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai- 400001 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange  Plaza,  C-1, Block  G, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E) 
Mumbai – 400 051 
 
The Company has paid the listing fees to the 
Stock Exchanges within the prescribed time. 

 
E. 

Security Code / Symbol (Equity)   

 ISIN : INE087J01028 
 Security Code for BSE : 533204 
 Symbol for NSE : GBGLOBAL 

 
F. The Market price data covering the period 1st April, 2020 to 31st March, 2021 is 

given below: 
 

Month BSE NSE 
High Low High Low 

        Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 
April 2020 10.6 7.12 7.7 7.7 
May 2020 9.45 7.8 4.65 4.65 
June 2020 8 5.05 5.05 4.8 
July 2020 5.27 4.3 4.85 4.45 
August 2020 8.34 4.3 9.45 8.9 
September 2020 7.81 7.42 7.95 7.95 
October 2020 7.47 7.1 6.9 6.9 
November 2020 6.75 4.94 5.15 5.15 
December 2020 7.34 5.5 8 7.5 
January 2021 7.77 6.55 7.5 7.15 
February 2021 7.66 6.1 7.05 6.7 
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March 2021 7.9 6.01 7.4 6.9 
 

G. Stock Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE/NSE 
Sensex (on closing rates at the end of each month in respective stock 
exchange). 

(in Rs.) 
Month BSE  NSE 

Share Price Sensex Share 
Price 

Nifty 

April 2020 9 33717.62 7.7 9859.9 
May 2020 8.19 32424.1 4.65 9580.3 
June 2020 5.54 34,915.80 4.8 10302.1 
July 2020 4.56 37,606.89 4.85 11073.45 
August 2020 7.81 38,628.29 9.2 11387.5 
September 2020 7.47 38,067.93 7.95 11247.55 
October 2020 7.1 39,614.07 6.9 11642.4 
November 2020 5.48 44,149.72 5.15 12968.95 
December 2020 7.15 47,751.33 7.5 13981.75 
January 2021 6.88 46,285.77 7.15 13634.6 
February 2021 6.1 49,099.99 6.75 14529.15 
March 2021 7.56 49,509.15 7.3 14690.7 
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     In case the securities are suspended from trading, reason thereof: 
 

During the year under review, the shares were not suspended 
 

H. Registrar to an issue and share transfer agents: 
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400083. 

 
I. Share Transfer System: 

 
Link Intime India Private Limited is the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company. 
Transfer of physical shares are approved by the Board of Directors or the Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee which meets at opportune time and if the documents are 
complete and in order in all respects, the same are registered and returned to the 
transferees within the stipulated time. 

 
J. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2021: -  

 
Shares range No. of 

Shareholders 
% of 

Shareholders 
No. of Shares % of total 

issued capital 
1 – 500 12602 94.17 815292 24.59 

501 – 1,000 409 3.05 308648 9.31 
1,001- 2,000 194 1.44 280444 8.46 
2,001 – 3,000 66 0.49 162192 4.89 
3,001 – 4,000 27 0.20 95914 2.89 
4,001 – 5,000 22 0.16 103312 3.11 
5,001 – 10,000 29 0.21 223192 6.73 

10,001 & above 32 0.23 1325301 39.98 
Total 13381 100 3314295 100 
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K. Shareholding pattern as on 31st March, 2021: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Category of Shareholder No. of 
Shareholders 

Total no. of 
shares 

Total 
Shareholdin g 

as a 
percentage of 

total no. 
of Shares 

(A) Shareholding of Promoter 
and Promoter Group(A)* 

17 10,60,965 32.01 

     
(B) Public Shareholding    
(1) Institutions    
(a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0.00 
(b) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0.00 
(c) Alternate Investment Funds 0 0 0.00 
(d) Foreign Venture Capital 

Investors 
0 0 0.00 

(e) Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0 0.00 
(f) Financial Institutions/ Banks 2 65,835 1.99 
(g) Insurance Companies 0 0 0.00 
(h) Provident Funds / Pension 

Funds 
0 0 0.00 

 Sub Total (B) (1) 2 65,835 1.99 
(2) Central Government/ 

State Government(s)/ 
President of India 

0 0 0.00 

 Sub Total (B) (2) 0 0 0.00 
     
(3) Non-Institutions    
(a) Individuals    
 i. Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 2 Lakhs 

12,595 19,11,233 57.67 

 ii. Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs. 2 Lakhs 

2 83,925 2.53 

(b) NBFC’s registered with RBI 0 0 0.00 
(c) Employee Trusts 0 0 0.00 
(d) Overseas depositories (holding 

DRs) 
0 0 0.00 

(e) Any other 526 1,92,337 5.8 
 i. IEPF 1 105 0.00 
 ii. Hindu Undivided Family 298 84,373 2.55 
 iii. NRI (Non-repatriate) 38 18843 0.56 
 iv. NRI (Repatriate) 102 45304 1.36 
 v. Clearing Members 24 6,134 0.19 
 vi. Bodies Corporate 63 37,578 1.13 
 Sub Total (B) (3) 14268 21,84,314 65.91 
 Total Public Shareholding (B)    
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= (B)(1) + (B)(2)+(B)(3) 
 Total (A) + (B) 13,142 33,14,295 100.00 
     
(C) Non Promoter - Non Public    
(1) Shares Underlying DRs 0 0 0.00 
(2) Shares Held By Employee Trust 0 0 0.00 
 Grand Total (A)+(B)+(C) 13,142 33,14,295 100.00 

 
* The shareholding spread across various demat accounts are consolidated on the basis 
of Permanent Account Number pursuant to SEBI circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ 
CIR/P/2017/128 dated 19.12.2017. 
 

L. Dematerialization of shares: 
 

The Company has signed agreements with National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) and  Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and Link Intime India 
Private Limited to  offer depository services to its shareholders and has paid respective 
charges for the benefit of the Members. 
Your Company confirms that the entire Promoters’ holding is in dematerialized form 
and the same is in line with the directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India. 

 
During the year under review, the shares of your Company were regularly traded at 
the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. However, the 
trading of the securities of your Company was suspended on 05.06.2022 pursuant to 
the approved Resolution Plan. 

 
Out of the total 33,14,295 equity shares of the Company, 33,14,059 equity shares 
representing  99.99% are in dematerialized form as on 31st March, 2021. 

 
M. Outstanding global depository receipts or American Depository Receipts or 

warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on 
equity: 

 
          NIL 

 
N. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 

 
       NIL 
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O. Plant Locations: 

 
MANDHANA DYEING 
(A Division of GB Global Limited) 
Plot no. E-25, MIDC, 
Tarapur Industrial Area, 
District Palghar – 401 
506. 

MANDHANA WEAVING HOUSE 
(Shirting Division) 
(A Division of GB Global Limited) 
Plot No. C-2, MIDC, 
Tarapur Industrial Area, 
District Palghar – 401 
506. 

MANDHANA WEAVING HOUSE 
(A Division of GB Global Limited) 
Plot no. E-33, MIDC, 
Tarapur Industrial Area, 
District Palghar – 401 
506. 

MANDHANA DYEING – UNIT II 
(A Division of GB Global Limited) 
Plot No. C-3, MIDC, 
Tarapur Industrial Area, 
District Palghar – 401 
506. 

 
GB GLOBAL LIMITED 
(Garment Division) 
Plot no. E-132, MIDC, 
Tarapur Industrial Area, 
District Palghar – 401 
506. 

 
GB GLOBAL LIMITED 
(Garment Division) 
26/A, Peenya ll 
Phase, Peenya 
Industrial Area, Near 
NTTF Bus Stop, 
Bengaluru – 560 058. 

Corporate Office and 
Address for 
Correspondence: 

 
GB Global Limited 
10th Floor, Dev Plaza Opp. 
Andheri Fire Station S. V. Road, 
Andheri West Mumbai 400058 

 
Tel: 022 - 4353 9191 
Email: cs@gbglobal.in 

 

 
IX. Other Disclosures: 

 
A. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have 

potential conflict with the interests of listed entity at large: 
 

Nil. 
 

B. Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on 
the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on 
any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years: 
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For the last three financial years, except for the financial year 2019-20 (the details 
mentioned herein below), the Company has complied with the applicable 
requirements of the Stock Exchange, SEBI and other Statutory Authorities on all 
matters related to capital markets. 

 
During the financial year 2019-20, the Company was levied fines by BSE Limited (BSE) 
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) for non-compliance with the 
constitution of nomination and remuneration committee under Regulation 
19(1)/19(2) of the Listing Regulations for the quarters ended 30.06.2019 and  
30.09.2019 stated as below: 

 
Regulation and relevant quarter of Non- 
compliance 

Fines imposed and paid by 
the  Company* 

BSE NSE 
Regulation 19(1)/19(2) of the Listing 
Regulations for quarter ended June, 2019 

Rs. 1,96,560/- Rs. 1,96,560/- 

Regulation 19(1)/19(2) of the Listing 
Regulations for quarter ended September, 
2019 
(From 1st July, 2019 till 13th August, 2019) 

Rs. 95,040/- Rs. 95,040/- 

*Amounts mentioned above are inclusive of service tax. 
 

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company was levied fines by BSE Limited (BSE) 
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) for not appointing Company 
Secretary as Compliance Officer of the Company, Non filing of Financial Results and Non 
filing of Secretarial Compliance Report under Regulation 6 (1), Regulation 33 and 
Regulation 24A of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 respectively. Further, the Company 
has filed an Application with BSE and NSE for waiving of the amount of penalties 
imposed. 

 
C. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy and 

affirmation that no personnel have been denied access to the audit committee: 
 

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism, which includes a Whistle Blower 
Policy, for its Directors and Employees, to provide a framework to facilitate 
responsible and secure reporting of concerns of unethical behaviour, actual or 
suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct & Ethics. The details 
of establishment of Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy are posted on the website 
of the Company and the weblink to the same is 
http://gbglobal.in/investorRelation.php. No Director / employee has been denied 
access to the RP, post restoration of CIRP. 
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D. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non- 
mandatory requirements: 

 
The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Listing 
Regulations, during the financial year 2020-21 to the extent possible as company went 
under CIRP by order dated 05th December, 2019, the Hon’ble NCLT directed the CIRP 
of the Company to be restored and thereafter, the possession of the Company to be 
handed over to the CoC and the erstwhile Resolution Professional. Accordingly, at a 
meeting of the CoC held on 08th January, 2020, FTL handed over the possession of the 
Company to the CoC, which in turn handed it over to Mrs. Charu Desai, as the 
Resolution Professional of the Company. As per the relevant provisions of the IBC, the 
powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended and such powers 
and the management of the affairs of the Company vest with the Resolution 
Professional. 
 
The status of compliances with the non-mandatory requirements specified in Part E of 
Schedule II have been detailed hereinafter under point no. X. 
 
E. Web link where policy for determining material subsidiaries is disclosed: 
 
Not applicable as Company does not have a Subsidiary Company. 
 
F. Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed: 
  
https://www.gbglobal.in/codes-of-conduct-policies.php 
 
G. Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities:  
 
Nil 
 
H. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A). 
 
Nil 
 
I. A certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on 

the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 
 

Since the powers of the Board of the Directors of the Company stood suspended with 
effect from 05.12.2019 i.e. the commencement of the insolvency proceedings and 
continued to remain suspended upon conclusion of the CIRP as per the Approved 
Resolution Plan. Hence, the said requirement of issuing the certificate is not required. 
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J. Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of 
the board which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same 
to be disclosed along with reasons thereof: 
 

Nil 
 

K. total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a 
consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network 
firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part. 
 
                                                                                                                                 (in lakhs) 

Type of Service FY 2020-21 
Audit Fees 12 
Tax Fees 1 
Total 13 

 
 

L. disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

 
   a. number of complaints filed during the financial year - NIL 
   b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year - NIL 
  c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year - NIL 

 
 

X. Discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II of the 
Listing   Regulations: 

 
A. The Board: 
 
The Composition of the Board is as per above mentioned point II (i). 

 
B. Shareholder Rights: 
 
The Company’s financial results are furnished to the Stock Exchanges and are also 
published in the newspapers and on the website of the Company and therefore, 
results are not separately sent to the Members. The financial results of the Company 
are displayed on the website of the    Company i.e. www.gbglobal.in. 
 
C. Modified opinion(s) in audit report: 
 
The financial statements of the Company do not contain any modified opinion. 

 
D. Reporting of internal auditor: 
 

Prior to the commencement of CIRP, the Internal Auditors directly reported to the 
Audit Committee of Board of Directors of the Company. 
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XI. The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements 

specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 
regulation 46: 

 
The Company has complied with the corporate governance requirements specified in 
Regulations 17 to 27 to the extent possible as some of the Regulations are exempted 
to the Company since it is under CIRP. The Company has also complied with the  
 
 
requirements of clauses (b) to (i) of sub - regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Listing 
Regulations. 
 

For & on behalf of the Board of 
GB GLOBAL LIMITED (Formerly Mandhana Industries Limited) 
 
 
Vijay Thakkar      Dev Thakkar 
Director       Chairman 
DIN: 00189355                                                               DIN: 07698270 
 
DATE: 19th September, 2022 
PLACE: Mumbai 
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DISCLOSURE IN COMPLIANCE WITH PART F OF SCHEDULE V OF THE SEBI (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS & DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 FOR THE YEAR 2020-21 

 
1. Aggregate no. of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying 

in the Unclaimed Suspense Account at the beginning of the year. 
Nil 

2. No. of shareholders who approached the issuer for transfer of 
shares from the Suspense Account during the year. 

Nil 

3. No. of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from 
Suspense account during the year. 

Nil 

4. Aggregate no. of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying 
in the Suspense Account at the end of the year. 

Nil 

5. The voting rights on the aforesaid shares lying in the Suspense 
Account shall remain frozen till the rightful owners of such 
shares claims the shares. 

N.A. 

 
For & on behalf of the Board of 
GB GLOBAL LIMITED (Formerly Mandhana Industries Limited) 
 
 
Vijay Thakkar      Dev Thakkar 
Director       Chairman 
DIN: 00189355                                                               DIN: 07698270 
 
DATE: 19th September, 2022 
PLACE: Mumbai 
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DECLARATION UNDER SCHEDULE V (D) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS & DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 REGARDING ADHERENCE TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT: 

 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, this is to affirm and declare, on behalf of the Board of 
Directors of the Company and senior management personnel, that: 
 

a. The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct, Ethics and Business Principles for all 
Board members and Senior Management of the Company [‘the Code of Conduct’]; 
 

b. The Code of conduct has been posted on the website of the Company; 
 

c. All the Board Members and Senior Management personnel have adhered with the 
provisions of the Code of Conduct for the financial year ended 31st March 2021 - As per 
the relevant provisions of the IBC, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company 
stand suspended and such powers and the management of the affairs of the Company 
vest with the Resolution Professional. 

 
 

For & on behalf of the Board of 
GB GLOBAL LIMITED (Formerly Mandhana Industries Limited) 
 
 
Vijay Thakkar      Dev Thakkar 
Director       Chairman 
DIN: 00189355                                                               DIN: 07698270 
 
DATE: 19th September, 2022 
PLACE: Mumbai 

 
 
 
Note: The Reconstituted Board is not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight 
on financial and operational health of the Company and performance of the management for the period prior to its 
reconstitution. 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17(8) OF THE SEBI  
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS & DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

 

I, undersigned in my capacity as the Director of the newly Reconstituted Board of GB Global 
Limited (“the Company”), to the best of my knowledge and belief, certify that: 

 

a) I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st 

March, 2021 and based on our knowledge and belief: 
 

1. These financial statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit 
any material fact or contains statements that might be misleading. 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and 
are in compliance with existing Accounting Standard, applicable laws and 
regulations. 

 

b) I further state that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered 
into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of Company’s 
Code of Conduct. 

 

c) I am responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 
I have evaluated the effectiveness of the Internal Control Systems of the Company pertaining 
to financial reporting and I have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or 
operation of such internal controls. 

 
d) I have indicated to the auditors: 

 
1. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year. 
2. Significant changes in accounting policies, if any, during the year and that same 

have been disclosed in the financial statements. 
3. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement 

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
listed entity’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 

For GB GLOBAL LIMITED  
(Formerly known as Mandhana Industries Limited) 
 
Vijay Thakkar                   Dev Thakkar 
Director        Chairman 
DIN: 00189355                                                                       DIN: 07698270 
 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 19th September 2022 
 
Note: The Reconstituted Board is not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight on 
financial and operational health of the Company and performance of the management for the period prior to its reconstitution. 
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                                           CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

To, 
Board of Directors 
GB GLOBAL LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as Mandhana Industries Limited) 

           10th Floor, Dev Plaza Opp. Andheri Fire Station, 
           S. V. Road, Andheri West, Mumbai 400058. 

 
Dear Sir / Ma’am, 

 
1. I, Vyoma Desai, Practicing Company Secretary, have examined the compliance conditions of 

Corporate Governance of GB Global Limited (“the Company”) for the period ended on 31st 
March, 2021 as stipulated in  Regulation 34 (3) read with Part E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent possible as some 
of Regulations of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 are exempted to the Company as it is under 
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process             . 

 
                  Following are the observations / non-compliances:  
 

a) The Company was unable to file the Financial Results as per the Regulation 33(3)(d) of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, for the year ended March 31, 2021 within sixty days from 
the end of financial year. 
 

b) The total outstanding loans including the NCDs stood suspended due to above mentioned 
process explained hereto. Hence during the year under review, the Company have not 
filed the relevant documents to the statutory authorities pertaining to the debt (including 
NCDs), if any. 

 
c) The Company has duly filed relevant forms and returns with the Registrar of Companies, 

Regional Director, Central Government or other authorities within the time prescribed 
under the Act and the rules made there under and with additional fees wherever there 
has been a delay in filing forms/returns except the required E -forms as per Section 124 
and 125 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder.  

 
d) The Company is yet to file the Cost Audit Report, for the financial year ended 31st March, 

2021 with the Central Government. 
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e) Since the Powers of Board of Directors stand suspended on account of hon NCLT order 
for restoration of CIRP in the Company, no separate meeting of Independent Directors 
was held during the Financial Year 2020-21 and consequently, the evaluation of the 
performance of Board of Directors and of its committee and individual directors were also 
not undertaken during the year under review. 

 
f) The Company was unable to conduct its Annual General Meeting (AGM) for the Financial 

Year 2020-21 within the prescribed timeline pursuant to Status Quo Order imposed by 
the NCLAT. However, the extension for holding AGM for the Financial Year 2020-21 was 
granted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its order dated 08.09.2020 till 31.12.2020. 

 
g) During the financial year 2020-21, the Company was levied fines by BSE Limited (BSE) and 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) for not appointing Company Secretary as 
Compliance Officer of the Company, Non filing of Financial Results and Non filing of 
Secretarial Compliance Report under Regulation 6 (1), Regulation 33 and Regulation 24A 
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 respectively. Further, the Company has filed an 
Application with BSE and NSE for waiving of the amount of penalties imposed. 
 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY 
 

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of the Corporate 
Governance stipulated in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015. The management of the 
Company was responsible for the same till 05.12.2019, where National Company Law 
Tribunal (“NCLT”) restored the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) and 
management was handed over to the Resolution Professional on 08.01.2020. Pursuant to the 
Commencement of CIRP, required compliances shall be fulfilled by Resolution Professional 
in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and powers 
of the Board of Directors stand s suspended. Also, the Company was unable to conduct its 
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) for the Financial Year 2020-21 within the prescribed 
timeline pursuant to Status Quo Order imposed by the NCLAT. However, the extension for 
holding AGM for the Financial Year 2020-21 was granted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide 
its order dated 08.09.2020 till 31.12.2020. 
 
Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and Implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements 
of the Company. 
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  OPINION 

 
3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, we certify that the Company has complied in all material respects with the applicable 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, except as stated in the Secretarial Audit Report. 

 
We further state that such compliances are neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor to the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the company. 
 

             S/d- 
            CS VYOMA DESAI 
              Practicing Company Secretary 
              FCS No. 11166 C.P. No. 23010 
              UDIN: F011166D000967495 
 
              Date: 19th September, 2022 
              Place: Mumbai 

 
 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and 
forms an     integral part of this report.
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DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 149(7) OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013 
 
To, 
Board of Directors 
GB GLOBAL LIMITED 
 
Dear Sir/ Madam, 
 
I, Mr. Paresh Jain {DIN- 05159799), an Independent Director of the Company hereby 
declare and confirm that for Financial Year 2020-21, I meet the criteria of independence 
as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013, as set out below: 
 

i. I am a person of integrity and possess the relevant expertise and experience to 
act as a director of GB Global, 

 
ii. I am not and was not a promoter of the Company, or its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company, 
 

iii. I am not related to promoters or directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary 
or associate company, 

 
iv. I do not have nor had pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, 

subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, during the three 
immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year, 

 
v. None of my relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the 

Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or 
directors, amounting to two per cent or more of its gross turnover or total income 
or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is 
lower, during-the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current 
financial year, 
 

vi. Neither I nor any of my relatives- 
 

a) holds or has held the position of key managerial personnel or is or has been 
employee of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any 
of the three financial years immediately preceding the current financial year, 

b) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial 
years immediately preceding the current financial year, of- 

c) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the 
Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or 

d) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the Company, 
its holding, subsidiary or assoc'1ate company amounting to ten percent or more 
of the gross turnover of such firm, 

e) hold together with my relatives two percent or more of the total voting power of 
the Company, 
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f) is a chief executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit 

organisation that receives twenty-five per cent or more of its receipts or corpus 
from the listed entity, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or 
associate company or that holds two per cent or more of the total voting power 
of the listed entity; 
 

g) is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the 
listed entity; 
 

vii. who is not less than 21 years of age 
 

viii. who is not a non-independent director of another company on the board of which 
any non-independent director of the listed entity is an independent director: 

 
 
For GB GLOBAL LIMITED  
(Formerly known as Mandhana Industries Limited)  
 
 
Mr. Paresh Jain 
Director 
DIN: 05159799 
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DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 149(7) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
To, 
Board of Directors 
GB GLOBAL LIMITED 
 
Dear Sir/ Madam, 
 
I, Mr. Shaileshkumar Madanlal Vora {DIN- 01381931), an Independent Director of the 
Company hereby declare and confirm that for Financial Year 2022-21, I meet the criteria 
of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013, 
as set out below: 
 

i. I am a person of integrity and possess the relevant expertise and experience to 
act as a director of GB Global, 

 
ii. I am not and was not a promoter of the Company, or its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company, 
 

iii. I am not related to promoters or directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary 
or associate company, 

 
iv. I do not have nor had pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, 

subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, during the three 
immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year, 

 
v. None of my relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the 

Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or 
directors, amounting to two per cent or more of its gross turnover or total income 
or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is 
lower, during-the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current 
financial year, 
 

vi. Neither I nor any of my relatives- 
 

a) holds or has held the position of key managerial personnel or is or has been 
employee of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any 
of the three financial years immediately preceding the current financial year, 

b) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial 
years immediately preceding the current financial year, of- 

c) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the 
Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or 

d) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the Company, 
its holding, subsidiary or assoc'1ate company amounting to ten percent or more 
of the gross turnover of such firm, 

e) hold together with my relatives two percent or more of the total voting power of 
the Company, 

121



         ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 
f) is a chief executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit 

organisation that receives twenty-five per cent or more of its receipts or corpus 
from the listed entity, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or 
associate company or that holds two per cent or more of the total voting power 
of the listed entity; 

 
g) is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the 

listed entity; 
 

vii. who is not less than 21 years of age 
 

viii. who is not a non-independent director of another company on the board of which 
any non-independent director of the listed entity is an independent director: 

 
 
For GB GLOBAL LIMITED  
(Formerly known as Mandhana Industries Limited)  
 
 
Mr. Shaileshkumar Madanlal Vora 
Director 
DIN: 01381931 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
To the Members of M/s. GB Global limited (Formerly known as Mandhana Industries Limited) 

Report on the Audit of the Financlal Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of M/s. GB Global Limited (Formerly known 35 
Mandhana Industries Limited) {"the Company''}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS'') and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the \CAi's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note No 48 of the financial statements, which indicates that National 
Company Law Tribunal {"NCLT") vide its order delivered on May 19, 2021 has approved the 
Resolution Plan submitted by resolution applicant, however effects of all the relief and modification 
provided in the same has not been considered. The events or conditions as mentioned in the said 
note Indicate that till the time the final outcome and all approvals are in place and the relief that has 
been sought from various authorities are received by the Company the resolution plan cannot be 

successfully implemented. This indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast a significant 
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above. 
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1) We draw attention to Note No. 9 of the financial statements relating to accounting 
treatment in the books of account of Rs 50 crore forfeited by Committee of Creditor (CO() 
out of fixed deposit lying in the Bank of Baroda in the name of the Company and the Rs 93 
crore brought in by the erstwhile Resolution Applicant. 

2) We draw attention to Note No 1 of the financial statements relating to pending effect to be 
given in the books of accounts of certain reliefs and modification, which will be considered 
based on the application for relief made by the Successful Resolution Applicant (SRA) to the 
relevant authorities and the decision based on the execution of approved Resolution Plan. 

3) We draw attention to Note No. 21 of the financial statements relating to the Company has 
stopped providing interest on borrowings from lenders/banks from April 1, 2018, as per the 
Hon'ble NCLT order dated May 19, 2021, effect of the same will be considered based on the 
application for relief made by the Successful Resolution Applicant (SRA) to the relevant 
authorities and the decision based on the execution of approved Resolution Plan. 

-4) We also draw attention to Note No. 43 of the financial statements which states that the 
Company has contingent liability towards various statutory authorities which are not 
accounted in the books as on date. 

5) We draw attention to No. 3 of the financial statements regarding the non-availability of title 
deeds of a property having a carrying value of Rs.835.75 lacs in the financial statement. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 

Key Audit Matlers 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and In forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the 
Material uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have determined the matter described 
below to be key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Sr. No 
1 

Kev Audit Matter 
Litigation matters 
and contingent 
llablllties 

Auditor's Response 
Our audit included but was not limited to the following activities: 

1. Assessing management's position through discussions with the 
external legal consultations obtained by the Company (where 
considered necessary) on both, the probability of success in 
the aforesaid case, and the magnitude of any potential loss; 

2. Discussion with the management on the development in these 
litigations during the year ended 31 March 2021; 

3. Review of the disclosures made by the Company in the 
financial statements in this regard; 

4. Obtained representation letter from the management on the 
assessment of these matters {including the basis of the 
ud emcnt. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditot's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors /Company management is responsible for the preparation of the 
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with 
our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

When we read the above reports, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responslbilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors I Company management is responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Company's Board of Directors I Company management is 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the Management/RP either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Company's Board of Directors/ Company management are also responsible for overseeing 
the company's financial reporting process. 

The power of the Board of Directors of the company has been reinstated in respect of the Company 
under the provisions of "The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,2016" ('IBC/ the Code') by the 
National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), Mumbai Bench, vide its order dated May 19, 2011, after 
approval of Successful Resolution Applicant (SRA) with fresh Resolution plan. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

III Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

III Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls . 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

( 

• 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such dlsclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors 
In (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results or our work; and {ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements . 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order''), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure - A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e. The Going Concern matter described under the "Material Uncertainty Related to 
Going Concern" paragraphs above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the 
functioning of the Company; 

f. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 
31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act. 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiven 
our separate Report in "Annexure 811• "t-.t:f>-,,,-,-., 

"' "' c z o 
* ------"". 
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, The Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the 
year and therefore, Provision of Section 197(16) is not applicable. 

l. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements-(Refer Note 43 to the financial Statements) 

ii. The Company has disclosed the impact of long-term contracts including derivative 
for which there were material foreseeable losses-(Refer Note 43 to the financial 
Statements) 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year 
ended March 31, 2021. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any 
material mis-statement. 
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j. The company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year, hence the 
compliance of section 123 of the Act is not applicable. 

For C Associates LLP 
{<l\Z*C!C'J' ntants 

tion No.: 101961 W/W-100036 

Manish Sampat 
Partner 
Membership No. 101684 
UDIN: 21101684AAAAGN7716 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 21, 2021 
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Annexure • A to the Independent Auditors' Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report of even date) 

Iii (a) As per the information and explanation provided to us from time to time, physical 
verification of some items of assets had been carried out by an independent agency, 
however the same has not made available to us. Further, the Company has not updated 
records to show full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets 
in its Fixed Asset Register; 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

(b) Since we have not been provided information as referred in clause (i) (a) above. we are 
unable to report on any material discrepancies noticed during this verification nor in the 
way such discrepancies were dealt with in the books of accounts. 

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the title deeds of the immovable properties are in the name of 
the Company except factory building situated at Sewri, Mumbai having a carrying value of 
Rs.835.75 lacs in the financial statement and with respect to freehold land at Dodballpur 
property near Bengaluru having a carrying value of Rs.220.57 lacs. 

As informed to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the Management at 
reasonable intervals during the year, discrepancies noticed on verification between the 
physical stocks and the book records were not material in relation to the size of the 
Company and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts. 

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not 
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in 
register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) 
are not applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company not granted 
any loan, given any guarantee or provided any security in connection with any loan, 
therefore reporting on the provisions of Section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of loans, investments, guarantees and securities is not applicable. 

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules 
framed there under to the extent notified. 

We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules 
prescribed by Central Government for maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of 
the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have 
been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the 
record. We have been informed that the cost audit for FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20 has not 
been carried out as required under Section 148 of the. Companies Act, 2013. 
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(vii) (a) 

{bl 

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory 
dues including income-tax, duty of customs, goods and service tax, cess and other 
statutory dues as applicable except in case of provident fund, employees' state insurance, 
tax deducted at source and profession tax where delay in payment observed between 1 to 
4 months. There were no undisputed amounts payable with respect to employees' 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, goods and service tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory 
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of six months from the date they became 
payable. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the particulars of dues of income tax and sales tax at March 31, 2021 
which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows: 

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where the 
Stc1tute Dues which the matter is pending 

(in lac) amount 
relates 

Income Tax Income Tax 1,042.19 AY 2018-19 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax Income Tax 3,587.33 AY 2017-18 Commissioner of 
Act, 1961 Income Tax {Appeals) 

Income Tax Income Tax 1,536.67 AY 2015-16 Commissioner of 
Act, 1961 Income Tax (Appeals) 

Income Tax Income Tax 3,770.90 AY 2016-17 Commissioner of 
Act, 1961 Income Tax (Appeals) 

ITD - TDS circle TDS 54.27 Various years 
Mumbai 

VAT VAT 0.39 AY 2012-13 
Maharashtra 

VAT VAT 0.63 AY 2013-14 Bombay High Court 
Maharashtra 

Sales Tax Sales Tax 1,364.21 AY 2016-17 Bombay High Court 

Sales Tax CST 1,086.47 AY 2016-17 Bombay High Court 

Sales Tax Sales Tax 2,433.46 AY 2015-16 Bombay High Court 
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(viii) 

Sales Tax CST 2,277.99 AY 2015-16 Bombay High Court 

Sales Tax Sales Tax 16.86 AY 2015-16 . 
(Delhi) 

Sales Tax Sales Tax 58.72 AV 2013-14 . 
(Punjab) 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Outstanding loans 
repayable to the financial creditors shown in the financial statement is Rs 1,26,459.49 lac 
of which the lender wise details are disclosed as below 

Particulars Nature (Rs in lac) 
Bank of Baroda 21,559.62 
State Bank of India 22,533.34 
Saraswat Bank Working Capital 10,656.36 
Bank of India 10,509.68 
Corooration Bank 5,870.05 
Total (A) 71,129.05 

l 

Bank of Baroda 2,887.SO 
State Bank of India 449.47 ,-- 
Saraswat Bank 2,000.00 
Allahabad Bank 10,194.12 
Corporation Bank 

Term loan 
1,356.61 

Axis Bank S,638.02 
Punjab National Bank 1,518.39 
Karur Vysya Bank limited 1,209.49 
Indian Bank 385.56 
ICICI Bank limited 11.84 
Total (Bl 25,651.00 

Bank of India 350.00 
Allahabad Bank 1,750.00 
Indian Overseas Bank Non-Convertible Debenture 1,000.00 
L& T Finance limited 1,400.00 
Canara Bank 1,200.00 
Total (Cl 5,700.00 

On Working Capital 12,964.20 
On Non- Convertible 

Interest Outstanding 
1,765.67 

Debenture 
On Term Loan 6735.97 
Total ID) 21,465.84 

Small Industries 581.11 
Development Bank of India Bill Payable 
Interest thereon 93.07 
Total IE) 674.18 
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(ix) 

(x) 

(xi) 

(xii) 

(l<iii) 

(xiv) 

(xv) 

Bal Krishna Industries 1650.00 
Limited Inter Corporate deposit 
Interest thereon 189.42 
Total (F) 1,839.42 

TOTAL (A to F) 1,26,459.49 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
{including debt instruments) during the year. The term loans availed by the Company have 
been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. 

According to the Information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on 
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course 
of our audit. 

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and 
explanations given to us, the company has not paid any managerial remuneration in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Company is not a Nidhi company and therefore the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the company. 

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and 
explanation given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details thereof 
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore clause 3(xiv) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered under section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 

For C N 
Chartere 
FRN: 10 

ssoclates LLP 
ountants 

),Y/W-100036 

/ 

( 

Manish Sampat 
Partner 
Membership number: 101684 
UDIN: 21101684AAAAGN7716 
Mumbai 
Date: August 21, 2021 
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Annexure - B to the Auditors' Report 

Report on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act") 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. GB Global Limited 
(Formerly known as Mandhana Industries Limited) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our 
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, except in case of Inventory where controls need to be strengthened, and Fixed assets, 
where the register of fixed assets is not updated, the Company has an adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control 
with reference to financial statements criteria established-by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("Guidance Note"). 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, mcludmg adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of !ndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 

udit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
ternal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. 
d testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
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assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting 

A company's Internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of 
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Flnancial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For C N •••�e;,sociates LLP 
Charter ountants 
;?,M{J\w./W-100036 

Manish Sampat 
Partner 
Membership number: 101684 
UDIN: 21101684AAAAGN7716 
Mumbai 
Date: August 21, 2021 
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NOTES TO CAS.H FLOW STATEMENT:- 

l Cash fiow statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Ind AS 7 · Statement of cashFlow 

1 Castr and Cashequ,v.l lents Includes 
P.uticulars 

Cash on I-land 
Balances m bank wl!h current accounts 
Balances m Escrow Account wlth Bank of BarQda- (Refer Note -9) 
aatances with b.anks as Fixed oeccuts & Mar in Monev 

Cuh and Cuh •11ulv1Wlnts 1t th11 tnd of the er-es Der Note 9 

Less: Balances In EKrow Account with 8.Jnk of aaroda- !Refe.- Note -9) 
Less: Foxed OeooSits & Manvn Monev Shown ;is Investment Activilv 

Partner 
Membership No.101584 

Place Mumbai 
Date: Ausust,21,2021 
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R GB G!oNI Umlled 
Fo Jnl"fly known a, Mandhana lndu� Limited) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,2021 
NOTE 1: GENERAL INFORMATION 

GB Global Limited (the Company) formerly known as Mandhana industries Limited rs a public Company, which was 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on July 24, 1984 and has its registered office at Tarapur, 
Maharashtra. The Company is engaged in yarn dyeing, fabric processing and garment manufacturing . The Company is 
listed on two stock exchanges t.e. at National Stock Exchange and at Bombay Stock Exchange. 

• A corporate Insolvency resolution process (�CIRP") was initiated against the Company under Section 7 of the 
Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("IBC") vlde order of the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLr') dated 
September 29, 2017. Pursuant to the said order, Mrs. Charu Desai was confirmed as the Resolution Professional 
("RP") of the Company by the Committee of Creditors ("Coe"), 

• Vide order dated November 30, 2018 (#Resolution Plan Approval Order"), the Hon'ble NCLT approved the 
Resolution Plan submitted for the Company by Formation Textiles LLC ("Resolution Applicant 1"). Subsequently, 
as per Board meeting held on January 31, 2019, the Resolution Applicant took over the management/ control of 
the affairs of the Company. Subsequently, the Resolution Application 1 submitted an application before the 
Hon'ble NQT, inter alia, seekillg leave for making certain revisions/modification in the approved Resolution Plan 
("RA Application"). On December 5, 2019, the Hon'ble NCLT noted that while a separate hearing was required to 
decide the merits of the application, as an interim measure, directed that the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor to be 
restored and thereafter, the possession of the Corporate Debtor be handed over to the Committee of Creditors 
and the erstwhile Resolution Professional 

• Further, vide order dated February 5, 2020, the Hon'ble NCLT allowed the Resolution Professional to Invite fresh 
resolution plans from prospective resolution applicants by providing an additional period of 70 days to undertake 
the process. On March 23, 2020, a nationwide lockdown was declared due to sudden outbreak of Covld-19 
pandemic. On March 30, 2020, the Hon'ble NCLAT ordered that the period of lockdown ordered by Central 
Government and State Governments shall be excluded from the period for completing the CIRP of a corporate 
debtor prescribed under Section 12 of the Code. Hence the period of 70 days to undertake the sale process was 
extended till the lockdown continued. 

• On September 10, 2020, the Resolution Professional received one resolution plan for the Corporate Debtor from 
Resolution Applicant ("Resolution Applicant 2"), Dev Land & Housing Private Limited ("OLH"). Subsequently, after 
various rounds of negotiations and discussions, Resolution Applicant 2 submitted revised final resolution plan to 
the Resolution Professional on December 9, 2020 (with an addendum issued by the Resolution Applicant on 
December 11,2020), which was put to vote by the CoC and thereafter approved. Subsequent to the year-end, on 
May 19, 2021, the NCLT has approved the terms of the Resolution Plan submitted by DLH. The approval of 
resolution plan subsequent to March 31, 2021 has been considered as non-adjusting event for the purpose of 
financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2021. Pursuant to such approval of the Resolution Plan by the 
Hon'ble Net T, the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 have been prepared on a going concern 
basis. 

• The Resolution Professional has filed an application with Hon'ble NCLT seeking clarification on the treatment of 
dues accrued during the tenure of the erstwhile Resolution Applicant i.e Formation Textile LLC (01'1 February 2019 
to 04ih December 2019). Further to this the Para "l" of the Hon'ble NCLT order dated May 19, 2021, for Status of 
the said category of Operational Creditors It ls clearly mentioned that "this issue has to be decided only after 
hearing to such category of operational Creditors in an appropriate proceeding as and when initiated. However, it 
is cleat that the Present RA "Dev land and Housing Private Limited" shall not be held accountable in any manner 
for this liability" 
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• Pursuant to Hon'ble NCLT order dated May 19, 2021, the Resolution plan has been approved. However, effect of 
all the relief and modification provided in the same has not been considered in these financial statements/results 
and will be considered in the subsequent quarters of FY 2021·22. Further the SRA will also make further 
applications to other concerned authorities for relief to be granted as per the said order. Accordingly, the 
accounting for the same will be done based on the final decision and outcome of said applications from the 
concerned authorities. 

• It may be noted that with NCLT order dated May 19, 2021, handover of the management/assets of the Company 
by RP to the successful Resolution Applicant was done on June S, 2021. Accordingly, the Resolution Applic:ant and 
the RP will take responsibmty and accountability of the financial transactions reflected in these financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, based on actual handover. 

The financial statements of the company has been approved for by the Board of Directors on August 21 ,2021. 
NOTE 2A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 

This Note provides a list of the significant Accounting Policies adopted by GB global Limited formerly Known as Mandhana 
Industries Limited; In the preparation of the Financial Statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the 
years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

A. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS), and the provisions 
of the Companies Act ,2013 ('the Act') (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Act read with Rule-3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules 
issued thereafter. 

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION ANO PRESENTATION 

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual 
basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the 
end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financlal statements except where a newly issued 
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a charge in the 
accounting policy in use. 

Hrstcrtca! cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company 
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics 
Into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or 
disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, 
and measurements that have some s!mllarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in 
Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36. 

- 
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on 
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to 
the falr value measurement In its entirety, which are described as follows: 

• level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can 
access at the measurement date; 

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or 
liabllity, either directly or indirectly; and 

• Level 3 Inputs are unobservable Inputs for the asset 

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY 

Items Included in the financial statements of Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates ("the functional currency"). Indian rupee is the functional currency 
or the Company. 

The financtal statements are presented in Indian Rupees which Is the Company's presentation In Indian Rupees has 
been rounded up to the nearest lacs except where otherwise Indicated. 

D. CURRENT Vs. NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION 

The Company presents assets and llabrlities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 
An asset is treated as current when It ls: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A llabillty is current when: 
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• It Is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other lfabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 
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E. USE OF ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENTS 

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by 
the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including 
expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. 
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period In which the results are 
known/materialized. 

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after 
that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date. 

F. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'. First time 
adoption has been conducted retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying this standard as on the 
transition date. The effect on the transition to Ind AS 115 is insignificant. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amount disclosed as revenue 
are net of returns, rebates, goods & services tax and value added taxes. 

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities, 
as described below. 

The Company bases its estimate of return on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the 
type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. 

• Revenue recognised from major business activities:- Revenue from sale of goods is recognised as and when the 
Company satisfies performance obligations by transferring control of the promised goods to its customers. 

• Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 
contract. 

• Export Incentives under various schemes are accounted in the year of export on accrual basis. 
• Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has 

been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
the amount of income can be measured reliably). 

• Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is 
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstandrng and at the effective interest rate applicable, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

• The Company's policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described below in point no. T "Lease" 
• Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with 

the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received. 

I 
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G. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 

Initial Recognition: 
On initial recognition.for monetary items transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are 
recorded in the functional currency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency amount, the spot 
exchange rate between the functlonal currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Exchange 
differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

For Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency arc recorded using the 
exchange rates at the date of the transaction. In case of an asset, expense or income where a non-monetary 
advance Is paid/received, the date of transaction is the date on which the advance was Initially recognised. If there 
were multiple payments or receipts in advance, multiple dates of transactions are determined for each payment or 
receipt of advance consideration. 

Measurement of foreign currency Items at reporting date: 
Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items 
that are measured at htstcrtcal cost In a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured. 

The garn or loss arising on translation of non-monetary Items measured at fair value is treated in line with the 
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose 
fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement 
of Profit and Loss, respectively). 

H. TAXES 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

Current Income tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as 
reported ln the statement of profit and loss because of items of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible 
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax Is calculated using tax 
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
Current income tax assets/liabilities for current year is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to and/or 
recoverable from the tax authorities. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax rs recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financJal statements and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that rt is probable that taxable profits will be 
available against which those deductlble temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises f<om the initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting 
profit. 

\ 
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to 
be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which 
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount 
of its assets and liabilities. 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the 
form of adjustment to future income-tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincmg evidence that the 
Company will pay normal income-tax. Accordingly, MAT Credit is recognised as asset in the Balance Sheet when it 
is probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company. 

Current and deferred tax for the year:- 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to Items that are recognised in 
other comprehensive income or d!rectly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised 
in other comprehensive Income or directly in equity respectively. 

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment:- 

The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the 
application of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does 
it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The 
Appendix specifically addresses the following: 

Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately. 
The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities. 
How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss). tax bases, unused tax tosses, unused tax credits and tax rates. 
How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. 

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or 
more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. 
The Company applies significant Judgement in n identifying uncertainties over income tax treatments. 

I. PROVISIONS 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a rel!able estimate can be made of the amount of the oblJgatlon. When the Company expects some 
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised 
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 
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J. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment Is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and where applicable accumulated 
impairment losses. 
The Cost of an item of Property, plant and equipment comprises: 
a. Its purchase price including import duties and nonrefundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and 
rebates 
b. any attributable expenditure directly attributable for bringing an asset to the location and the working condition 
for its intended use and 
c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, 
the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the Item Is acquired or as a consequence of having used the 
item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce Inventories during that period. 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its PPE recognised as on April 1, 2015 measured 
as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as on transition date. 

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method on the basis of useful lives of such assets specified in Schedule It 
to the Companies Act, 2013 except the assets costing Rs.5000/- or below on which depreciation is charged@ 100%. 
Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis. 

The estimated useful life of the assets have been assessed based on technical advice, taking Into account the nature 
of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, 
anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support etc and are as under: 
Tangible Assets 

Assets Classification Useful life assessed by management 
Plant and Machinery 16 - 20 Years 
Office & Factory Equipment 6- 8.5 Years 
Furniture & Fixtures 11 - 13.5 Years 
Lease hold Land Over the period of lease term 
Lease hold improvement Over the oerlod of lease term 
Capital Expenditure on rented premises 10-12 Years 
Vehicles 8- 10 Years 
Comouters & Accessories 3.5 - 4.5 Years 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is 
classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date 
are disclosed under 'Capital work-in-progress'. 

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the Item can be measured 
reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized In net profit in the statement of profit and loss when 
Incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financfal statements upon sale or 
retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Assets 
to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell. Depreciation is 
recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less 
their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives. residual 
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes 
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis 
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Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately 
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation rs recognised on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lrfe and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets 
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets recognised as on April 1, 
2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as on transition date. 

Over the period of S Year 
Useful life assessed by management Assets Classification 

Computer Software 

De-recognition of intangible assets 
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognised. 
Useful lives of intanglble assets 

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible 
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss {if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a 
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual 
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for 
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates 
of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

If the recoverab!e amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be Jess than its carrying amount, 
the 
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit 
or loss 
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K. BORROWINGS 
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs Incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
amount is recognised In profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees 
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is 
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. 

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished 
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income/{expense). Borrowings are classified as current liabilities 
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the 
reporting period. 

l. BORROWING COST 

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of a qualifying asset are capltalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset 
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary Investment of specific 
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are Incurred. 

M. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

A contingent trablllty Is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a 
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. A cont!ngent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognised because ltcannot be measured reliably. The contingent liability is not recognised in books of account 
but its exrsteoce is disclosed In financial statements. 

N. FINANClAL INSTRUMENTS 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity 

Financial Assets 

Initial recognition and measurement: 

The Company recognizes a financial asset In its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus in the case of financial assets not 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of 
the financial asset. 
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Where the fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is different from Its transaction price, the difference 
between the fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss In the Statement of Profit and Loss 
at initial recognition if the fair value Is determined through a quoted market price In an active market for an identical 
asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input). 

ln case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference between 
the fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and recognized as a gain or loss In the Statement of 
Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change In factor that market participants 
take into account when pricing the financial asset. 

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction 
price. 
Subsequent measurement 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) 
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees 
or costs that are an Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI If It Is held within a business model whose objective Js achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
A financial asset which is not classified In any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. 

Equity instruments: 
All equity investments within the scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Such equity instruments which 
are held for trading are classified as fVTPL. For all other such equity instruments, the Company decides to classify 
the same either as FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

Derecognition of financial assets: 

A financial asset (or, where appl!cable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when any of the following occurs: 

- The contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires; 
- The Company transfers Its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially 
transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. 
- The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and does not retain 
control over the financial asset. 
In cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
financial asset, but retains control of the financial asset, the Company continues to recognize such financial asset 
to the extent of its continuing Involvement In the financial asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an 

) 
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associated liability. The financial asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights 
and obligations that the Company has retained. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also 
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received. 

lmpafrment of financial assets:- 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses 'Expected Credit loss' (ECL) model, for evaluating impainnent of 
financial assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). 

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to: 

• The 12-months expected credit losses {expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial 
Instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or 
• Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life 
of the financial instrument). 

For trade receivables Company applies 'simplified approach' which requires expected lifetime losses to be 
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

ECL Is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company In accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (I.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original 
effective interest rate. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible 
within 12 months from the reporting date. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal} recognized during the period is recognized as mcome/ expense in the 
Statement of Profit and loss under the head 'Other expenses'. 

Flrianclal Liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement: 
The Company recognizes a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions 
of the Instrument. All financial liabhltles are recognized initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities 
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial liability. 

Where the fair value of a financial liability at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the difference 
between the fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and loss 
at Initial recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an active market for an identical 
asset Il.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data from observable markets (I.e. level 2 input}. 

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference between 
the fair value and transaction price Is deferred appropriately and recognized as a gain or loss in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor that market participants 
take into account when pricing the financial liability. 
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Subsequent measurement:- 

All financial ltabu.tres of the Company are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method, Except For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying 
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

Under the effective interest method, the future cash payments are exactly discounted to the initial recognition 
value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of the 
difference between the initial recognition amount and the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value 
{net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial liability over the relevant period of the financial liability to 
arrive at the amortized cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the amortization under effective 
interest method is recognized as interest expense over the relevant period of the financial liability. The same is 
included under finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities:- 
Financial liabilities are derecognised when these are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, 
cancelled or has expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and 
the consideration paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Offaetting financial instruments:- 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on 
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or 
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. 

0. FAIR VALUE MASURMENRT 
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned 
above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
- In the Principal market for assets or Liabilities or 
- In the absence of a Principal market, in the most advantageous market for the assets or liability 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows, the inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 
inputs). 

Level 1- quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly 
Level 3 - inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability 
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P. 

Q. 

R. 

s. 

IMPAIRMENT OF NON·FINANCIAL ASSETS 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be Impaired. If any 
indrcation exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's 
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating units (CGU) fair 
value less costs of disposal and Its value in use. Recoverable amount Is determined for an Individual asset. Unless 
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's 
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or (GU.exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and Is written down to its recoverable amount. 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits which 
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
INVENTORIES 
Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The cost in respect of the various items 
of inventory is computed as under: 

In case of raw materials at weighted average cost plus direct expenses. The cost includes cost of purchase and 
other costs incurred in bringing the Inventories to their present location and condition. 

In case of stores and spares at weighted average cost plus direct expenses. The cost includes cost of purchase and 
other costs Incurred In bringing the Inventories to their present location and condition. 

In case of work In progress at raw material cost plus conversion costs depending upon the stage of completion. 

In case of finished goods at raw material cost plus conversion costs, packing cost, non recoverable indirect taxes 
(if applicable) and other overheads incurred to bring the goods to their present location and condition. 

In case of by-products at estimated realizable value. 

Net realizable value ls the estimated selling price in ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Defined Contribution PCan: 
Contribution to provident fund is accounted on accrual basis with corresponding contribution to recognized fund. 

Defined Benefit Plan: 
Gratuity 
The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at 
the time of resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service 
as per the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972. 

The gratuity liablllty amount ls contributed to the approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment 
to the employees. The gratuity fund has been approved by respective IT authorities. 

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived fl'om employees' services. 
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All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost, if any, and net interest on the defined benefit 
liability (asset) are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on the plan assets (excluding amounts included 
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset), are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. Such 
remeasurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods. 

The Company presents the above liability/(asset) as current and non-current in the balance sheet as per actuarial 
valuation by the independent actuary; however, the entire liability towards gratuity is considered as current as the 
Company will contribute this amount to the gratuity fund within the next twelve months. 
Leave Eocasbment 
Short-term obligations 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and entitlements to Annual leave that are 
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the 
related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

There is Different policy for leave encashment at different location as below 
For Bangalore : 
A worker can accumulate total EL up to 30 days. Workers who have accumulations in excess of 15 El's as on 31st 
of December each year will be entitled for leave encashment for the excess over 15 Els in that Financial Year. This 
excess leave encashment will be paid to workers before the end of that financial year. EL of upto 15 days shall be 
carried forward to next calendar year. Leave Encashment will be paid on gross salary to workers. 

For staff category Accumulated EL over and above 15 El's if not availed will be lapsed. At the time of resignation 
/termination /retirement, the balance EL will be paid on Basic salary & DA as on last working day up to lSEL's only 
in their Full & Final Settlement. 

For all other location: 
Company does not follow the said policy for Leave Encashment or any other pension plans/schemes. All the unused 
leaves outstanding as on 31't March ets la sed and does not et accumulated. 

T. LEASE 
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

The Company as lessor 
Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected genera! inflation to compensate for 
the Company's expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such 
benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

The Company as lessee 
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a 
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company 
assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct 
the use of the asset. 
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• 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (uROU") and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve 
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company 
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. 
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any Initial direct 
costs less any lease Incentives and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing 
the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. They are subsequently measured 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the 
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose 
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in­ 
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. The lease liability is Initially measured at amortized cost at the 
present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate Implicit in 
the lease or, !f not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates In the country of domicile of these 
leases. Lease liabilities are re measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the 
Company changes Its assessment if whether It will exercise an extensrcn or a termination option. 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been 
classified as financing cash flows. 

Transition 

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" and applied the standard to all lease contracts 
existing on April 1. 2019 using the modified retrospective method. In respect of leases previously classified as an 
operating lease applying Ind AS 17, the company adopts the transition option to recognise Right-of-Use asset (ROU) 
at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating 
to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately before transition option to recognise Right of-Use asset 
(ROU) at an amount equal to the lease liability, on the date of initial applfcatfon. Consequently, the Company 
recorded the lease liabflity at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing 
rate. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and 
therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year 
ended March 31, 2019. 

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of Rs. 111.BB lacs 
and a lease liability of Rs. 111.88 lacs. Further, In respect of leases which were classified as operating leases, 
applying Ind AS 17, Rs 68.70 lacs has been reclassified from "Other Assets" to "Right of Use Asset". The effect of 
this adoption is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will 
result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase In cash outflows from financing 
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activities on account of lease payments. The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial 
application: 

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a 
similar end date. 

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of 
lease term on the date of initial application. 

c. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, 
Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17. 

d. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 13.46%. 

U. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per 
equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the 
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential 
equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares 
been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential 
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive 
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. 

V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described as stated above, the Board of Directors 
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only the period of the revision 
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 
Key sources of uncertainty. 

In the application of the Company accounting policies, the management of the Company is required to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements that the management has made in 
the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recnanfsed in the financial statements: 
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Defined benefit plans: 
The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation 
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may 
differ from actual deve!opments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future, salary 
Increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its 
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions 
are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Useful lives of depreciable tangible assets and tntangtble assets: 
Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable/ amortlsable assets at each reporting date. As at March 31, 
2020 
management assessed that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Company. 

Fair Value measurements and valuation processes: 
Some of the Company's assets and llabllltles are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The board 
of directors of the Company approves the fair values determined by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company 
Including determining the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. 

In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent is 
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the 
valuation. The Chief Financial Officer works closely with the qualified external valuers to establlsh appropriate 
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. 

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used m determining the fair value of various assets and 
liabilities are disclosed m notes 34. 

Cont!na:ent Liability: 
In ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims by various parties. The Company annually assesses such 
claims and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel, 
wherever necessary. The Company records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable 
of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are 
considered possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosures in the financial statements but does not 
record a liability in its financial statements unless the loss becomes probable. 

Income Tax: 
The Company's tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income 
taxes Including judgement on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax 
assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods 

Inventory: 
Management has carefully estimated the net realizable values of Inventories, taking into account the most reliable 
evidence available at each reporting date. The future realization of these inventories may be affected by market 
driven cheoges. 

W. BASIS OF SELECTION AND CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY 
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an entity in 
preparing and presenting financial statements. 
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An entity shall select and apply its accounting policies consistently for similar transactions, other events and 
conditions, unless an INDAS specifically requires or permits categorization of items for which different policies 
may be appropriate. If an Ind AS requires or permits such categorization, an appropriate accounting policy shall 
be selected and applied consistently to each category. 

An entity shall change an accounting policy only if the change: 
(a) Is required by an Ind AS; or 
{bl results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of 

transactions, other events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance or cash 
flows. 

Applying changes in accounting policies 

{a) an entity shall account for a change in accounting policy resulting from the initial application of an Ind AS 
in accordance with the specific transitional provisions, if any, in that Ind AS; and 

{b) when an entity changes an accounting policy upon initial application of an Ind AS that does not include 
specific transitional provisions applying to that change, or changes an accounting policy voluntarily, it shall 
apply the change retrospectlvely ,0 . 

_ 

Note 28 :APPLICATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCAH) through a notification. amended Schedule Ill of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and Ill of Schedule Ill and are applicable from April 1, 
2021. Key amendments relatlng to Division II which relate to companies whose financial statements are required 
to comply with Companies (Indian Accountfng Standards) Rules 2015 are: 
Balance Sheet: 
• Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head 'financial II abilities', duly distinguished as current 
or non-current. 
• Certain additional disclosures In the statement of changes in equity such as changes In equity share capital due 
to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period. 
• Specified form.at for disclosure of shareholding of promoters. 
• Specified format for agemg schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-In-progress and intangible 
asset under development. 
• If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial 
institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used. 
• Specific disclosure under 'additional regulatory requirement' such as compliance with approved schemes of 
arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of Immovable property not held in 
name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel {KMP) and related 
parties, details of benami property held etc. 

Statement of profit and loss: 
• Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual 
currency specified under the head 'additional information' in the notes forming part of consolidated financial 
statements. 
The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law. 
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GB GLOBAL LIMITED (Rs. In Lacs) 

( 

AS AT ASAT 
NOTE 4 "INVESTMENTS" 11.0).2021 11.0).2020 
Financial assets earned at cost 
Investment in Equity Instrument 0.25 0.25 
The Saraswat Co·Op Bank Ltd (Unquoled) 
(2,500 Equity share of 10/·each) 

Total 0.25 0.25 

ASAT ASAT 
NOTE S "OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS" 31,03.2021 )1.03.2020 
Unsecured, Considered Goods 
Current 

Security Deposits# 174. 75 21.87 

Non Current 
Security Deposits 63.87 205.29 
Balances with Banks as Fixed Deposits 10.00 . 

Total 2-18,62 227.16 

# During the year the security deposits have been reclassified as current on account of derecognition of ROU 
Asset and accordinaly the amount has been restated to original amount. 

ASAT ASAT 
NOTE 6 "OTHER NON -CURRENT ASSETS" 31.0),2021 31.03.2020 

Other Non Current Assets 
Vat Refund Receivable 70.24 77.64 
Income Tax Refund Receivable 568.28 516.67 
Prepaid Expenses 0.43 4.91 

638.95 599.23 

Long term advances 
Unsecured, considered doubtful 1,023.00 1,023.00 
Less: Provision for Non-recoverable Advances (1,023.00) (1,023.00) 
Total 6)8.95 599.23 
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( 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
ASAT ASAT 

NOTE 7 "INVENTORIES" 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 
(At lower of cost and net realisable value) 
Finished Goods 130. 12 738.03 

Raw Materials 27.84 517.81 

Work in Process 17.77 558. 74 

Consumables and Store & Spares 405.34 527.]8 

Total 581.07 2,341.97 

Details of Finished Goods 
Greiqe Fabric 2.59 27.47 
Finish Fabric 18.20 ]95.74 
Gannents 109.]] 314.83 

130.12 738.03 

Details of Raw Materials 
Yarn J.58 211.14 
Greiqe Fabric 0.92 205.66 
finish fabric 23.34 99.01 

27.84 517.81 

Details of Work In Process 
Yam . 85.39 
Finish Fabrics 17.73 186.77 
Garments 0.04 286.sa 

17.77 558.74 

Details of Consumables and Store & Spares 
Dyes 59.82 120.37 
Chemicals 76.21 96.83 
Packing Matenals 14.14 18.08 
Trims 33.33 52.63 
Coal/fuel a. Gas 12.70 13.49 
Store a: Spares 209.14 225.98 

405.14 527.38 

Note:- 
1 During the year an amount of Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 524,62 lacs) was charged to the Profit and loss on 

account of slow and non Moving inventory. 
2 All the Inventory is hypothecated as security against working capital loan. 
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GB GLOliL LIMITED (Rs. lnl..i,:,,J 

( 

\. 

ASAT ASAT 
NOTt 8 "THOE R(CEIVABLES" 31.03.2021 31.0l.2020 

Re-ce1v<1.bles from related parties 
Unseo.ired, considered good . . 

Rl!O!lvables from other-s 
unsecured, consl�ed good 1,087.88 2,261.N 

Recehoabl� that are uedit 1mp.ilred 35.484.62 35,557.69 
tess. prO\>�fon for lmpinr�t (35,484.62) (35,557.69) 
Ll!W Expe,cted crecn Loss (295.B)) (34.76) 
Total 792.05 2.226.64 

Dunng the yeir a provision or Rs 261 08 (Prl!VHXJS Vear Rs 34. 76 lacsJ for the lmpilirment of trade receivable has been rmde on the bash 
of the expected credit loss method Oil>OO oo rmnagemtnt judgement. further,dunng the vear,;in amount of Rs 71.07 tees has been 
wntten offill!d adjus.ted .Jialnst the ope11in11 prOYislon for Doubtful debt�. 

Age of Re<.ewaibl1$ 

"""''"" )1.0).2021 31.0J.2020 
L� then 180 d� 775.•n 2,224.99 

More than 180 eevs )11.96 36..40 
Total ,. ·- �,�g1,H 

Ageing of uedlt Impaired R•c•lvables· 
Particulars )1.0).2021 31.03.2020 

Less than 180 days 
More than 180 davs ,5,484.62 )5,557.69 

Total ••• ���.11, "· . 
Ageln1 of Expected Ctecht Loss 

P.1nlcu1Jn. 31.0J.2021 31.03.2020 
WS than 180 days {6.41) (24 16) 

Moreth.:in180d� !289.42) (10.60) 
toter (u.J.IIJ) , ..... .rb) 

Movement In e1ti:,ected credit Ion allowance 
Particulu� J1,03.2021 31.03.2020 

Balance at the bes,nnms of the year 34.76 
Reversal of provision during year . 

Provision provided during the vear .t61.Ul l-4.76 
aatance at the end of the vur. ·" J4.,., 

ASAT AHT 
HOT£ 9 "CASH A.NO BANK BALANCES" ll.03.20Z1 31.03.2020 

(i) Cilsh ;ind Bank Balal!Cl!S .. BalMces with 6af\lls 201.35 612.1 \ 
b. Cash on Hand "' 2.57 

(ii) Ottier Bank Balances .. Balam'.:es ln Escrow Aceount with Bank of Baroda " ).7�.01 l,7'19.01 
b. satarces wfth banks as Fixed Deposits 6: Ma.r�,n Mooey # 1 1,252.15 1,H0.13 

Toti\ 5,25).39 ,.n-t.41 

f'1 In FY 13-19 the Balance with 8a11k!i as Fuced Deposits induded Rs. 5000 tscs, which was rece-ee on July 11,2018 from erstwhile 
Resolution Applica,nt (RAJ. formation Textiles UC. in lieu of perform;ioce bank guarant� n part of the (IRP in terms ol the flrott:5S 
men-.ird:m ind later on l"ovember 6, 2018 tile funds were 1r.1r,sferred toe fixed deposit with Sank of 6aroda. Further on Decembe-r 
2-4, 2019 the Committee ol Creditors, ciliJ!i tile RA"s failure to lmpll!fflent tile Re50lution ?lotn Invoked the Per'lonnance Guarantee and 
forfeited the §illd amount by m.itunng tile Fixed Deposit out of tl'le account of the Comp.any. liowever, R5 500 tees of Earnest Man11y 
Deposit gNen by the entwhlle Resolution Applicant (RAI as �r terms of the process memorandum are stfll parked in fixed deposits wtth 
Sank of Baroda. (Rtftr �ti! 22 a) 

#2 Further the mfuslon of Rs.3799.01 lacs by the er�twhlle R!;'solution Applicant (RA), Formation reeues LLC. toward share application 
money, are kept tn escrow account with Bal"lk of Baroda (Refer t.ote 22 c) 
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GI GLOML LIMIT!O [RI !11 L-.:s) 

( 

ASAT •SAT 
"" . (R" OJr,NS__.1,NO ADVllNCES" l1 Ol 1011 )1 OJ 2020 

• Lolnl &M &clvll'ICM lC l'el9le<l partkl5 
u.,,ecuree, CoMkl1red GOOd 

" ""'" �.ecure<J, c ... �ertd Gcod 169 91 U.H9 

l..fflttw...:I, """'� dout>lful 6,961.42 6,'1113.42 
U'SO: ,,.,..1....,. 1..- Non·iK(l',euble -·"""' (6,'1113.42! {6,98HZ) 
Lef.· �Wd CIN1t I.Im I {H7.69J . 

••• ll.U 16).49 

Durin1 the re•• t1'e ComPlnv hid m- • """"""" of lu. 147.69 as Eitpecled credit Lew on 1Ml'ICld g;.,.n to -.el'dors •l"l - thon 
� 365 o..,... 

� .. ..SU 
MOT( 11 "OTl-!ER CURR( .... ·•�n· JT 01.1011 l\ Ol.1010 

• b.port, lnce<\U..., ...ce+vatu 6 !.811 441 oa 

' TUF lnt<!re:11 Sllb:lldy �ell<at>Ce 1,007 79 l,007 79 
l.., .... 

,rOY10<id for WMIO',' 1;1!'1nQ mor. than l Yur (l,007 79) {l 007 79) 

,. lnter�t 1'1Q Ot� R<:cetv¥11e 20 J! "� ,. GST Credit & �ef'-"""' ltecelvabl� II 9H 14 1,008 94 .. Unb,lled A111\I QO Job WQ!k CQn\f'ICt 110 66 133 14 

' Pre Pafd E•�enses 108 40 76 n 

Tc,lll 1,JJ;.O 1,611.60 

• "'' p,er GST �fie•�"" No 10/Z01B-C..nuol n., (llltel d1ted Z607 2013, Camp.onv u •llawad to 1•t GST ,eflJl'ld on 1rcount c,l 1n..,rted Outy on 
F,bnc F'rod,,,:i:, ffom q 1B 0<1w11"1b, w,th l� a.mlot1<><1 th•t 11<:CYmlMted lnptlt To• er.du on lnw•rd wpplv ol -,,ic.,. up 10 Jul• 18 ... ,� ''"' 
i...,..,, To 1et the GST ,.r.....o on Oo�".: /1bNcs 1ndJQb wcrl:Com!>M"!'h•w reYer<e<i •n �mount <:JI Rt. 116111.ocs tow1<dl IMl�ble ln1M1t r •• 
Cr,.&!°" 29tli Se(l11mw,w20. 
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GI Gl.01.1,,L Llli\lrED 

(R• Jn LacJ) 
ASAT AS AT 

NOH l1 "EQUITY SHA.REC.-.Pffl'< ,11.03.2021 3l.03.2(lJU 

Authoiifoo 
10,W, YOOUO l:::qu.ity !ih.ue,i of Rs.ID/· 1••ch 10.'199 Oil IQ99900 
10,000 preference w ...... oJ Rs. 10 /· Heh LOO ,.oo 

11.000 00 11.000.00 

Issued. Subscribed & Po1c! Up 
33, 14,2\15 �qulty 1h.1ees of Rs.JO e.><.h fully ,,,id up 33141 �31.43 

TMal H10 JJ1.0 

iJ R«ondliaoon <>I 1lw numhrf of "1He>OU1>11ndlnc a11lw btvnnir>.11 ond a11M and ol the roPortinc pencd • 

Particular., AJ at Jlot M•n:h.2021 As al Jht March,2010 
No. ofSharu Amour\! No. of Sh.>ttl Amount 

AttM be�il'ltll<'ll(ol the VHr 33,14,2\15 331.43 1,31,23,913 l,>U.39 

°'"""• du� ... ,M ••or I . . (2.�,09,6161 (2.980.96) 
Dut,tondlM ot the end olthe ,..., 33,14.295 331.4.3 .ll,14,295 "'" 

I ,.,. per tM �rot< �d by tM Hon'bk NU Iona I Compony Low T,.t.,,..1 !Wied )Or;h --· 2018 the �W Share. of th<: Cemptny havo �n 
rodv,:edto I/10th •1>11 •"'I frocnC111I Equltv 5htrt lw•e been rnund,rd \0 I EQulty Si'>ore on 31>! Moy, 2019 Acc<>rd1n1i,,,, the ne of OQUlty 1h1ru i'>o,e 
reduced from 3,31,2J,9B (of f1co v;lu• �• 10/· •• oh) to 33,14,lQS (of Foe, Vil"'" R, 10 each) ind eQulty 51,ue Cop,t,I reduced lrom �,.33,12,39,130 to 
Rs.3,31,42,950/-. An 1moont ol Rs 29,S0.�,180/- hu been tronsferrod to Cop,tol reduc�o., Reserv• 

i) Torm,/npllatudl�I<>� . 
., ... ComPliny has onlw one cbs< of �IIV INm h"""" at IY' ,alue of RI. 10 - .i...e Loch !lh.vtholotr ii; eloJible for 0<1t ...,., l>tf thue. Thoe 
dioidond proposed by tnr, eo.td of 01,.<<0fl ,S sutrjr,ct I<> the appm,<,11 of .slltrtholdon, �co� ir> e&H ol l�t.,,m dividend In the ..,,nt of llquld.ot.,n, IN! 
equ�y ""'ral>oidet• are er1g1blo 10 n:co""' the ....,...,....,. asseu of tlwl C"""Pll"Y ofter <ftstnb,mor1 ol oll ?rf!lerentr1I 3mo\Jnto, In ?'"oPO<tOln to !heir 
.hareho�"I•· 

N•me ol Sho�holdu 1U • 31st Mur�,20:!I As a 31&1 Man:11,2020 
No.o!SNn!I %of Holding No. ofSharM % o( Holding 

htld h'"ld 

' JHANA (HUI') 1.n.060 '" l.72Jl60 "' 1.n.060 ' " l,72.060 "" 
rv) The Com?,Ony hu not ,.,...,d •ny shuts for e;oruidor.it\cn other th•n cuh , b� way ol t,,,,,u, shore or by ,hart buybod durlnl! tho IHI S yHrs. 
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( 

�GLOIAl,Ul,Ul'tD 
hl•U<II 

WR 11 "IH!!tB lOUIJI: MU MU 
,,rttw1, ... iLOl.1021 Jl.OJ.lOtO 

c.-.,, .......... soo •oo 
c., ... 19a,_,._ ,-� ,-� - - 1Q.941W 10.9"7U -h-� ··- 1,,.,m L•U.00 
_1,,11011- t•YE&'l 1• 11m q, ,.._,,._ • Tl'l 07 6.�35.0.! 
•••• 1, ... ,.. ... , ll ll 694 40' ll.Zl.71069 

(94.976 !6) IH.99l 1•1 

' --- ,-... .... , __ -- - w-- - - -- ·- - ...- -- - -- c.orn/111< ... .,,.,, 
NIM<• ¥ II ..... 111. 2019 •OO ,n,.111 1 •25.00 u.oo 91 �Z,,104 '1 l7 ls.I 15 (8) 617 57 

f'rol•blh•-· ",.., ., r.nosl �- --....--ro,ti..,..., at<;o/1,col!lttu 125 Ol "" .,-,--c.n. ... - ... -,- ... £ SharoC • ·-� 1.91()% 

r .. ,..r ... "' Go<,or,111< .. "" 11'1l.Oll ;iua2 

� .. 11-tll.U lOlO -� -K I0.,.7-51 1f·�QI u, =m ll..ZL71(1ff) ·-· .... w 
a.lHce ......... 1, 2ffl "00 ·-· l"<J,116.' 1.-ti'>CIO 1•K1H1 ·=� 11 J1 710691 t.Uff)1' 

holl.11ot1 ...... , 1101115 IS 10 111515\ ·� -ran .. ,,..,...._ ... l'(ll •• ,.,, .. 
••••-•nr-,1�- 11U01 lUOl I 
Haia,,coo, .. "'""'� JI, ZOU MOO 1.9'0 �· ,o.,., Sl 1,05.00 l,US9.19 I 77!1.07 (1.JLHUOl r.,., ••• , 

• Coplhl , ....... 

�,t,I h•- �u�llod n """�"''""'with""""'"'"°''""!«< 
t, Copltol ,OOLJttloo rt1- 

c.p,1..i ,..,.,...,., , • ..,... (< • ,._,,.,. non.,U,t,(110,.DII - C<N!od J..rtn1 l,u -·· a,!*"..,.""'"' .,.,,..r bv the t1o11•0ic NononolColllf"'"f i- '""'"Ol 401od lOlh -- .. 2011 ,.,. -it, si.. ... ol ,,,. °"""""' � - '°""'°"""' l/1!111' •• .i ...,. tr...ioonol f<iuil• ,Iha,......,. - -..r "' 1 •....-i � •• ,."" ll>t Mo. 20J9 .s.m,,nn� .. - ""' err -It! .oo,n """" .........r tram 3.31.U,91J {al 1- 
••luo Rs Ill/· -f •o .n.1•.2'15 (<,ff.,. V- k, 10 ootOI...., ..., .. -·• �•I NMlo<od �..., lb.Jl.12.39,llO to ll>.3.31.4l,95(1,'·. ""am,�,ot ol k< 2'.to.!16.180/ "-' ._,, t,oo..ront<I 10 tai,<t,1 R«!II<!...., -- � S.Cwrl- pr..,- 
'"'1riw pr.....,, II used to roeo<d tho""""'' or 1110 '""°"'"t re,:.,_r .-,- tho !..co "II.it � ,oe U,om.. Th� "''°""' w• ot "llloed o, ""'"'"'""" wth tho pro.'11iol'I or tho Comp>0io< Act. iou c;.-.,o1,., ..... 
-I.,.,..., 1, us.a �omtirr,oto hm• to t ... ,ro, pro�tl ftom ftet..,.,.o """'""' fo,..,.,,_.,,1on P'J'�"' Tim .,_v.111 ot u<li,ed '"occ,,,d,acowl(), tl>O pr<wt<ion oftheeoto,.,.nios 4ct. 20\3 

Dobon!urtt re�•""Plloo r110.-.. 

n... c_.,_ ""' i. .. H ""'"....,,_.--..,a lo """ll<lo4 , •• , .i,:,u n ••d ,, !*" ll!t ...-of"'• �le>kt. lDIJ. c .. -1- to«�•"-""' - .....,... ""' of th• prafll> 
.... ,w. lo<�-• OI d-nd.Oftft" ,..,..... to bo cro"'...r loo on amount""°"' r, "'""°' to IS'Ji altll• ...... aftho ....,_,w,01 lnuod b<foRthe ,.......,..,., al 4-, .. --- llumit rl lf>·17 001-allnd.t.S, 1h<CarnPo .. i..s _,oo 10, ... luoi,, �,ei,,old Lind >11...-,...i -• lrl o,:camor,<ow�h ,tip,Jr.t.,...oflrlcl-A! IOI with the re,ul!o,t 1....,.<1 t>olait«011rrted 
11ot .. ,,..-1 ... 1o.- 

,,, ... -·-·· �.,,kl oml"C• ropro,orrto ,,,.,.,t th•t '"" ot 01$1:rlt>A•O to R1equ1tv >.1,,.,h<>l<lor1 � dotermlti<!O b,,.o"" U.. ff,or><t,l 1tou,,1enh ol tho c ...... .,.,� '"�....,con,_.,.,,,. 1oqu1,.,.,..,t, oltho Com?Orrie< 
/o.tt :>Oil 

\.. 
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GB GLOBAL LIMITED 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

ASAT ASAT 
NOTE 15 "LEA�E LIABII.ITIES" 31.03.21 31.03.20 

Lease Liabilltres a 

:-Current . 139.66 

:-Non-Curreiit . S08.S3 

TOTAL . 648.19 

# The companv had adopted modified retrospecUve approach as per para CS (c) (ii) of IND-AS 116, Leases to its leases effective from 
accounting period beginnine from April 01,2019 and recognized Right of Use Assets and lease liability as on Aprll 01. 2019. Current Portion 
of lease liabilities represent the Liability payable to next one year. 

During the Year Company has derecognlsed all the lease liability related to three properties due to reason as below.· 

1 During the year Company has vacated tl\e Delhi office before the expiry of the lease term, accordinsly the company has derecognized the 
ROU Assets related to that premise as on 30th JI.me 2020. 

2 The Successful Resolution Appllcant of the Company has intended to shift the corporate office from "Marat�n Futurex", Lower Pare I to "Dev 
Ptaza'', Andheri, and has sent a vacation notice to "Marathon Nextgen Realty limited"(The landlord). Accordln11ly the company has 
derecogmsed ROU Asset and corresponding Lease liability on 31st March 2021. 

ASAT ASAT 

NOTE 16 "LONG TERM PROVISIONS" 31.03.21 31.03.20 

Gratuity Provision for employee benefits 122.69 4!15.00 

TOTAL UU9 485.00 

ASAT ASAT 
NOTE 17 - MOTHER LONG Ttll:M UA81UTIES" 31.03.21 31.03.20 

Deposits/Advances Against Property ' 225.00 225.00 

Retention Money Against Property " lS0.00 .150.00 

TOTAL 375.00 375.00 

# The Company had entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (-Mouw) with Bombay Rayoo Pashlens Limited ("BRFL-) for sale of the as 
Freehold land located at Dodballapur near Bengaluru, once the title is transferred In the name of the Company and had received the Deposit 
of Rs. 2.25 crores as sale consideration. The said amount is reflected as Deposit against Property. 

## The Company have a factory Building Located at Sewri • Mumbai, the said property is still not registered In the name of the Company and an 
amount of Rs 150.00 lacs retained as pending sales consideration and shown as 'retention money against Property". 

ASAT AS AT 

NOTE 18 "DEFERRED TAX UA81LITI§ "(N1ttJ 31.03.21 31.03.ZO 

Deferred tax liabilities 3,871.83 4,34255 

Deferred taK assets (34.08) (151.42) 

TOTAL 3.831.75 4,1!11.14 

(Refer note 33) 
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GB GLOBAL LIMITED I�• 1nuai 

�" ASAT 
NDJ:E U "5HORU<RM..D0RR0WJNGS: 31.03.21 31.03.20 

Secured 
Lo•ns r•p•y•hle "" demand 
From Danks 7171016 7171016 

(The work1"1i cop,!ol lo,n, / Pod,r>Q Credit lre>n> Bonks,oro secured ,g,ln,t 
hypothoc,t,on of pr@sont ,nd future <tod 1rt tnd. and Boo< D@br, I 

(OIJt of tho •bo,e Rs N,I {Pre.1ous yeor N�J aro further Guor,nteed por,onolly by tho 
.,.,twh1lo Pr<>motor Director,) 

Un,ocored 
From otOOro Inter Corporoto Deposit, I 6.-.0 00 1,6'i,O 00 

TOTAL H,3ti0.16 73,360.16 

( 

ASAT ASAT 
NOTE 20...'.'.J'R�DEJ��Y�BLES: 31 03.11 U.03.10 

M,cro enterpmes and smaN enterpnse, (Refer a below) 44; 7g 4ll 33 
Crechtors other than micro enterprise< and small enteri>'ose, 2,646 n 2,7409:l 

TOTAL 3.0�6.Sl 3,1s,.2, 

The Company has certao, due, payable to suppliers re111<tered Wider Me:ro, Small and Medium Enterpmes De,elopment Act, 
2006 l"MSMEO ACT"). The d1>do,ures pursuant to the ,aid MSMED Act"'"•• follow, 

(Its. In Uu! 
Amoont remaining unp.td to suppliers under MS MED (suppliers)•• at U1e end of 
vear 

- Pnnc1oal amooot 449.79 423 33 
•• lnter••t due throon . 

Amount of payments ma<le to supplier< beyond the •i>POlnted day dur,ng the 
vear 

·-Pnnc1pal amount . 
-Interest actual Iv na,d under ,ect<an 16 of MSMED . . 

Amount of,ntere,t due and poyat>le for d1loy in payment (which has been po,d 
but beyond the appointed day durini the year) i>ut without addmg interest under 
MSMED . . 
lntere,t accrued and rema1n1n� unpaid at the end of the vear 

--Inter.st accrued duron� the �ear . 
- Interest rema1rt1no ur>na,d as at the end of the vear . 

lntere,t rema1mng d15allowat>le a, deductible expend,ture under the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 . 

�oB4�� 

� 

0/ '\<.J.. 
QJ >f1')0 o "' ,I "' z r- -- o " � 

' , -..:.:, 

\ 
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GS GLORAL LIMIHO (ll> In I.a<) 

I 

"UT "SAT 
�TE Jt "OT�rR CUMtNT FIN�NCIAL_Ll�BILITIES" 31 Ol.Zl 31.0J.ZO 

Current Maturitle1 of Iona-term d,,bt JI.JS! 00 l1,l51 00 

11nte11,1 P1yable1 on Term Loan & Debe11tures ZJ.74$ J4 21,1"'11.M 

lrOTAL 53.0,,.34 ·� 
The Company has defaulted in r,_t of p,,nclpal and inle<al payments. The pe,-iod ind .,.......nl of conllnuln& d.faults is 
on ,..., e.1,ntt mff! CIJ!e •e ;n 1W1deJ: 

,.rtmu, 31.03.2021 U.03. 
PRINCIPAL OUTSTANDING" 
Working C1plta� 1Ae1&r Note no 19) 71.710.16 71,710 lE 
Term Loar>- (Rafer Note oo 14) 25,651.00 25,651 00 
Noo Conelftlble Del)enturei· (Reier Note oo 14) s,700.00 5,700 OC 
lntu Corl)Or11e Oepo1l11 • I Reier Note no 19) 1 6SO.OO 1.650 00 

1To1'1·" 1.04.711.l.6 1,04,711.16 
INTEREST OUTSTANDING' 
On Wonl"C Clli,ital U.05715 U,OS1.2S 
On Non-COft\feitlble Oeblntures l,:nis.68 L76561! 
On Term Loan 6,735.98 6.13531! 
On ICD< ,.,,, 189.4 ,_ ... 2L148.34 Zl.7 
G,111dTol�(A•II U&.459.SO 1.26.459 

' The (<>mJlanv � !topped prcvidinJ ,ntere<t on boorrowin11 from l&flders/tJa,.. lrom Aprol 1,201!. a, per the Hon'bj1 �LT 
order dilld M1y 19, 2021, efled of the ,ame w�I t,., con.ld1r1d �IJed on the appl1cat1on for relief made by !he Successful 
Resolution A�llcant (SRI\] to thl rele,ant author11�, and the decl11ofl based en the executoon of approved l\uolutlon Plan 

M" M" 
!'IOJ[_Zl_".Qilll!llCUIR!�L�l!'Lll!E5� 31.0l.ZOZl )1-DJ.11120 

�oon AP9k1t1t Mooev,ecei-i tow..-d:i. 
E.a,,-1 Money" =oo - l'fllorm1nce e1nk Gua11ntee • . 
Equity Con1nbu11onn 3,79!1ot ,-� 

Depm"',/Adwnces vem ONI••· Agent etc. ,� n� 
5tartutOJy Cuti 107 1S UM 
.tq.ance aga1rn1 s.ie, M 70 l0.01 

5ill..-y P•y•ok! '"" U660 
Pro...,lon for e,plred EPCG LICeme• 1.75; 9! 
other P•v•t:>111 66SU 6l8 65 

,m� 7,SOl.li 5.5711il 

#a In Fl' 111-11 on ome1,n1 DIR, SOOOloos .,.., _..tan 1i...-11.2ota ,,...., u.e e,,i..t,llel'As.clullc<I �,cont{l!AJ. r;c,,m,Hon Tt<t!lnl.U:,n 
neu afptrlormon<o ..,,....,,,..._ •• ,..,toftheaR?ffl t..rmsot lt>t _..,.,,__,n<lom o!ldt..11,ran N-,,,Mrf, ltll8 tht rund, 
_... tr ... ., .. ,.,. to I fl<ecl doPo>it .. 1111 a.nt of B•ro<I• fun:t.. cw, o.cen,1w 24. 201.11 t1w Comm-of Qo,d� dll .. 1M AA·,, ...... 
to ,mpliml.,t rM �""°" Plan lnwl.ed the 1'1,rfurm.onai c:. ...... .._ tlld to,tt,....i "'".....,.... b-, """'mr1.,. tM 1moum 0111 d 1hc 
occo.:nt of tht Compo"' ttC••e>•"· mu mo tomPl<"f 1111 ,_ I.ht ,_ HI can<lolt.. the Comi:a,ny ha> pr-nted the 1rnovn1 
fort- bv Commll\ff of CrtdhOJ (CDC} H r<ilucllon Iron, thrt 5000 loe, <t(fl,-j from .,<twlule Rr=lution 1ppiUM {RA). (Rriu NI>!•:!>) 

' b. IJsc ,n AmouM of 11,..500 lie> of Eor..,t MOMV Dep<»II r-n bv the tt'1""1�• Re..,Mlon �ppkont n Pl' t.-nn af the �rOCIH 
memor1ncklm b <tlown <>Nltt """""t 1 •• i.rrt= ,od tho l"nd, '" ,�11 �•rt.:td rn �'� dopoo,t, w,th Sank of Blr<ICl1. (R,ftr Not.1.9) 

He. F...iher t!-..lnluslcl\ r,I � ]7!19.Cl i.t, b'I' 100 e,stwP,,1,o Resolu�c" Appl'clnt toword shoro �lcatlc" monoy .,., k1pt In e.crow """'"nt 
w,th B,n, of Soro<!• (R,flr Not.1.91 

d. Howe-. tM or,twhlle RA hH f�•d oddltl<>n•I appllo,tloa ?<•V1"1 IOI NCLT to rofond R, n99.0l L1<s dop,:,11tod 1ri tho ComP1nv toword, 
tho r�,olut"'n pl1n tlC"I wl!h lriteron TM NCJ.T 11 ,all to h-on th'" tddltk>nol l?Pll<ot""' rnovod by the II.Ii. fill� NCLT1lw•"" 
'°edict. tllo trutmtnt ,......, lri tho boob of �unu fct!h• ptrlcm"ltnCI bla< i<J"'lnloe ond EM Dis subject tofftllor,ionf tw e,otwhilo 
�,..,tho coe 

� .. AUf 
Noll n "!iHDRr_nltM.f.fl(M5IOlfS'.: >= 31.0UO 

GroNlty - for MlplcJK bon,rnb ·= 172.115 
Ptoml<>"I"' i..o ... E"""•hmeru 53.4l 

Prowllion!Df lncDfM Tu ,=� 5,.!.ll751! 

TOTA!. 5.799.19 !.471 i.! 
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-- - 
For YeM !nded For V&u !ndtd 

NOTE 2-4 "R�VENUE FROM OPERATIONS" 31.0l.21 31.0).20 

Sale of �roduct, (Met of Rltbate a Dlsc;ou.nt) 
l.oclll sues 1,191.29 tO,OSS.13 
Export Sates 1,692.48 9,780.10 

Sale of S.rvlcn l,065.67 5,262.56 

Othor op1ratin1 revenues 
Duty Drawbacks ft Other rxport Ent.lt.lements 124.18 ....... 
O�r OperatlON.l lncorre 35.71 196.11 

o,710.ll 25,978.3 .. 

Ministry of Corporate affairs had notlfled Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with customers' .,...hich Is effective from April 1, 
2018 The new standard outlines a single comprehensive control based model for revenue recognition and supersedes 
current revenue racogntncn guidance basecl on risk and rewards. The company had assessed the impact on the f,nanelal 
��tement of adopting IND-AS 115 and It Is not expected to have a Impact oo the company'5 profitabdlty, hqu1d1ty and c-apltal 
resources as financial ccs.tco. The COmpanv had not applied anv significant 1ud.gements In applying the reveeee recognllloo 
criteria. Tile ln1roductie>n of the standard have e�tended the dlWQSure n;,qu,rements and Ls g,ven below:- 

#The foUowins ls an ana1vs1s of the companles revenue from lts products and services (Rs. In LK$) 

r 

l 

Particulars J1.0J.2021 J1.03.2020 
Loci, :>11•s 
: Fabrks 1,107.75 8,823.99 
: Gar/Tlef1U 546.05 952.4(> 
:Yam 138.-49 278.68 ,,, .29 to. 5.13 
ExponiSaln 
: Fabrics 48.41 814.33 
: Garments 1,644.07 8,965.77 

1,119,i.411 'l,180. 10 
Servk•s lneorne 
: Job Work Income l,OH.67 S,2.6:t.56 

'· ·" ,,z62.56 
Othe-r opltf'ati,.. r.venues 
Ot.he, Sales (Sale of scrap, waste etc.) 35.71 196.H 

35.71 196.11 

Total e.s ·" "· 
Particul•rs 31.01.202:1 ll.Ol.2020 
The followlns ls ana.,.is on - ompan,es revenue ul!.3g&regates on 
the basis of timing of revenue recognition. 
Al l)Oint ot t!� ),520.48 20,0)1,35 
c:rver the period l,06'.67 5,262.56 
The contract price or sare 01 proeutts co-msrde w,tn tne revenue rrcrn 
operattons. 

Expe>rt benetlts are ,n tne nature 01 government grants�nng 
followms benefits ,,, Ml'f'Chandise Exports from India Scheme{MEIS) & ROSCn 83.25 354.04 

Jb] Duty drawback benefib 40.93 330.40 
Total 124.11 . ' 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
For Ye1r rndt-d For Year rnded 

NOTE 25 "Onlat INCOME" 31.0l.21 31.03.20 

lnteres.t Income 6l.89 267.32 
Foreign Exch.lnse Fluc111ation 39.25 3S8.)2 
Profit /(lo!'ls) on Sale of Aslietli . (2.12) 
M1scel!an£'0l.ls Income 95,79 BS.&3 

19'.9) 709.)6 
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For Year Ended For Year Ended 
NOTE 26 "COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED" 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

OpentnB Stock 517.81 1,416.49 
Purchases 519.21 6,820.96 

1,037.02 8,237.45 
Less: Closing Stock 27.84 517.81 
Tota\ 1,009.18 7,719.64 

ForY. E. ')(, il.lJC FOi" Y. E. . ... 
Jmpoc-ted ar.d lndlpoous Raw Materials Consumed 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

Imported 0.00% . 0.00:, 
Indigenous 1,(X)9.18 100.00% 7.719.64 100.00% 

TOTAL 1,009.18 100.00% 7.719.64 100,00% 

08taH1o of Raw Materials Consumed 
Class of Goods 

Fabric 659.39 4,597.21 
Yarn 349.79 3, 122.43 

TOTAL 1,009.18 7,719,64 

(Rs In Lacs} 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

\ 

For YHr Ended For Year Ended 
NOTE 27 "PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE" 31.03,2021 31.03.2020 

Fabrics . . 
Garments . . 

. . 

NOT[ 28 "CHANGES IN INVENTORJES OF FINISHED GOOD For Year Ended For Year Ended 
WORK·IN·PROGRESS AND STOCK·lN·TRAOE .• 31,03.2021 31.03.2020 

Opening Stock 
F!nlShed Goods 738.03 1, 157.23 
Work,in-Proaress 558.74 1,603.19 
Tota! 1,296.77 2,760.41 

Clo1oln1 Stock 
Finished Goods 130. 12 738.03 
Work·in·Progrcss 17.77 558.74 
Total 147.89 1,296.77 

Total Increase In Stock (1, 148.88)1 (1,463.64)1 

For YHr Ended FOi" Year Ended 
NOTE 29 "MANUFACTURING AND OPERATING COSTS" 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 
Consumption of Aludliary Materials 865.98 ],572.14 
Garment Stitching Charges �H.50 1,313.06 
General Factory Expenses 75.21 143.19 
Labour Charges 459.65 992.35 
Power, ruet and water charges 1,480.86 ],662.07 
R�air and Maintenance to Building & Machinery 72.14 140.38 
T�ting & Inspection Fees 19.08 24.03 

TOTAL 3,407.42 9,847.22 
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• For Year Ended For Year Ended 
NOTE 30 "EMPL.PYEE BENEFIT EXPENS_ES" 31.03.21 31.03.20 

Salary& Wages (inclusive of Bonus, Gratuity B: other Allowances) 3,320.96 5,945.00 
Ccntnbutton to P.F, ESIC, etc. 306.76 552.67 
Employees Welfare and amentnes 58.24 142.04 

TOTAL 3,685,96 6,639.71 

For Year Ended For Year Ended 
"'nTE 31 "Fl"',..'CE """T"" 31.03.21 31.03.20 

Interest on Lease Liabrhnes 75.70 92.20 

TOTAL 75.70 92.20 

For Year Ended For Year Ended 
t:!OTE 32 "OTHER EXPENSES" 31.03.21 31.03.20 

Auditors Rernuneranon # 13.00 13.00 
Bank Charges &. Commission 9.86 81.77 
Bad Debts, Claim &. Discount 253.59 650.43 
CommissJOO oo Sales 69.75 349.02 
conmcmcaton Expenses 14.76 19.54 
Courier Charges 27.93 70.27 
Director's RemuneratJ011 8: Srttmg Fees . 4.60 
Donations . 0.46 
Electricity Charges 11.36 22.85 
Freight I Transportation (Net) 93.20 384.96 
General Office Expenses 12.17 19.93 
Insurance (Net) 128.58 65.67 
Legal a License Fees 13.72 17.33 
Pnnting 6: Stationary Charges 7.19 37.51 
Repair Ei: maintenance 27.18 65.59 
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process Cost 384.00 137.89 
Professional Fees 232.28 480.12 
Rent & Municipal Taxes 118.15 247.66 
Unclaimed ITC Reversal 55.60 0.01 
Advertisement 6: Sales Promotmn Expenses 3.76 46.33 
Travellmg Expenses 20.44 86.16 
Watch 6: Ward Exp. 133.65 109.08 
Miscellaneous Expenses 171.76 143.39 

TOTAL 1,801.95 3,053.56 

' Details of payments to auditors (included in Auditors Remuneration) 
a. Statutory Audit Fees 12.00 12.00 
b. Tax Audit Fees 1.00 1.00 

13.00 13.00 
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NOTn3 "TAX IIALANCTI" 

Tho IQ!lowlr>s: 1, th• •o•�•I• of doforrod ,., '""" / (liab�ti.1) prH•ntod " tho balonco shoot 

Deferred '"" ll•bllltl•• {NltlJ 

P•rtlculus Opernn1 Solaoce 
Rec<>v<med ,n Rec01[11>ed ,n 

Clm""!I �,rice 
pront or lo« oo 

fY2021 
0.f•rr•dTax L-itin 
o,rrereoce between bool< and tu Deoremtic<, U-12.S! 1•10 rn l S71 ll 

O.f.r,...d Tu A..., 
Im >a<t oo L..>o<O<l ;., .. ts u '"" Ind AS·1 I 6 112 201 tz. . 
DTJ. "" ""'°''"' of SEC •l� or IOCOO"lo! ,., A<:l 19 Oll 9.0J 
IJHo, ocrn,,n,nf .-,tion nf OWi AS· " 1110 19, 25 l' 70 71 11•�1 
Ndd_lAII_, 4.101.u 142".11) 70.71 l 1)7 7! 

- :• Jll,o C°"'""ny hu not ,,....od •t- t" "'"" on Somo el Ibo tr,n,1ct1on, •• ....... 
•I O,,t.o.u,o,,._,.,,W/offonlo,10holdllncl [�.lnL""') 
FlnanelAIYNr lH,o Pro.-Jm W/olf OTA not C,o>tod 
FY lOIS-2018 7SS 50 ZOS.01 
FY lOlt-1019 261 as 63 34 
FY 101•->020 1�2 8! GS 34 
FY 1020 1021 161 SS GS 34 
b) ""°"l,ioefo.r�CrodMkml(Qlonddoul>tluldobts 

from fY 16 17 onword Compan1 h>O m� hus• bu�""" lo""'· th• do!t>II• of Corrlod Fo,,,,.rd Loso, " por lnoomo ,., Return l1lod " 

( 

- 111., •ua• 
Unabso,bed 

l+)Profll/ I· Ou>1n<S>LOH oeprecla�on loss 
)lo,.,,pu cor�ed forw,rd carrleO forwarO ., 

Yur, Left for Carrlod lncom•Tu H perlnc:omo per Incomer .. 
Fln•noo•l •ear forward �erum ToxRotLlffl ROtLlm 
l016 17 1,, = IT Reu.-n • (70 723 951 67 !OS OS s "� 
.1017·111,, oer IT Reu.-n ' (17 743 801 15.0t58.47 7.677.Jt 
lOH 19 ;., oer IT Reu..-n e 12 lU 811 . 2.1•1 81 
2019.20,;., = IT Reu..-n t 4185 72 2 052 71 111'01 

l<J20.21 """'"'""\ • 7 832 Ml l59M79\ u,10,, 
rot•I (1.02.730.13] l90.41i.90) (1Ul3.2ll 

r,, In IM>! 

P•rtlc'll•r< Openi"ll Salooce Fl.e<ogol!o>d., RKOinlied., c!o,l<rj Sol or.co -·'kc,rio" 00 
FV 19·20 
0.,..-Tu LIIMlltin: 
�lfforooco botwoon book on<l t>< Dopro;:ln>on � llS O! 11 ,o, ,o ,.1,1 !I 

Oefer,...dT,._, 
lmo><t<>(I L..>, .. d A,soto" oor Ind AS·l16 11'0 12 101 
OT• or,"""""'' o(SEC ,1s or lncomo '"" Act • 00 • on 
OT�or,a<coooto( ic>t!orl o< Ind ;.s. 10 [1 ..... 77 " 10.001 1130 19] 
Net defo ..... a ... llobn!IIH ,.os6 11 "·'"' A•I I.OD 4 191 •• 

Noto Doforrod tax ,.,.,, and dolurod 1 .. l1obil1t1<< h'"e been off •• t "ti>ey ue 1c,,,,r,..d by tho ,.me t1X1tlo<1 IAw< 

IIICOmO tox IMl0,- llorlo111 

t'.Otll<'""-' 11 03 2021 
jb. In l.o« 

31.CJ.JCZO 
CurreritTox 
In "''""ct of tt.o current vou 
OeferftO to. 
lnra ctoftt.ocurrentvou 
Total bi come,,. expen,e recoanlsed 

42'. \7 

(424.171 

1.._ ... ... ,.- ftft- 1111. In'--' 
,utlc•l•.n 31 03 2021 11 Ol 2020 

_,ncom,..,.. .. -� "' olhor COOlllrehon�vo 1nc00"1< 
Romo.,LX<Omont of doff nod 1>o .. m <>b""ot"'n 70 78 0 00 
ro1>1 """"'* ,., rec 1,.,.. In other con,-Mn,Wo ln<omo �.n ii 001 

NOTE 1, "EARHIN<l PER SHARE" PS) 

�er Sh.,... befor1 i!,cce tlonal Items 
bl Bute ,nd D!Mtd e�s 

Ollutod •• , r "'"'" b.ior. Exco 10 .. 11tom1 

31 03.2021 31 01 20l0 
re re 

285 )5 (111 "l 
1301 1J) 1111 '5J 

l�.457 )1) 14.3'51; 'M 
19.98J.n1 14.3'51; 'Ml 
ll.14 l� ll.U.Z� 

1285 151 1131 451 
1101 lJ) 1131 451 

lt.'4'17 311 1,.156.'MI 
19.98) n, 1• .l56 141 
ll.1. 29! ll 14 2� 

, ffl•ro oftor E,co ..i ltom, 

"'"""'""' , 1hu., ll<O,tod No, Wo Mod 

t.�cu••r! 
,I Fooo,a�of•""l"'<hu01oor<hu� lnRupoo, 

Not •Mlo,oExcootlonolltom°'>llohlofo,o It •h"oholdon RI lnlacol 
N�t •aftorfxc t.,...!ltom•••IIM,lolor "'""'i,o.jd"" Ro lnlo<< 

W• htod" • numbor ol0<1U1 ,hor••·B.,ic(No, 

BHl<liorOln �er5h.,...•fterExee �on>lltems 
N•t lit boloro txcoot.....i Item ""'lohle for ,..,,huoholdor, IR, In iac,l 
Not ofit1ftorExc tionalltem .... 111ohlolor <harot.ok!or, II> lnloc, 
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r 

NOTE 35 "OPER.ATING LEAS[" 

The Comp<>ny h;is Lease cootr!Kts for various ollfi:e tlnd fa<:tory Pr!!mf5e�. The tenure of such -'if!!�nts ra"f!('s from ..i....-en m<>nlhs to �1<ty mo<1th.\. The<"e ire l10 
purchase option In these &ifl'..ments rtere are ;ever1L Lease contracts that lncl!Jde e1<t""""'1 and termlr,atlon optioo,. 
The Comp�ny ase has c;e.rtain teases o{ re-sldentl;tl p.-emtse,; with (ea5e- l�m, of 12 months or less. Th!! Com11411V "1'Pllr,s the •s/>oft•term lea>!!" �n,tion 
!!•emptoc,ns for tht'SI! (Hlel 

On transition. the adop{loo o{ me newi.tandard r1P5'11ted in r..CCl!rl\lt>Oll pf 'RISllt of US<1' essee ol Rs. 111.88 h,a &nd a lease liabillty of II!. 111.&8 lacs. Furthl!'I". tn 
'l'!,pl.'Ct of le- wlllch were c�tfoed"' "P'!f"allng lea=. apply,rt![ Ind AS 11. fl!. 6810 lacs has been r«las1lf!N from "0th...- �eu" to '"Rlsht of Use ,.,..,t". The 
l'ffect of thi• adol)clorl ts lnsl�nifant 0/"I tr.e profit before tax, profit lor the pl!'l"lod and earn"'!ls per 5hare. Ind A� 116 will result tn an Increase m u15h inflows rrom 
�at1"§l actMti'l\ and an lr,crease m cash outflows from f,nanc,n� activities on acCC>Unt of lease payments. 

FoNowmg are the ch1n1es In the carry,ngvalue pl rlgh1 of use assets for the \'HI e,,,:led March 31. 2021: 
(Rs. lntxsi 

Putlcl.ll1n Offices Prfllll>H f•ctory Pr•ml� Ta111l 
Salance as on htllprlL.2019 -43.65 68.23 111.aa 
Reclawfied on oKCPUl'll of lldoP11on of Ind AS 116 37.94 30.11 6!.70 

."""" 628.14 403.69 1,031,83 
0,,1,,000 (404.73) 1404.731 
Oeprec,atlon (108.721 u,0.86 1169.581 
Balance as on 3151: Marc�.2020 l>01.05 ]7.05 6:JII. 1 1 
Reciass,fled pn 11,,ount of 1doptioo of Ind AS ll� 
Add1t,ot1 
Oetetlon (465.86) 1465.861 
0 ""' 11�.20) [37.05) 11n.25) 
8alance as on list March.2021 (0.00) 10.00) 0.00 f"" aggregate dcQreetauon eor,ense on ROU ass!11 k 11\Ch.>Cled under depreciation a.-,d omomza11on e"Perue I� the statement of Profrt "'1d I.OJ$. 

�ollowing" the movement in lease l1ab1l,t�s durine: yew ended March 31. 2021 
(Rs. lnlks) 

Partlculars omcesPreml..,.. flctll!}I l'rlh"Tll5ft Tat al 
Bataoce as on 1i.t .lor(,2019 0.65 "·" 111.88 
fin� cost acalH!d du1ltu the penod 67.02 25.18 92.20 ......... 628.14 -4(1).69 1,0J1.e3 
Deletion ()91.60) (39, ,&II 
l>;,yment of U>ll2 �iab!htles (127.011 (69.10) 1196.111 
8alance �son 3h.t ""-"d'l.2020 611.SO 36.39 648.19 
f�ance cost accrued dur'11�trie per100 72.70 2.71 75,41 
Addition . 
Oel..tlon t51H!il 1s1).6SJ 
Poyment of Le-, u.t>llltles (170 811 !)9.10) /209.95) 
&IMc:e a, on 11<1: M,rth.2021 o.oo (0.00) 0 00 

The followon« I< the blffk up of current ;,nd non currem lease lietl,lrties. 
(Rs 1n Lao) 

Partkutars Id on 31st M.uch.2021 Ai <111 31st March,2020 
Current lease Uabllltles . 139.1,6 
NOl"l·Current le�"' Ll!lbjlltJtl . SOB.51 
TPl:�L 6�8.1', 

The folloMn& a,e rhe .wnounlS recognised ., staternenl of profit •nd kiss: 
(Rs. ,n Laat 

P.vtkul&r5 As on Jht Much,2021 .U on 31lt IIW"ch,ZOZO 
Otlpn!c\at!oo [xpense-s Oii Rl11ht to us,, M"ltS 172.25 169.58 
Fin1111Ce cost �crlled durl"" the llflrlOd 75.41 92.20 
tease LoatlMl1V W/Bad< [47.79) (10.801 
fa�ense relatmirto shorMerm reeses (loclllded ,n othl!f ex pen""") 118.15 H7.6,6 
Tot•I 118 01 4n.6J 

the tabli, below pro.ide deiails regam .. , the contr•ctwt mawrtm.•s of lea"' l1,1!iiihes 11 .i M�•ch ll, 2021 pn ,n 11ndlscountl.'d twosis: 
(Rl. In lacs) 

hrtkuten .... ot1 J tst Mllfd,.2021 Al on )1st Much,2020 
i'tot later than one �ar 1()8.QO 218.50 
latl!'I" than one year �r,d l10t later th;in five yearR zs.oo 634.59 
later tMn five year 
Total 196.00 153.09 

• The Suct:o=ful R�ol11t1Qft Aollllcant •ne,, l.w!d and 1-sing Pr1v1te Lomoted" (DLHI of the Comp.,nv, has imionded to sl'ilfl the fmporate ofr,ce from "Maraihoo Mllfex-"". 
LOwer Parel to "ON Pr�ta". Andhl!'I"•, and ha, sent a nocatlP<l notice to "Mar.11hon Mextgen Realty L..,Ltl.'d"(lhe i.ndlPrd}. Accordin[tly lhe compeny hiU dl!'l"et:ogrrised 
ROU Asset and c:o,,esppndl114 Lose ll;tbclity on Jht M•fh 2021. 
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NCfE l6 •nnand.t rn,lrumonU ond II.Ilk M1n111men!" 

I, The Comp,ny wu .dm1t1ed ""de< tJ,e Cor�Olllt 1ni.o,l,,.,r,..y Res�uoon P,<>QO,. (ORI PtOCflU u �r ?f<Mgon of the 1ruol""'o.:v"!d llan�•'4)tevCode 2016 (!he 
Cod<>) on S.pt,,mber a, !011 P,,,rsu.nt ta lht said�. M"'- O.oru o., .. , wuton�,ffll'd n 1111 1\1,""luoon P.-ofeuhinol ("Rl"'Jofth" Companvl>Jth• Commlltff 
of C<ecloton ("CDC'), 

b, Vl<lo order da11!d -.ibtr 30, lOll {"'Rffolutlon Pion "'ppr<>¥ill Ord!,,.� the Hon'!M r«J.T ow,o.ed tho �lJtlOn Pion subm�ted for the Company by Formation 
Tutlleo U.C ("Resoluuon ,\ppk:lnt 1•1, SU�, n ""' Boord meetlfll h1ld on J1nuo� �I. 2019, 111 .. �aon �nt look """' the mo11111rnent I control 
ol the off,,,. ol the Company. Sub>e®enl\y, the lle.oludon Appi1couon l subm,u,d 1n opplaton t,olo,-., tho Hon'bl1 IIIUT. int,, .i.,, SHl!inf ii••• fur -1u"i 
ce,f11n rev,.,,u/modifiurlon intl,e1-"""d lt.nolUbon Plan ("AAAl>lltntlon"� On December S, 2019, tht Hon'bh> r«J.1 noted lhll whlll ii s15'lirat• l>e•rlni: wo< 
r�1�toduido the ...... �,olthe 1�flOII, u,n ,ntetim mo;sure, drectodlh.ol tho C\APol the Corpgrote Dehtor to be restor<9<i 1nd tMreaft.,., th• 
�"USO:,,, al the Corpe rote rlt,bt"' be �ln!Uld °"" lathe Comm1t!H ol Credit,.., 1nd the emwM1 Resglut""' Prof..,,,mno( 

e. FurtMr, ,,,d, order d,ted Febr"orv 5, 2020, !he Hon'ble NCLT allow1d the Re><>lutk>n Profe,slon1I te 1<1v1to lre,h re,olution plon1 lrom prospoctlw ne,olut<rn 
IPt>lic>nl• by p,=cln1 on oddlt""'al period of 70 diys to undort•ke the proce" On M,rch 2!, 2010, • r.ot,onw� locbJown WH d"llrtd d"" to ,uclden outbro1k 
0< Covid· 19 p1rld<em1c. On Morch 30, 2020, t"41 Hon'blo NClAT ordered th,t the period of lc.,c:kdcwn ordered by Centro I Gcwernmont 1ad St>te G_,,monts shill i>o 
.,._dfmm tho perood for complHl,..t"41 C'IRPO< • i:ri.-po,,te debtO<" presaiMd undtr ketlon 12 cf ttie Code Hence tM penodol ?O dlfl to undertoh (he Ylo 
pu>ceu wH este,,ded till the led.down contjnued . 

•• 
On Septembr,- JO, 2020, 1he R •• olullon Prolu-1 r=e- o"" ,,,.,,,uuon pl•n tor tho Corporot., Debtor from �uon Applicant !"R6>1ulion Api,locont 2"), 
De-. Lind & Hous,,-. l'rnr.lto Umited ("otH"I, �llv, ofttr vanous roundo ef nqoti>llons •nd <1:1e11....,,,s, RllOk<tion Applicaonl 2 subm,ned rlVIHd fin•I 
resoluaon plan to tho, lte><>lution Profft,...,,l en Detember 9. 2020 (wnh 1n addcfl<l,m IU<1ed bv rhe Ruoluuon Applicrnt on De,;eftlbe,r J 1,20l0), who:h wo, put to 
>Oto bv tho, CoC1nd1he,rnflM opprev.,d �- to the _,.,.nd. on Moy 19, 2021. !fie NCLT hiiS 1pprt>\'N! the t�m, cf the IIUolU'llen Pl&n wbm�tcd by Dl.H. 

( 
t. Ourlnc fl 20-n the, Grp,'1,1 •nd RMnci.l "'1u1.1sfflont ii<livll"" are r=tnr:tod to """tlllmlnt on currorrt ,...,1, ,nd llob1ltt,e.s of tt>. comp.,ny 1nd tho cloy te day 

cuh flow The <0"'fll"Y IS !ocuso-d on ro�ll.l•t!ot, of ••<.,...ti.es and ;,,.,..,nto,y man"IOmlnt 10 unlack, le the extent i,ossible, fund, bladed In the '"''""t 1ss1ts of 
the, camp,,ny. 

tRs In IK:s) 
PAIITICULARS Jl.OUl 31.03.20 
o.trt, (Al U6,"5Sl.49 U.5.'59 4� 
Cilul� (B) k ..... � 661,711 
o.t,cJ EQuitv l!otio {,\1/\81' "' '" .. 
FIM...;i>I .... ,....,,.ts bl' (Ill: - ("",l"llc:tl 

.... M�31,20ll M ,1 ,...,tit )1, 2020 
PAIITICLI.ARS "'morUSld Cott • - FVTOCt AMDrtlsed�ost# -, '""'' FlMndllAsseu 

t!Wfllr1'1"'1t5 c as c as 
r,-,oc-•t>I• 79105 2 226 64 
Cuh & Cuh tou111ol,nts S 2S339 5,754.41 
loon, &,<t.t,nc.., l.1.28 263.49 
Other FM11nciol o,.,t, 24! 62 }]1.tfi 
Total 6,l16.S� . s.•71.95 . . 

Aul-lLlQ!l AsMU.C�JL20l!I ·- ....... or\lM!I eo., • = """" -=· = """'' RM-llllbll!lel -- -�· 1.16,159,"9 . . l,2&.459.49 . . 
rr1<1o,-.,.ble, 3,,096.SO . . 3.16.4.25 . . 
Ofhu r ... no:iol NbmH.., . . . sse.rs . ·- 1.29. S 00 1,)0,271 � 

r,1r v1lue hlerorthy 
Tht flnlr'IOol ,n,trument, thot ore meuu,ed 1t r11r vilu• and have b<,en erlW!>fd Int� Level I LA•.i l 1nd i...'" 3 t,,,li:,w 

.I.sot 3!.0U021 M•t Lo,...11 Lo\111 Z ,_., lOlll 

PAIITICl..lARS 11-03 l010 

FlnHclll Asoet:1 . 
IIWfltmenll . . . . . . 
froduece;vabl<i . . . . . . 
Gr>h & C0>h [oUNOlenc, . . . . . . 
l ...... a- •• 1 .... ,_. . . . . 
Ofl>tf F,noncbl H�b . . . 
TMI>/ . . . . . 

Ftnu,111 U•billtlH ,,,_ s llllon current) . . . . . . 
T,oDf! P1v1ti.e, . . . . . . 
Clft,,,.r fln,....- •• 1 lr.bol�"'' . . . . . . 
Total . . . 
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( 

.....,.11• �- prb,s1n ri,e� mo-. Thlsle""I ofhlen,chvindudcsfinancill a net• that ace menund by ,�entnCII! (0 ®Oled pme,,n thoe 9ct!Ye martet 

L,ov� 2: V1luot1on technlQLIIII with �able 1nput1. Thl1 levol <>I hienrchv lnclud<!t llems mea,ured usln1 lnpul>olhltr thin QUO!rd pria,s 1ncludtdwlthin lnel 1 
that are oo,erv•bl• for ,uch Item,. either di rec!� o,r lncl"ctly 

Le,...I ,. V•luaOO� -- ..,,h unalaer.abie,n""tl, This le� of h1erard,y O'ldud1> ""ms ""'uured ullfl! input, tho! or9 net ba,ed"" ob,.rv1bl1 market data 
(ur,owervable lnputsl Fair .... 1u1 ,Ht,,,minrd in whole o,r ill Plft. """• • v•luotion mW.I bo10d on uiumptjom that ""' n!l!llef r,,pported by pncet ftr;,m 
obw,,.....t,!e current Marla U.,npction, in lhe '""'I lftttNRWnt• nor bawd otl .... 11,bloe martel ... ,. 

C.edlt ,isl,; r,f.,, totliemkof<lefautton 1toob1Jptoon b','theo:iunterpartyuwkl"l,n I t.r,anaal lo•<. The mu1mum exposure to the credit mk 1\ the r&por11ng 
dau, ls prlmar,ly horn trade 11ceivabl •• which••• typicllly unsecured. credit ,1,.1; on tuh and bank balance< Is l....:ted as the Com1111nv gen,,callv '"..,ts in deposit, 
wtth bo�U. 
TM Company aloe n=• the crltdltw<Hth1nu• cl tM a,<torr�n 1ntfin•tr to,.,.,,.. 1ood1 are ><>Id D<> crecfn 11,n,s in the ,_,,.,..1 ,,,....,. of bu<i,,...,, Tho, credit 
limit of oc:h cu<t<>me," do,fln1d In 1ci:ord1oce with this U!e!oment O..,t,ta�r,. cuJ!"""'' recew•b!•• ire re1ularl1 mo�ltoud 1nd•1>Y•hiPffll'nti too..rr" 
cuiton-en or,, 1er>1:r•lly "°"""d by lelter> ol cnedl!. 

The i"'IPlllrmen11n•lv>a1"perlo<med on dlont to d1�t bash I<>< the deb!or1 th1t "'" p1<t d"" •t the 1nd o/ •och report,ng date. Th• C<>mpony hu aot con,ldered 
en allowance for do<,bo;lul debls In cue af tnde <1oti11'1bleo !hot an, past dLie but'"""' hu nol: bet1> 1 rltnir.:.1>t chl,l'@;e m the credit QUlllty and the 1mcunt< ue 
>hi a,n,Jdlr1d teC<Metlblo: 

l) T,ade Deb10fl 
(11, lnlKsl 

,ur1<:1JWtS ll.03.21 11.0]..l(I 
fCIUDitl>!<ln ' 36 57150 !7,219 oe 

Lo111klw1nc<1 . ..,. • !S,592 44 35,483 49 
Lon 1llo.o1nc.1 dl.Jn,- thl w•• lnel of bod dobll c 188.01 108.96 
Ta11 Lou.l.Ilow1ncl ' 35,780.45 !S 592 44 
Nol Dlblor1 ' 1'.1.1.-05 U:zti.64 

• ed � ,oto lor tfie ' CJA•100 D.51% ,.- 
• loss rote� Dll\'100 97.� 94.ll'll. 
Deb!/ EQUl!v �l�O (A)/(B) "' "" 

I) OttM, f;111QII �- 
p,._..,t1y, othH fln1na1l u..U comprk<, of Fied dePOSlt< H ffllrsin lo, 11.onk (\Mt,n!O'l'I and >ec.1nry �it paod for Rented Premi-, L<x:.al Dodlu (MPCB & 
MSE09U and , edvooce S"'"" to"'"'°'"' etc. These 111 con� a, to... riff: ltotn'lf In the norMII cour11 o/ bu,;,,.,,. ind are wbject to oPe13lKIMI coAtroll 
deemod 1ulfk:l1nt t,y Company m1u,oi11ement 

B, Morht IUl.l, 

M1rl<et riok It the "* that the faicQlue o/ future cash fi.,... of a fin1nc11I 1nit1uJNnt w,II fluctuate oe<auie of d,an11es ,n market prices. Morket 1\<k comprises of 
th,.,., types of rtlh- int....,,. t1fl risk. C...,..ncy n<k ind other prite mk 1n • Oudualinc morkoK -1ron'-ll. Flnanaol .,,t,umer,t Ollft<:ted bv rna,le\ rllkl lni:luc!u 
loan, 1net bortowinp, °"""""'· otrr,r.n""" ,net othe, finond,il 1,se1 .. 

I) Curr1ncy AIJk 

T1vs " the �,i.; th1t the Com pony m1v ,ulfor lo,,.,, •• • ,.,,ult of edver•• exdionc• rate m""em,,nt OOl'1n1 lhl r<1levant �rlOO Th'I Ccmpany h1< e•p(>l"tl 1nd ,., that 
utant lt h.oo notural hedte to� kn'l" e>«:haf\lle nil< Oil ,r:oount of ,mportt,ll)C�nse, 1n !on,cn currency, Thu> to that"'""' It " ,ble to rnl!'cltl fluctu.lt10n1 
IICUtn';Al;Vtl!ti 

The loll<>wlna 11ble1 dem0!1<trote the &enJ1t1vlty to• r••><>n•bl-t possible cha� In USO ind £UR 1>cNn1e ,11..,, w�h 111 othfi •orOlblo, held'""''""'· Thit Impact 
oo the Com�•nv'• prt>M b,oton, t.u 11 d\1110 cha"ll•• 1n the f•lr voilue of manet,r,o HHtl and hab<l1t.,,. Tho Comp1n'(1 '"P"'""' to fcr11i;n c1Krercy ch.on111 lor 111 
<>mer CUfflllClu I, not mate,111. A �ij,re numboo, below indlCI\H an ,nc:re1se In �rcil,1 before tu or \lic:e-,,1r11. 

(lb In lfctl 
0-te""" a..,...,nn,ta Effect on Prol� befo,e ta.< O>anae11,ate Elfect on Prcflt before tu 

(IJOWardl 31�1] ll.OUO !Downward) 31.0Ul Jl.OUO 
uso '" "' ai 61 ••• f4.4S) nu,<J ,� "' "" n s� ••• !1104) 1u.sa 
eunc ••• 10 11 '" ••• (10.11) 14.74) ,_, as ec 49 94 (26WJ 149.94) 

' 



180
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I) lnter1R rlll ,....., 
AltM<llh the , •• o'utlcn P"'n M, been Ap,prov.d by H,:,n'bi<, NCLT on 19th �V,2021, but For FY 20-21 tho Com pony wu ur>der Corpor•te ,nsoi.ency ond re,�ut,on 
proce .. (CIRP) •nd Comp•r,y hu stopped pr""ldlns lnton,,t on borrow1n111 from le-sfbu>la sK>C1 Ap,r1l l.l.OlB,effo,c:1 o/ oil the rol.,f•r>d me>do!ie1lion oftl>oe """' 
M, n<>I been ce>nslderod ,n tMse fina<>e1ol ,tot�m•nt, ond will be ,on<>de� In the r.e,t qL11rter results based on the 1ppl>.1mn t...-,rl""mode t,v\lle\llA to ti,,, 
r1le,ont ,ut1ion1•n ond the dec,s,on t,a,.,do,, tho ••ocuboo of oppro,;1d RoiOlu�oo Pl;,11, 

ln\e<-<a!<t-"""lcy 
Not n,hMlnr ,u ftJCpl1iftt.d .-.,, 

;;;1 hn'HtmeM In Equity Prke Ri<k 
There 11 "° lnvernnent 1, - ,n equity 

C Llquldlty Risk: 

,) \.lqudtyrnl m1no1em1n1 

The l'lsolutmn Pion h., been Approwd by Hon'ble NCl Ton 19th May,2021 , but For FY 20-21 the Compony ,..,, undef Corpc,me "''"""'""" Ind r'lsolutlor> 
proc:es>(allP] ortd Ille co-nr h;os m-1•d �. tHh flow, on• <DY to day �sis to molm,,n opera'IK>M that for the mo.t of the year wo, •boo.I � to 50 
�i-:itv ut1r,.M1on. Tht compacny wn ilepenoenl: uppn t011ely ro,c:e,pt c' .. r •• proceed, ind <!day,, ,n ,.r., rullt111on, ton =«tv lmpoc, <ht ourrent level ol 

"""'"''°"'" 
ii) Motunt,., of f1nand1l llabll1Uft> 

The l'lsolutJon Pion h11 t,e,,,, Appr<Wed b,y Hon't,jt NC'l.l"" 19111 M•v,20H, butfQf FY 20-Zl theComponywu under Cor;,oru11n'°""""""•nd re.olurir>n 
pro:es,(a�P)>o there w11 no CU1Nnt �allon al Flnonciol h•b1IIM> f'<!llrd,111 the lore •"'m & Short te<m 1tor ..... 1n1. But 1ht ottu,r c:ur,..,..t l.llbibllti 1 ... T,Mle 
IJ'IPbi.e• and leoH ILlbilmt> Wll't pa,y,,1*,: on demand •nd Wllh 1n I yur period. 

lRt.. lnloul 
.... •tM1<d, Jl, toll ,.. at March n. 2020 

More thin 1 ve• More thin 1 "'"' 
PAATICUI.AltS uuthu1,u1 ond ..,,o 5 , •••• Mot••�u5yeor 

"'""'"" 1 '"' 
ud apto5�« MoNIIMn�Yff• 

Ro\ondl1AsHU -· "' . o.as . 
r,M1e,e,:-1>1it "'-"' . 2.226 64 . 
� & c:as11 [ca,i.....,U S 25U9 . 5.754 41 . . 
lOIM & ;o.:l,,ontH 22.28 . 25l.49 . 
Otner f1r13nc11l 1s,1" 174 75 73.87 . 21.87 ,�� . 
Total 6,242 47 74.H . 8,21>6.41 zos se . 

A.>MMotrdl ll. Z021 A.> M March lL lOlO 

""'"'thinly.or Morethan l yHr 
,ARTICIJLARS 1.1os<t�1n1rear andupto5yHf1 Mort"U5JHf Ll:uthanlYHr 1MI upto 5 years MoNI than 5 v•• 

FilH<III Lllbllltltt 
Elorrow1r111"• (Ncn c:urr.,,tl 1,26 459.49 . . 1,2e,45g 49 . . 
Trade P•v•b.ko• l,096.SO . . 3.16425 . . 
Ofher financ,al llobilitlo1 . . . 13958 508.SJ . 
Tot<>/ 1.2.9,SS6 00 . l.?9,763.•1 =" 
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( 

�=· .......... -·- ·- C,,ofl.J•"""''""'"-"f ··- • ,,.,.., . ..,.,,_ .,. •• �" s,;," ••• ••• �11u 

�"""'"""" . 3713 31 t3 ...... •• """-,-c ... )� \I "" LU-07 mm -·· " ••• n� I ••• IHII - ,. mm �" ,,. nv -·- .. - .,. Ull7 ..� .. �- _,, "1.,1n 

ro,.;,v_.,._,.._ 
" ---- "" ,,. •• �,o, ,, __ .. __ 

Ill-" . 1031 v,_......._ .... ••• IJH7 • •• ••• IOI nl '"" ._...,,._ ,., ·� l .. ll. •• m, 11 1l' II .... ,N'I., ... ,,._ . . . 
• .... _,,_"''" •• .,, :SH"' "" 
n,• A'"""'1, 10 1N1 ,u...,,se,1 "' l>IM<• SM<! 5101...- """""'"""'""' ........... _,,_ •• 11 173 l7 llSJ .. , =n \11> ...... _ .. __ -� "" '""' "" .. _,,, ..... .,,_ .... -.- •n1 •• ... •• =· •• 
' -- .. ___ ltll<>M ,,,:.,...,,_.,,,. �" "�' IU07 U.)01 

"'""-- •• "� •• • aras ,,, ____ ., _____ 
tH7 m, ••• ,-.u ·-·-·�----ROCI 11111 mu • "" - _ ... _ .. _ --- •• ,. '" "' ---- . lOJ7 lOJ> . --- ••• •• . " " 
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_, .. _,,..,..,,_ 
.................. '""-'""'"'"" ......... li'loul""- ... >f� 'l X,j" ,H7 1711 --- ••• "' '" e 10, - "0CJ ... - •• , ... -, ,,, " "111 102, 14 ,1.1 -· -·--- 71< ... ·- ,_ ·- ""''"""'"'"'"'""""-�- "' ·- ,_ ·- ............ -, ... · ·- .. � ·- ·� lndianA,....ec! h:J1••1ou'ft -. .. , .... ,_,...,!tallty oc,,.._,., i<w,n,o,t,l,ty 

lO!l-1-11 '-""'"'"' 2011-141 

��· �-· -- .... .__.,.,. .. I ,._l ,- •-"C"'l"M .--.,.ro.- .. -nd .. on ........_. ..... -- •• _ .. 
·- - -·- -· 

- -·- 
Motu�ty Proftlo ot C>tllnod lonollt oblll'llol,(Vo"td on ""dl,oo•nld .,,�) 

....... '"' •• -· •• 
"" 

·�· ••• ••• "" "" 
··­ _,.,_ "" ... 

-- •) n,,.._ - • '"'"-'"" """°"""'"" ofllC"'°'""'""'"" r,,a.n...,. rr ";;,:,- ,...,,.,ri,,.,., ritool> w. ...,...,.., ....... -· ,..,. 
'I '-"'""''*"'""'"'�'"'''<>lot�, ... ""-"''-'""""'-"" 
� l�i'l<i<> ........... '"'"""'" ..... to,...,...� -·�·· '""""""'"' ........ _,.,,,,,, ...... ,, ...... "' -·� ....... """''' 
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Noto 4l &crnt!!!! ......... lof) .... J!'"'r'ldf!iMliBMf!Sh,IQU !t11.......,., 

Coruldorlr,e tho notU<e ol 1t, DU,..,�., •ctrv,tlH 1nd rol1ted rl1k1 •nd return,. the Comp1n� had, Of th• !Im• of tran"�"" to Ind AS, determined that ,t Oper•tes ,n two p.r,m•r� 
buslnHs ugmen\l, nom� "TexMe, "ond 'Gument", which const1tut•• • rep<><�ble i.e,mants In tht coot•xt ofln� A.S lOll on "Optr,Ung ;.&menu· T�•r• h"' be.i no 
dev�lopment du�n� the year ntce,.,t•tlne: 1nv <Nl"II'.•• in Opera�"i Serl;m�nt,. 

(.,l,)�"'-··s.a- .. ,- 
!R .. lntM:• ,.-.... , t. lO.to-lOll f.Y. lOl'I-ZOlO 

r.,� ,_ ,�, ·-� c. ....... • •• f"-tttal-- 4\SOII l l!l'i.. ... ls:!0,&1 11957 9t I 073. 20.0SI es 
..... , ... 1 -·- . . 
Olher.....,._lna,r.,. U$lSS m� .ll89� 4,r.!77l '"' s MG fl 
10111a.- ., ,.o Ull.10 8.710.Jl 14.J1S.7l • 261.62 25. 7�J4 
ltfl'Otn,,..tlon . 
.... .., . ....,.,.,. J.m.n ··� !710U 14115,JZ ,. 262 62 n.nl.J4 
UGMDIT �UULT 71\61. l 214.47 '17&.1' 0�2.7� 911.SJ 5llU5 °""" � l159!!!1J 

"""' o, .... 1.,,,, .... 5!7.01 IJIM,10 
lnt1re1t Coll 75.70 " ,_1ot1 •••• '2417 fl 8116.6)1 -- 10 m n IUW. 
OTH RIN - ........ )HSU! ' ,.,.. .. , 47:ltUl 4.2.'85 98 ' '" �ow.,i. ,-� t,,A.-, ' ••• 5.-. 
IOTAl..t.S,l:nS ....... ,01 ,u, - "'" ;Ml28B 75 uu" 10111745 � '7 Ol�.51 
U-1bloL1110lllt•• 14 05; ·� fOTAl UA91UTIU • 191.4 46 411.31 

Alf�l'(N M 
s.s,,-, Capital hpond,tuni U.5l l1 51 S'.l4 2,1 ". S4Uf ,-� 
ror-... CN'ITAl DCI'. 1151 "'·" ' ' S• montO.o.&Amort ares e 31] t4 •4111lU J 143.46 84111 ·-· IJn1llocJo1odO.o &Amat. Ill H �" 
ro, ..... �.J'l![CIATION & AAIORTISATION UH� (.()Ill, 

(IJ Onlla ... !Mol 6-rNl>ical W"'!'!! • 
llls.lnllrJ) - �- ._. .... -· ·-· , .. -- 893.67 "'" 710.1 1 SU81l 10.4�" K=" �- ,,,.� 17.Jf;'i..' ,u 6.0'8.l9 ,n.u S.Ul . .lS 

C-ol "'-� 
16.S�ID 10.729 61 unu "'1.Hllfll 21 S80 52 61119 ss 

... �i.....i•-" 11.Si . ll Sl 12, 24 "" ... fl 

So1m'"II ka,o bHn ldont,li.d ,,. 1.,. w,tk tko Aoco11ntl01 Stand,CO on So1mont Roportlnf: (INO •• - ll)a) 1,..,1 lr>to xcount 
tho oraanntion str,oturo •• wtl ,, tho dllf1ront•I rllk< ond rel1Kn1 of tho,, ,.,.,,.. .. , 

Tri. k1rntnt �•••rw•>, lle>Ult,, ,.,,.,, ind U.b,lltlU locl;da tl,a r11190,:!No """'""' idon�llal,lo to lkk of,,,. .. JmO(lt 
•nd -tl•llo<Ottd ""' ,.,.., .. blo i,. ... 

l 
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' 

Note 41 �!L,lf!D P4UVTUN.s.,.CTIONS 

The Cl)mPll'l'I WIS edrnitted "r,dor t�• C<>rpo<lto ln,o,iorq Rooolut,oo Proce" (ORI Proc:o" oo �r P'(lvlll<>n ol t�• ln,olv<rn<y and &ontr"ptcy Code 2016 {th<> 
Codol <>n Septoml>lr Zli, 2017 P"""ant w tl>t nld ordor 1,1,. Choru Do,., wu «>nfirmed n tho Ro,<>iu�on Prcrt1tbt,"' i"RP•) r>lthe Co>m?OnY by the 
Commltteo of CrecM<>r• {"CoC"), 

•• 
\l1do <>rdor doted -bor :,0, 2018 ("Ro,<>iu�oo Pion ,o.,pprtw•I Order") tho H""'�• N<:lT """'cwed U.. Re..,.utlo<, Plln '"i;,tT,1to:od !<>r tho Camp.any by 
F<>rrno�on re,�le• LI.C i"P.H<M"t,oo io.q,/r'"nt 1·� :;,.,tneq111ntfy, u F>tt �rt! mnore�d"" Jon"ary ll, 20H, lho Reo<>i"�"" Api,llaoo\ tao\oo,..-tt,e 
""'�'"'"'" / coauol of the offt1t, of tho COmp,any. 5ob,sequ ... nv. tt,,, RO><>iuUon ,w,eooon I srJbmitted 1n ,�lco�"" IM,fo,- the Hon'bi. NC\.T, mtor ,no, 
-1,. 1 •• ,,. lo, mll<lf't ""1.tio '*'d!On>/modrflClltlOI\ ., tho oPJ)ll)'O'ed Resolllllon Pl,n ("'IU .l;>!'Ua,�on"j. 0,, �ml>et S, 2019, tho Hao,'tllo NClT ......i thlt 
wlllJ1 • 1ep1m1 l>tMf't ,.. .. toqu,r.d "'d«tdo tho m<!flt> of tt,., w,aoon, .. on intarlm ,,..,.u,., dl...,od ,t,n U.. Ct�P of tt,,,Coo-pc,rote Oo!rtor w bo 
,,,tor ... ond the,-olltt. 1/>t po •• eu!On of tho C"'!"'roi. Debro< bo Nnde:t ,,,_ "' the c.,mrnrn., of(redllOtl ond ,t,o """"'l,jle lle.olutron Pruh,..;onol. 

II!. o,, s.i,1...- 10, 2020. the -utron Prur..uoonol rece,w,d an, <=>lutian p1M1 /or lhe Coo--•t• Oebto, from A-•io.. Appk1nt ("lln>tll""" Appf1<211t rt 
!)n ...,.,... & HolHiltl Ptln!O Um- {"lllH"). Su!Hequerrtly-, _, -..no ... rn...,d, of l'lflod-• "'d dltc .... an._ Rnohrtian �,t.11>1 2 ..:omitted ....,,..,.i hnol 
r....:iiu!IOn pi.ti to <It• Roooluolon Ptol'no.,..•I on DKembel 9. 2020 (wnh on ..U.ndum l>•l,ltd tr, thoo RosohnJOfl ..._pploont on �rnber u,2WO). wnicn wo, put 
"' voto tr, 1ht Co( lfl<I Ul-fwr -- 5'rbtaqu..r, "' IM -..-rd, on Mn 19, ion. ""° NCLT "'' •-d Ulo ,., ... , o/ th� R-.i-.,.. P1'n 11Jbmlr.ect by ,� 

rv Durl"I tN lull n ..... c,o1..,.., Ille mo.._.,ent at the c:tJmt>onv i.., bnn u.ton cort i., R-..,.,.. Pro/euion1I (IU'l.1nd 1ll th1 .,,""""'" Dlrecto,. ha< bHn 
sw.plfltlld. 1...i Gomponr iw, r,ot m•de an� tr1nwctrcm ...th thme dirBCtDn 1od <tier, ...i ...... 

v Durrre tho p,......,, .,.., .ire Compan� ......,qemr,r,t w» token ca.re by Fo,.- lo><tli., LlC ("R110iutlon A,pplicoM l"Uor the perlocl rrom 111 Apnl to •th 
�.201.9 dllt"1t thl• po,lod - lr•MKilDrl<, wfroch ire ro,,,red undtt tl'II ...,,..,.. cl rtl,Uod 111•1'¥ tr••••cOon, !M <let>ib r,I ..!olf<l 111rt1o• Ind 
tlfl'IU<llonl ••• " ........ 

4! I Oosc�,tloo o/t .. ltff P,,"1H 

" Oltl�Ol'I· .... "- """""'""' ' Mtl 6111 ""Ill RH•ned w I I. lltt, Docombor, 2019 

' Mt i:t,lrOVIJ Chnl�!llr •��·,-i w 1.1 Uta Oocomber 2019 

' "" n,allOIMr"tOlo Re>1 nedw.ol ;i,tt,J • 1.019 

' Mr. l.llWrtnit A StK<m1n Re11 ned w I I 251" Jule. 1.01;1 

' Mr l<lllllfl"'�"'II RH•ned w o I. H1" Cl<1mber. 1.019 

• Mr. Pl•u,h Vlradll ( ceo,od to be tt,,, dlrectc,r1 w.t I ,m Juno. 

' Mr l'I 11,h °""I 1021 p,mu•nt tot� r11�utlon pion 

• Mr Todd Rgolr,1on 1<>0r<>ved In the Hon Pit NCL Tl 
Ll"1,p,,1nt.Jd WI I Hrd Moy, :019 ond 

' Mr �old<Kumor0.1 l'.el•ned W.t.f. 14th tl.c:t- :019\ 

l(A\lPO<ntrd w.,.f 011:n -Hr. :019 1...i 
ic M11 ()lpfl Mol,t1 R.o••i>ed"' e f. Utlr Oo<omb«, :019) 

• - l�<cM<lasM.1_1,.0,,�or an N•h 

' "' oh 0ow, M,A-1- Oire<tor F•1>ruo�.l0iol 
(Appclntold w• f. :Urd M...-, l019 111d 

' M, Mhok �- o.,, t.c.oru,,e O,rgtor nod w.a.f. Udr o.,,;,.,,ber. l019) 
(ApJDntod ...... , ,,. ....... l01'•nd 

• l,11 M-"' G<J-1, COO. CFO ..... 1. l .. h Fotwuory. 20l0)J 

(Appaonte:l w� I. bl .. no. 20194"<1 

• Mr. Vino� Sl""'"'l. Cbml*IY Sect�'" & Coo-nollonco Officer 1� .... .....i ..... 1.0.-..h-be< ..ouu 

Mr Aml•o,.h s.huh. Compan� S..:,,,t•ry & Complia""" Office, 1:.1.pJDntod w.1 i ll'th N.........a,.,, 2019 ond 

' �1111,,..; w a.I 3(lr:h Oecembor,l0l9) 

l 
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{ntt10111es !Wet whicll U ,..,. oerson d1scrlb1d In •• -!1Mlti10u1rcl1t llt.l lnflu1nct 

' ""'' Sc,rtv,11,. Ttcnno ;.IL� 

• C1l1Sllll £1octrook:• l'vt Lid . 

• Cr11tiv. Pl11ck: lodumlo, 

• Mir�w1II Vl'MII 

' OnUl'I v�n<LJrll I LP 

• --'-'"-''-- 
' Greotor ""' Olaombe't of Com""'"'" • Mll,10< I Eritor.,,l,u 

' �ormo�on C.pO� llC 

" ,o"""�"" To,oln u.c 
H Y1t�l,..Hrx.MlllrY . 
u Rc,bin,on LowllC 

I"-' ,ntx>J 

( 

' 

,_..., ,.._.,,,, __ , VolooeofT•MW<fl• 
111-.&-- F'l'Z!J.11 NHlO 

• Mro Alu P1!11 s;n.,.f ..... OM 

' Mr Cl,Jr O.hibt.< SitllnRf""' ·� ' Mrs.( ,,o;tr.,IOlo Sittm•F- ·� • ..,, .................. S!ectman • '"' ,� 
' Mr.1,11,,..Jh Prlel Slnl-F- om 
• "' .w ... 'llttlOlf- ·� ' Mr TaodRol,;IUOfl S/ttl ... flH ·� • Mn Dlntl Mol'ltl �ttl_f_ 000 

Totol-A . ,.oo 

'" -- ' "" NI E>ol'>I. M•""''"" Dir..:tor ... 1, ... 15 65 

' M, ••� �""'" 01, htoJ<Wt O.roctcr !iii,� rn 

' Mr H1fl'lln!Guot1 C:OO&CFO ... 1.,. 00" • Mr �111 .. s,,,,,.,.,_ Com vSo<r.i & Comol,ar,co Officor s..1,,,, 21,48 
s Mr A1�,°'� Sheth Ccmc1nv s,,,eio� & CQnlnJ,or,co Olf>::er 

.,_ ·� Totol-1 . 111.22 
�nt1rp11 .. , """' whl<� 1ny porson de1crlb1d in (A)&. (01 ab.,.e Is able ,,, ,.-- -- 

'"� . 

6r-Totlll-•C1 . 111.s:z 

'" °"'_,.. ....... ., c••· ,ni.:.f 
••itlwllrl w-.0... ..... 1 ... N Oii 

ILil3.l1 ll.O:UO 
Ohooo • �•1- . 

'" ·- ,_ . 
�-......,,..,....,._ ..... �·1"'1• ···-··- ., to-i.. .. llleNt ... _ . 

G,Mdfo&.i� . 

' 
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Note 43 :- Contincent Liabilities and Commitments: 

• Claim ;,�st the Company not;,ciln� as debts in respe,;t ofdl..,..tftl Income Ta, demand as �ow . 

Sr no Authority "" Tax Demand (Rs ,n lacs)* Status 

1 Income tax AV 17·18 3,587 33 CITIAI 
I AV 18 19 1 042 19 . 

2 Income Tix (TOS\ Various veers 54 27 ITD-TDS circle Mumbai 

• Interest th!!r� not ascertainable at r,resent 

b) Clarm against the Company not acknowledged as debts in resr,ect of Central Excise dues <mounting to Rs. NIL [previous Year Rs 290 58 
L;ics),however during the current year Company got a refund of R, 62.9Z lacs as r,er �nal order passed by Deputy Comm,ssioner,Central 
E,me Palghar 

c) Bank guarantee given to sates T;i,, Exc,se and Cu.torn Department, MSEDCL, MCGM and MPCB of Rs. 347.85 Lacs. (Previous Year Rs 
297 77 L�sl 

d) The Company has recerved the VAT assessment order from different State's VAT O,,partment, tfi,, deu,ls of all ttle demands are ,s below 

>oo Authontv , .. T;,x Demand (Rs.,n lacs) SUtUS 
l VAT/Maharashtra\ FY 11-12 0.39 

FY 12-13 0.63 

"' FY 14-15 2.433 46 Wrot r,et,tion filed with Bombay csr 2,277 99 

"' FY 15-16 l 364 21 
H1gh Court 

csr 1,086 47 
2 VAT (Delhi) FY 14-15 16.86 
3 VAT/Punlab\ FY 12-13 58.72 

The Corporate Debtor. before the demerger (v1de order dated 29th M;irch 2016) with The Mandhana Retail Ventures Limited (TMRVL), 
had takM VAT regi,trat,on numt>,,r for various states for TMRVL ;is 11 was part of reUII arm of the corporate Debtor The address for these 
VAT registration numbers were linked to mall addresses rented by TMRVL However, post Demerger the sa,d VAT regi.tr,tion numbers 
remained m the name of the Corporate Debtor with communication address of TRMVL's rented mails. Hence, all notices of demand were 
sent to TMRVL's address and not to Corporate Debtor In v�w of the same, there could be a possib,l,ty that TMRVL might have received 
VAT notices but failed to forward the same to Corporate Debtor. 

el As per letter dated 14" May 2019, Karnataka Industrial Area O,,velopment Board ("KIADB") raised demand against the Company to 
deposit Rs. 76 63 lac, towards cost difference of land and varoous other outstanding dues for transferring th!, Freehold lu,d located at 
Dodbajlapur near Bengaluru ,n the name of the Company 

f) The Hon'ble Supreme Coor! in a recent ruling last year had passed a Judgement on the deflmtlOn and scope of 'Basic Wages' under the 
£mployees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneou, Provi,,oo Act, 1952. Pend1ni; issuance of guidelines by th!, regulatory authorities oo the 
appl1cat100 of this ruling, the impact on the Company, 1f any, cannot be ascertained The Company will update ,ts provision, on receiving 
furth!!r clarity oo this ,ubtect matter. 

g) The Compooy 15 ,n receipt of a show cause notice from Jomt corornrss.oner cf Custcrru (Export) as to why penalty u/s 114M and/or 117 of 
the Cul.tom, Act, 1962 should not be imposed on them Howe�er, the amount is not quantified ,n the notice The Company manai;ernent 
has filed a suitable reply to ,t and wa1t1ngfor department response 

h) The Company has not filed the Cost Audit Report from FY 2017·18 to FY 2019-20 due to lack of sufficient data and manpower Due to this 
non·compliance, the company could face a l1at>il1ty ,n form of penalty by the concerned Regul;tory Autilonty 

1) The Compamy has not appointed a full time Company Secretary within the t,me limit prescribed under the Com pa noes Act, 2013 The 
Regulatory authority has ,ssued a notice to the Company due to the non comphance. The Company has communicated to the sald 
authority for the annulment of the notice citing change ,n management ood l1nanc1;il cnsu faced by 11 
Due to this non-compliance, the compooy could face a liat>il;ty in form of penalty by the coocemed Regulatory Authonty 

1) Notice recerved under the Directions u/s 33A Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1974 and u/s 31A of the Air (Prevention & 
Cootrol of Pollution) Act, 1981 for Interim comr,en,at100 for damage to environment caused due to pollution ,n Tarapur amounting to INR 
14 62 lac 

\. 
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k) A notice Is recel�ed for furnlsh,ng some information r"'(1wred for sales t�x purpose 1nu0Mng !eke Input credits take!'I bv an entity named 
Horsh• Enterprises with whom the Corporate Debtor used rn deal with during the period 2008 to 2013 The Resolution ProfesS1oniM has 
replied to the show cause 110tlc111tat1ng that tM transactions pertarmng to the subject matter of the notice relate to the ?(!nod p,rnx to 
the commer,cernent of CIRP of the Company, when the erstwhile manaci11m,:nt was ,n eharge of tbe affairs oft he Company Currently, the 
Company Is In the midst of Implementing of the resolution plan appnwed Hon't>le Natlorial Company Law Irtbenal l"NCLT"I The l1abllity 
,mount Is nlll no111�ertained. 

IJ The GB global Umlted IS I member of "Tarapur E,wironment Protection S<>c"tv" (TEPSl.hrapur rnvlr<1nme!'lt Protection 'i<>aetv had 
submitted a Cl,11 Appeal no 36:.3 of 2020 to Hoo'ble Supreme Court agamst thelml)Ugned o,det pass.ed 011 Sep1embcr 17 ,2020 by 
tOtlonal Green Tribunal. Hon'ble Sup<eme Court haaingconsidffed the ""'e rese In (h,il A,pp,e•I, pro00$ed to pan the order on 
Oecembe< 14, 20!0 .. hlch 1nd a<.;� .. Ap�llant �hrapur £nv,1011ment Protection Soclety"(TEPSI, 111�;,I no 3638 of 2020, WQuld 
del)Oilt lCN of ('Ol'n?ffiU!lon amount as d,rected by th" impugned ord.,,. within one month frQ<fl to,;lay.1n case of failure todl!po,iil. tflelr 
ob,ections would not beheard aOO dl!ddl!d" Ou ring the Quarter the Campany had recel•ed Oebol notes of Rs 26.75 la<:s !Qr it plan15 
situated at plot oo.E·lS. C-2 & C-3 of MIOC Tar�ur, from •rarapur Environme111 P<ot«tlon Soclelv"(TEPSJ. The;,mountoflls. 26 75 has 
bttn l)lld on �(OUf'lt of oen1ltie"I M 30" Co<1tnbut1on from it!. member based on mde·wise (LSI, lSt atid SSI) dlnrlbution by lEPS. 
For eal;,nce 7mli of tot� penalty, aniounling of Rs.61.251...cs w1ll l:e p....,..t,le d"Jl'!nd on the out(ome of the appeal filed to tto,,'ble 
supreme Cou,t. 

m) The(ompanv h;ls ,eceiwed a demand noticedlted June n, 2021 from M/'- Marathon N""lgen Realty Llm<led nanillord•j towards 
outstandl"C llcense feHof lhe «.p1.-ateoffice2402 A Mao"ilthon luturex. Lowe, P;,rel. for the period May 2021 & fone 1021 amou,mng 
10 Rs. 50.93 !JC! lnch,111,re of lntere"lt of Rs.17.90 Ian. The mam,sement d-.spute! the inte,t1t c1,1m and hence 1he 1ame is not provilfflJ in 
the book:s of account,. 
The Succe,ssful Re-solution A?J)l,nnt (SP.A), O..• land & liouSIOg Pr,vate Limited, Intends to shift t� ecrpcrate office from 2402 A 
Munhon future�, L.Owe, Pare! to Dev Pla,a, 5 \/ Road Andheri, ar>d have mtlmated vi• letter dated June 19, 2021 to the landlord for 
VilCiltlng the l)lemlses, arid id Just the outstallding amount related to ,ent for the month c,I May 2021 & June 2021 from security deposits 
kept by the Company with the landlord On rep Iv to 1nt1m;ition letter tbe landlord has demanded Rs.174 72 lacs w;de license fees tow,rds 
lock In period staled In I use agreement from 1st July to 12th May 2022 i>lorlf! with euller outstanding The Company ls m F>fOCes, of 
negotlatln5 with the IMdlord for settlement of these dispute and II confident that this will have a eesmve ou1come and lock·in period 
demand may not result m probable outflow of resources. 
Accordingly, the Complltly has d"'ecosn,zed the ROU As.et, & Lease L1;ib,l,ty related to the cuneet corporate office ar>d restated the 
deooslt 1mounu In books of account as on the date oftr,ese �nancial Statement, 

n) n,e Comi,;i.ny hH two ,eued F•ctory srenuses ,t Elangalore and Company also ,ntlmated their l1ndlofd for vacating their �em,..,.. from 
Jun! 30, 2021, In repl� CJfthe Intimation letter for �acatlng olfactory prenmes Coml),lny rec�ved settees from respecwe land lord 
toward1 their outstanding 111d other dU!!'i. The Coml)al1V m"'1",!l�ment Is in process to nego1la!lni with the rupecthre L.Jnd1ord of factory 
l'reml1e1 for Rr,11 �nlement. 

o) U.b�ltv tow1rd, l'IO<'I lvlfilment of e•port oblication under Ex,ort Pf'omotlon Ca pit.II Goods Scl\eme: 
The Company had ral<en bene�t of Export Pmmotion Capital Goods (EPCG) S(heme un(ler the rorelgn Trade Policy to the tune of 
R1.3,150.73 laeln 11'1epu1 ag1in11 tulnllme111 ofe,,i,ortot,1,gatlont. Dfthes!." 

I ueeeses amountlr,g lo Rs. 24L22 lacarev1lid and conHooir,g. 
II Licenses amountLnc lo Rs. LL39.S6 lac are digible for extens,o11 ui:on the Company seeking ;,pp,ov.il from Oorector;,te Ger,eral of Fofeign 

Tia.de (OGFTJ authorities.. 

rn neeoses worth Rs. l,769.9S lac which h1•e e,cplred 1r>d been p,ovideddu,ing the period, 

iv Interest/penalty on no11 fulfilment of obligation (if any) is disdosed 11 coll11ngent llab,l,ty pending dl!t.,,.mlnaHon, quantilic;,tio11 alld 
protedur� compliances. 

NoNI 44 :·othef Commltm.nl1 
ne Compilny hu cth"' commltmenU, for J>Urch.ases / sal"' order, which .M"e iuued ilfle, con11derlng requ;reme,its per operating cycie 
for oureh,se I sale of goo<ls 1rld servoces, em,>loyee benehts 1n normal course of bu11ne11. Th.e Company dool! not have any long term 
contracts lncludlns derl,1tfve contracts for which there wlll be any material foreseeable teces. 

' 
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Noi. •s :·lffifNd ol UM COVIO·l!f Pandemic Ofl IM !Jui;iness: 
The lode down aml 1estriCtloM due to (OVID -19 Pandemic ha'oT POSed <111riou, challenges to Ui,,,, operation<. and business of the Com�ny. 
The Coml)l>rly'J manufoctum\8 h,c,h1<e!> at all lotations and offices h� parnally resumed Its manulacruri[l£Ope�tlon in !,Onll' cuts uniU. In 
Ar,rll -20 (Bar1t1alorel ond May·20 lhrapur) ah.� takrns all the Mcesnry precau1'oru on laf'1y of ,u employees ;md other �rame1e1s a, 
,t,pulated ,n the government directwes. 

The Com�y ha<s considered i111emal an� eo:1ernal lnformat1on while fl1nll,ln� varoou, estlm1tes and recoverability of as.et. m relation to 
111 flnanclal rtal�e,us captlom upto the date of approval of the financial ,tatem�ts bv the Board of OoreclOl'S. The ,mp act of C-0..Jd-19 
m;,y bt different from wh;n is eshmilted ;,sat sum dale of apprOlllll of the financial statemetl� and theComp•nv will continue to monhot 
any material changes to future eu,nom,c cor,cflttons. 

The 5.eoot,d w•ve of the pandffl11C has also POie a clowm1de risk to the Industry and economy as well and ,mpact the p,ro�tab1l1ty of FY 21· 
22, ln .,;ew of the pr.,va,l,niuncertamty ,n the future, !he full uten\ ol !h<c ,mpact of COVID ·19 pand<,mic en the CompcMW cannot be 
ao:ura!@l"j' a,certauned at this Jur,cture. 

Nol• 46 ,. Budget 2020 has ...-,nounced a new t;u realme g,\llng tilllplyet� a,, option to pey ta.es"'� lhe Mw ta, slab!. from FY 1020-21 
oowards but u the CorP01ate lnsolver.cy & Resolution Process "CIIIP" has been cor><luded oo 19'!h May 2021. the manatemer11 ol th.e 
Compar,y ha> not yet deeded to tip! the new ta� slabs for FV 2020·21. 

NOi. 47 :· In few of W � I.he 6.Jlar>ee with pa,-!y �He,ctt'd under Che hei>d Trade rec..lvables. Trade l":lyable alld loans and advance. 
�,e subject to wnfirmHlon by the concerned p1rttes. 

Note 411, :- lmpl�mentl!lon of Hon'ble Nation1I Comp1ny Law Trlbun1I (NCLT) orders undar lnsolv<locy Bankruptcy Cocle [IBC) 

A ,.,,.�c,,ne lnsolver,cy resolution p,re>cess ("CIRf"'I wes Initiated aga1n1t the Company under SKtlon 7 of the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 
Z016 ('lac') v,tle order of the HoA'ble Nat,or,al Company Law Tribunal !"NCLT"I dated Sectember 29, 2017 PurJuant to the said order, 
Mil. O,aru O...ai was confirmed ,n the Resolu!lon Profes""n� ("RP") of Ch.e Com,iany by the Comm,uee of Ctedltorl ("CoC"I. 

Vlde ceee- dated Novembe< :.0, 2018 ("Resolutlon Plan Appr011al Order•), lh.e Hon'ble NCLT approved 1he Rewlution PlaA submitted fo,r 
the Company by Form�t1on Textile, LLC l"Resolutlcm Applicant 1•1 Sut>sequentfy, as per Soard meeting he-Id on IMuary 31, 2019, the 
Re.elution Applicant took owe< the management f control of th,: affair, of the Company. Sutis"'1u..ntly, I� Resolution Application 1 
wbmlned an appl,cat,on before the Hon'ble NClT, Inter al1a, ,�klna leave for making ceruln re\llsions/modrncat1on m the approwed 
Resolution Plin ("11/l Appllca•lon"]. On December S. 2019. the HoA'ble NO.I noted that while ;i secerate hear Ina wn r"'1u,red to eeeree 
the merltt of the applit.111'.lon. ti an inlerim meHUle. direclf!d that the CIRP of the CorPQtate Oebtor to be restored and thereaher, the 
possession of 1he Corporate Oeb10, be handed - to the CommiU� of C,e,ditor,; and the �twfnle Rf!solulion Profes,Jona,I. 

FtJrther, •Ide order dated February 5, 2020, the Hon'bl� NCLT encwee the Resolution ?rofesslonal to 1n"1te fresh resolution plans f1om 
prOS41eci;�e rKolutmn 1P()llca1111 by providing an additional period of 70 days to undertake the process On March 23, 2010, a nationwide 
lockdown wn declar"d due to sud-de11 outltreak of CO•ld-1'1 pa11�lc On March 30, 2020. the Hon"ble Net.AT ordered that the period of 
lor:kdown ordered by Centr.il Go,,emment and State G�mmmt,: slwll be exclllded from the ll"(iod for <omploong the ORP of a 
corporate debtor prescrlbed under Sr<.tiOOl 12 of the Code. Hence the period of 70 day< to under11ke the sale procen wu extMde<I i;11 
the lock(lown continued. 

0<1 September 10, 2020, the Resolution l'roleuion;II recerved one resolution plan for the Corpor .. te Debtor from Resolut,on Appllc;arit 
("Ruolutiori "'41pl,cant 2"], Dev land & tlouslng J>riote l.Jm,tO'd ("DU,"1· S.Utise�uently, after variou.i round1 of neBOt1at1ons and 
di,i:ussloris.. Resolut10A Applicant 2 subm•IIO'd revised final resolution pla,n to the Resolution Proleu,onal on oe«mbe< 9, 2020 {with an 
addendum Issued by th.e Rf!i.olutlon Applit.lM on Oea.mber 11.2020}. which was p111 to ..-ote by the CoC and thi,-eafter appro�d. 
SuMequent to th� year-entl, on May 19, 2021, the NCLT t.as approved ll>e terms uf the Resolution Plan sutm11red by OlH. Thea;,proval of 
re,olutlon plan sub,equ�nt 10 March 31, 2021 has �en cons.ode redo., non·i>dJustmg nent for the i;,urpose of financial st.otements for lhe 
year ended March 31, 2021 Pu1.1uont to such approval of the Resolution Plan by the f.lon'ble NCL T, the finarw;1;l 1tnements for the yea, 
e,>ded March 31,2021 have been prepared oo, "going concern" bnls 

irto� "9 :- Pre....ious year's figures tww, been regrouped / recl11slfied wh.ereve, necess.ary to correspond with me current ye�r·1 
dit.il.illutlon / clisclosu1e. 


